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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

THIS REPORT INCLUDES "FORWARD-LOOKING STATENTS" WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE AQOF 1934, AS AMENDED. ALL STATEMENTS OTHER THAN
STATEMENTS OF HISTORICAL FACTS INCLUDED IN THIS REPRT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, STATEMENTS
REGARDING THE REGISTRANT'S FUTURE FINANCIAL POSITIO, BUSINESS STRATEGY, BUDGETS, PROJECTED COSTS A
PLANS AND OBJECTIVES OF MANAGEMENT FOR FUTURE OPERFONS, ARE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. IN
ADDITION, FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS GENERALLY CANBE IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF FORWARD-LOOKING
TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS "MAY", "WILL", "EXPECT", "INTEND", "ESTIMATE", "ANTICIPATE", "BELIEVE", OR "CONTINUE"
OR THE NEGATIVE THEREOF OR SIMILAR TERMINOLOGY. ALHOUGH THE REGISTRANT BELIEVES THAT THE
EXPECTATIONS REFLECTED IN SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STAMENTS ARE REASONABLE, IT CAN GIVE NO
ASSURANCE THAT SUCH EXPECTATIONS WILL PROVE TO BEAGRRECT. IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE
ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THE REGISRANT'S EXPECTATIONS ARE DISCLOSED IN THIS REPORT
UNDER THE CAPTION "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE AS WELL AS IN MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERTIONS ON, AND INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO,
PAGES 3 THROUGH 17 OF THE COMPANY'S ANNUAL REPOREXHIBIT 13 TO THIS FORM 10-K). ALL SUBSEQUENT
WRITTEN AND ORAL FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ATTRIBUABLE TO THE REGISTRANT, OR PERSONS ACTING ON
ITS BEHALF, ARE EXPRESSLY QUALIFIED IN THEIR ENTIREY BY SUCH CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS. THE REGISTRANT
ASSUMES NO DUTY TO UPDATE OR REVISE ITS FORWARD-LBING STATEMENTS BASED ON CHANGES IN INTERNAL
ESTIMATES OR EXPECTATIONS OR OTHERWISE, EXCEPT AZQUIRED BY LAW.




Table of Contents

Item 1.

Item 1A.
Item 1B.

Iltem 2.
Iltem 3.
Item 4.

Item 5.

Iltem 6.
Iltem 7.

Item 7A.

Iltem 8.
Iltem 9.

Item 9A.
Item 9B.

Item 10.
Item 11.
Iltem 12.

Item 13.
Iltem 14.

Item 15.

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
FORM 10-K
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PART |
Business 1
Risk Factors 6
Unresolved Staff Commen 12
Properties 13
Legal Proceeding 21
Mine Safety Disclosure 21
Executive Officers of the Compal 22
PART Il
Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Etotder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securi 23
Selected Financial Da 23
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanataldtion and Results of
Operations 24
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk 24
Financial Statements and Supplementary | 24
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @ouing and Financi
Disclosure 25
Controls and Procedur 25
Other Informatior 28
PART Il
Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaos 29
Executive Compensatic 29
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dMahagement and
Related Stockholder Matte 29
Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsarettor Independenc 29
Principal Accountant Fees and Servi 29
PART IV
Exhibits and Financial Statement Sched! 3C

SIGNATURES 3&




Table of Contents

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012
PART |

tem 1. BUSINESS

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (hereafter referte@ds the "Company"”, "we", "us" or "our"), wasangorated under the laws of the State of
Delaware on February 3, 1940, and is successobtsiaess originally organized in 1920. We are prily engaged in contract drilling of oil
and gas wells for others and this business accdongmost all of our operating revenues.

Our contract drilling business is composéthree reportable business segments: U.S. Lafish@e and International Land. During
fiscal 2012, our U.S. Land operations drilled priityain Oklahoma, California, Texas, Wyoming, Cado, Louisiana, Pennsylvania, Ohio,
Utah, Arkansas, New Mexico, Montana, North Dakatd ®est Virginia. Offshore operations were conddétethe Gulf of Mexico, and
offshore of California, Trinidad and Equatorial Gea. Our International Land segment operated ims&xnational locations during fiscal
2012: Ecuador, Colombia, Argentina, Tunisia, Batemd United Arab Emirates ("UAE").

We are also engaged in the ownership, dewetnt and operation of commercial real estatelamdesearch and development of rotary
steerable technology. Each of the businesses egaratependently of the others through wholly-owsgssidiaries. This operating
decentralization is balanced by centralized finzamue legal organizations.

Our real estate investments located exgdlisivithin Tulsa, Oklahoma, include a shoppingteeicontaining approximately 441,000
leasable square feet, multi-tenant industrial wawsk properties containing approximately one mmilleasable square feet and approximately
210 acres of undeveloped real estate.

Our subsidiary, TerraVici Drilling Solutisninc. ("TerraVici"), is developing patented rgtateerable technology to enhance horizontal
and directional drilling operations. We acquiredra¥ici to primarily complement our existing driily rig technology as well as to potentie
offer directional drilling services to third paieBy combining this new technology with our exigticapabilities, we expect to improve
drilling productivity and reduce total well costttee customer.

On June 30, 2010, the Venezuelan governsenéd 11 rigs owned by our Venezuelan subsidiadyassociated real and personal
property. We have sued the Bolivarian Republic eh®zuela and related governmental entities for damaustained as a result of the sei
of our Venezuelan drilling business. We are alsti@pating in one arbitration against a non-Veralaun entity related to the seizure of our
property in Venezuela (For further information, #een 3. Legal Proceedings). We are currently umabldetermine the timing or amounts
may receive, if any, or the likelihood of recove®ur financial statements have been prepared Wéiét assets, results of operations, and
cash flows of the Venezuelan operations presergelisaontinued operations. The operations fromMairezuelan subsidiary were previou
an operating segment within our International Laagment.

CONTRACT DRILLING
General

We believe that we are one of the majod land offshore platform drilling contractors in thestern hemisphere. Operating principally
in North and South America, we specialize in sivalto deep drilling in oil and gas producing basifishe United States and in drilling for
and gas in international locations. In the Unit¢akt&s, we draw our customers primarily from theanajl companies and the larger
independent oil companies. In South America, ourezit customers include major international oil pamies.
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In fiscal 2012, we received approximatedypercent of our consolidated operating revenumas four ten largest contract drilling
customers. Occidental Oil and Gas Corporation, karaOil Company and Devon Energy Production Co(reBpectively, "Oxy",
"Marathon" and "Devon"), including their affiliatesre our three largest contract drilling custom@fe perform drilling services for Oxy or
world-wide basis, and for Marathon and for Devotlis. land operations. Revenues from drilling sersiperformed for Oxy, Marathon and
Devon in fiscal 2012 accounted for approximatelyp&fcent, 10 percent and 10 percent, respectigélyyr consolidated operating revenues
for the same period.

Rigs, Equipment and Facilities

We provide drilling rigs, equipment, peraehand camps on a contract basis. These serviegs@vided so that our customers may
explore for and develop oil and gas from onshoeasand from fixed platforms, tension-leg platfoand spars in offshore areas. Each of the
drilling rigs consists of engines, drawworks, a tnpamps, blowout preventers, a drill string andtetl equipment. The intended well depth
and the drilling site conditions are the princifadtors that determine the size and type of rigtraoi#able for a particular drilling job. A land
drilling rig may be moved from location to locati@ithout modification to the rig. A platform rig s&pecifically designed to perform drilling
operations upon a particular platform. While afolah rig may be moved from its original platfornigsificant expense is incurred to modify
a platform rig for operation on each subsequerfgia. In addition to traditional platform rigs, veperate self-moving platform drilling rigs
and drilling rigs to be used on tension-leg platferand spars. The self-moving rig is designed tmbeed without the use of expensive
derrick barges. The tension-leg platforms and saltwe drilling operations to be conducted in mageper water than traditional fixed
platforms.

Mechanical rigs rely on belts, pulleys aider mechanical devices to control drilling spead other rig processes. As such, mechanical
rigs are not highly efficient or precise in theremation. In contrast to mechanical rigs, SCR réhg on direct current for power. This enables
motor speed to be controlled by changing electsiolihge. Compared to mechanical rigs, SCR rigsaipewvith greater efficiency, more
power and better control. AC rigs on the other harwlide for even greater efficiency and flexilyilthan what can be achieved with
mechanical or SCR rigs. AC rigs use a variabledezgy drive that allows motor speed to be manipdlaia changes to electrical frequency.
The variable frequency drive permits greater cdrfanotor speed for more precision. Among othérilaites, AC rigs are electrically more
efficient, produce more torque, utilize regenemtivaking, have digital controls and AC motors iegjless maintenance.

During the midt990's, we undertook an initiative to use our land offshore platform drilling experience to deyedonew generation
drilling rigs that would be safer, faster-movingdanore capable than mechanical rigs. In 1998, wegowork a new generation of highly
mobile/depth flexible land drilling rigs (individilg the "FlexRig®"). Since the introduction of oktexRigs, we have focused on designing
and building high-performance, high-efficiency rigshe used exclusively in our contract drillingsmess. We believed that over time
FlexRigs would displace older less capable rigghWie advent of unconventional shale plays, ourdi@e FlexRigs have proven to be
particularly well suited for more complex horizolndailling requirements. The FlexRig has been dblsignificantly reduce average rig move
and drilling times compared to similar depth-rattediitional land rigs. In addition, the FlexRigaills greater depth flexibility and provides
greater operating efficiency. The original rigs eéesignated as FlexRigl and FlexRig2 rigs and desgned to drill wells with a depth of
between 8,000 and 18,000 feet. In 2001, we annalthet we would build the next generation of Fleg®Riknown as "FlexRig3", which
incorporated new drilling technology and new enmimeental and safety design. This new design incluniedrated top drive, AC electric
drive, hydraulic BOP handling system, hydraulicuiais make-up and break-out system, split crownteankling blocks and an
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enlarged drill floor that enables simultaneous cagtwities. FlexRig3s were designed to target welpths of between 8,000 and 22,000 feet.

In 2006, we placed into service our firXdRig4. While FlexRig4s are similar to our FlexBgg the FlexRig4s are designed to efficie
drill more shallow depth wells of between 4,000 48¢D00 feet. The FlexRig4 design includes a trigidgel version and a skidding version,
which incorporate additional environmental and safiesign. This design permits the installatiom@fipe handling system which allows the
rig to be more efficiently operated and eliminates need for a casing stabber in the mast. Whild-tlxRig4 trailerized version provides for
more efficient well site to well site rig movesethkidding version allows for drilling of up to 2&lls from a single pad which results in
reduced environmental impact. In 2011, we annoutivedhtroduction of the FlexRig5 design. The Fl@dzis suited for long lateral drilling
of multiple wells from a single location, whichvll suited for unconventional shale reservoirse Tlew design preserves the key
performance features of FlexRig3 combined with-ditgctional pad drilling system and equipment cétjess suitable for wells in excess of
22,000 feet of measured depth.

Industry trends toward more complex drglimave accelerated the retirement of less capabthamical rigs. Over the past few years our
mechanical rigs have been sold as we added newri&€ rilgs to our fleet. The retirement of our remag seven mechanical rigs in fiscal
2011 marked the end of a multi-year evolution i liigh-grading of our fleet from mechanical rigdtgh-efficiency, high-performance rigs.

Since 1998, we have built and delivered BBXRigs, including 165 FlexRig3s, 86 FlexRig4sd d2 FlexRig5s. Of the total FlexRigs
built through September 30, 2012, 162 have bedhibuhe last five years. As of November 15, 2042 ,additional 9 new FlexRigs remained
under construction.

The effective use of technology is impottanthe maintenance of our competitive positiothimi the drilling industry. We expect to
continue to refine our existing technology and deyeew technology in the future.

We assemble new FlexRigs at our gulf ctaslity near Houston, Texas. We also have a 1ZBd¥fuare foot fabrication facility located
on approximately 11 acres near Tulsa, Oklahoma.

During fiscal 2012, we leased a 150,00Gsgdoot industrial facility near Tulsa, Oklahonoa the purpose of overhauling/repairing rig
equipment and associated component parts. Thi#tydsiexpected to be fully operational by Decemb@12.

Drilling Contracts

Our drilling contracts are obtained throwgimpetitive bidding or as a result of negotiatiaith customers, and often cover multi-well
and multi-year projects. Each drilling rig operatesier a separate drilling contract. During fis2@12, all drilling services were performed on
a "daywork" contract basis, under which we charfjgeal rate per day, with the price determinediny fbcation, depth and complexity of the
well to be drilled, operating conditions, the dioatof the contract, and the competitive forcethef market. We have previously performed
contracts on a combination "footage" and "daywdr&sis, under which we charged a fixed rate perdbbble drilled to a stated depth,
usually no deeper than 15,000 feet, and a fixesipat day for the remainder of the hole. Contrpetformed on a "footage" basis involve a
greater element of risk to the contractor thanattracts performed on a "daywork" basis. Also, aeehpreviously accepted "turnkey"
contracts under which we charge a fixed sum tordeh hole to a stated depth and agree to furmishices such as testing, coring and casing
the hole which are not normally done on a "footaggsis. "Turnkey" contracts entail varying degreessk greater than the usual "footage”
contract. We have not accepted any "footage" ankiey" contracts in over fifteen years. We beli#vat under current market conditions,
"footage" and "turnkey" contract rates do not addgly compensate us for the
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added risks. The duration of our drilling contraate "well-to-well" or for a fixed term. "Well-tarell" contracts are cancelable at the optio
either party upon the completion of drilling at ame site. Fixed-term contracts generally haveramim term of at least six months but
customarily provide for termination at the electafrthe customer, with an "early termination paythén be paid to us if a contract is
terminated prior to the expiration of the fixedneiHowever, under certain limited circumstancediaagdestruction of a drilling rig, our
bankruptcy, sustained unacceptable performances loy delivery of a rig beyond certain grace antifpiidated damage periods, no early
termination payment would be paid to us.

Contracts generally contain renewal or msiten provisions exercisable at the option of thet@amer at prices mutually agreeable to us
and the customer. In most instances contracts gedor additional payments for mobilization and dditization.

As of September 30, 2012, we had 176 ngteufixed-term contracts. While the original dioatfor these current fixed-term contracts
are for six-month to seven-year periods, some fbeech and well-to-well contracts are expected t@ktended for longer periods than the
original terms. However, the contracting partiesehao legal obligation to extend these contracts.

Backlog

Our contract drilling backlog, being thepegted future revenue from executed contracts evitfinal terms in excess of one year, as of
September 30, 2012 and 2011 was $3.6 billion a8l §i8ion, respectively. The decrease in backlb§eptember 30, 2012 from
September 30, 2011, is primarily due to expiratibiong-term contracts. Approximately 57.2 percefthe total September 30, 2012 backlog
is not reasonably expected to be filled in fisd&l2. A portion of the backlog represents term amtg for new rigs that will be constructed in
the future.

The following table sets forth the totatklag by reportable segment as of September 3® a8dl 2011, and the percentage of the
September 30, 2012 backlog not reasonably expéetee filled in fiscal 2013:

Total Backlog Revenue Percentage Not Reasonabl
Reportable Segmen 9/30/2012 9/30/2011 Expected to be Filled in Fiscal 201.
(in billions)
U.S. Land $ 3C $ 8.8 58.2%
Offshore 0.1 0.1 35.4%
Internationa 0.t 0.4 56.1%

$ 3€ % 3.8

We obtain certain key rig components frosirgle or limited number of vendors or fabricat@ertain of these vendors or fabricators
are thinly capitalized independent companies latatethe Texas gulf coast. Therefore, disruptionsg component deliveries may occur.
Accordingly, the actual amount of revenue earney waay from the backlog reported. For further imf@tion, see Item 1A. Risk Factors.
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U.S. LAND DRILLING

At the end of September 2012, 2011 and 2@&thad 282, 248 and 220, respectively, of owl légs available for work in the United
States. The total number of rigs at the end o&fi2012 increased by a net of 34 rigs from thedarfescal 2011. The increase is due to 46
FlexRigs being completed and placed into serviaggstransferred to international operations,g3 sold during fiscal 2012, and 4
mechanical highly mobile rigs and 2 conventiongsbeing removed from service. Our U.S. Land opmratcontributed approximately
85 percent ($2.7 billion) of our consolidated opi@grevenues during fiscal 2012, compared withrapimately 83 percent ($2.1 billion) of
consolidated operating revenues during fiscal 281id approximately 75 percent ($1.4 billion) of calidated operating revenues during fi
2010. Rig utilization was approximately 89 percerfiscal 2012, approximately 86 percent in fis2@lL1 and approximately 73 percent in
fiscal 2010. Our fleet of FlexRigs had an averatjezation of approximately 97 percent during fi@812, while our conventional and highly
mobile rigs had an average utilization of approxihall percent. A rig is considered to be utilizéuen it is operated or being mobilized or
demobilized under contract. At the close of fis2@12, 231 out of an available 282 land rigs wereking.

OFFSHORE DRILLING

Our Offshore operations contributed apprately 6 percent in fiscal year 2012 ($189.1 miljiof our consolidated operating revenues
compared to approximately 8 percent ($201.4 mi)liefconsolidated operating revenues during fi2€dl1 and 11 percent ($202.7 million]
consolidated operating revenues during fiscal 2@i@.utilization in fiscal 2012 was approximatel§ gercent compared to approximately
77 percent in fiscal 2011 and approximately 80 @eatrin fiscal 2010. At the end of fiscal 2012, vaslleight of our nine offshore platform r
under contract and continued to work under manageoontracts for four customer-owned rigs. Reverft@s drilling services performed
for our largest offshore drilling customer totakgabroximately 56 percent of offshore revenues dufiscal 2012.

INTERNATIONAL LAND DRILLING
General

Our International Land operations contrdzliapproximately 9 percent ($270.0 million) of consolidated operating revenues during
fiscal 2012, compared with approximately 9 per¢&226.8 million) of consolidated operating revendasng fiscal 2011 and 13 percent
($247.2 million) in fiscal 2010. Rig utilization fiscal 2012 was 77 percent, 70 percent in fis€dl12and 71 percent in fiscal 2010.

Argentina

At the end of fiscal 2012, we had nine iigérgentina. Our utilization rate was approximptg2 percent during fiscal 2012,
approximately 49 percent during fiscal 2011 andraximately 53 percent during fiscal 2010. Revergeserated by Argentine drilling
operations contributed approximately 2 percentathlfiscal years 2012 and 2011 ($54.3 million add.8 million, respectively) of our
consolidated operating revenues compared with appedely 3 percent of consolidated operating reesn$55.9 million) in fiscal 2010.
Revenues from drilling services performed for aun targest customers in Argentina totaled approxétya? percent of consolidated
operating revenues and approximately 20 percemt@fmational operating revenues during fiscal 201 Argentine drilling contracts are
primarily with large international or national @bmpanies.
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Colombia

At the end of fiscal 2012, we had seven nigColombia. Our utilization rate was approxiniafé percent during fiscal 2012,
approximately 83 percent during fiscal 2011 andraximately 71 percent during fiscal 2010. Revergeserated by Colombian drilling
operations contributed approximately 3 percenhathree fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 of onsaaated operating revenues
($82.2 million, $74.5 million and $57.5 million,gpectively). Revenues from drilling services parfed for our largest customer in Colombia
totaled approximately 1 percent of consolidatedratieg revenues and approximately 16 percent efmational operating revenues during
fiscal 2012. The Colombian drilling contracts aramarily with large international or national oibmpanies.

Ecuador

At the end of fiscal 2012, we had five rig€cuador. The utilization rate in Ecuador wagp@vcent in fiscal 2012, compared to
85 percent in fiscal 2011 and 100 percent in fi2€dl0. Revenues generated by Ecuadorian drillirggaijions contributed approximately
2 percent in both fiscal years 2012 and 2011 ($66ldbn and $42.6 million, respectively) of congtdted operating revenues compared with
approximately 3 percent in fiscal 2010 ($52.1 roiili of our consolidated operating revenues. Rewefroen drilling services performed for
the largest customer in Ecuador totaled approxipateercent of consolidated operating revenuesagpuaoximately 14 percent of
international operating revenues during fiscal 20lt# Ecuadorian drilling contracts are primarilighatarge international or national oil
companies.

Other Locations

In addition to our operations discussedvabat the end of fiscal 2012 we had two rigs imi$ia, four rigs in Bahrain and two rigs in
UAE.

FINANCIAL

Information relating to revenues, totaletssind operating income by reportable operatiggheats may be found on, and is incorpori
by reference to, pages 51 through 55 of our AnRegdort (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).

EMPLOYEES

We had 8,147 employees within the Uniteatest (19 of which were part-time employees) an82.gmployees in international
operations as of September 30, 2012.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Information relating to our internet addresd information relating to our Securities andli&ange Commission ("SEC") filings may be
found on, and is incorporated by reference to, fagef our Annual Report (Exhibit 13 to this For®+-K).

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the risk factors discussestwhere in this Report, we caution that the follgy/'Risk Factors" could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.
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Our offshore and land operations are subject to a number of operational risks, including environmental and weather risks, which could
expose us to significant losses and damage claims. We are not fully insured against all of theserisks and our contractual indemnity
provisions may not fully protect us.

Our drilling operations are subject to thany hazards inherent in the business, includiogment weather, blowouts, well fires, loss of
well control, pollution, and reservoir damage. Tehbhazards could cause significant environmentaladgmnpersonal injury and death,
suspension of drilling operations, serious damag#estruction of equipment and property and sulisfastamage to producing formations
and surrounding lands and waters.

Our Offshore drilling operations are alsbject to potentially greater environmental lialilincluding pollution of offshore waters and
related negative impact on wildlife and habitatyexde sea conditions and platform damage or destnudue to collision with aircraft or
marine vessels. Our Offshore operations may alstebatively affected by blowouts or uncontrollekbase of oil by third parties whose
offshore operations are unrelated to our operatidfesoperate several platform rigs in the Gulf abtito. The Gulf of Mexico experiences
hurricanes and other extreme weather conditiores foaquent basis, the frequency of which may ireeesith any climate change. Damage
caused by high winds and turbulent seas could patigrcurtail operations on such platform rigs &gnificant periods of time until the
damage can be repaired. Moreover, even if ourglatfigs are not directly damaged by such stornesmay experience disruptions in
operations due to damage to customer platform®#ret related facilities in the area.

We have a new-build rig assembly facildgdted near the Houston, Texas, ship channel, angrimcipal fabricator and other vendors
are also located in the gulf coast region. Duénéirtiocation, these facilities are exposed to piddly greater hurricane damage.

We have indemnification agreements with ynainour customers and we also maintain liabilityg ather forms of insurance. In general,
our drilling contracts contain provisions requiriogr customer to indemnify us for, among othergkirpollution and reservoir damage.
However, our contractual rights to indemnificatimay be unenforceable or limited due to negligerwidiful acts by us, our subcontractors
and/or suppliers. Our customers may also disputee anable to meet, their contractual indemnifisabbligations to us. Accordingly, we
may be unable to transfer these risks to our dgléustomers by contract or indemnification agre@medncurring a liability for which we are
not fully indemnified or insured could have a meteadverse effect our business, financial conditiad results of operations.

With the exception of "named wind stornskrin the Gulf of Mexico, we insure rigs and rethégjuipment at values that approximate
current replacement cost on the inception dateepblicy. However, we self-insure a large dedletés well as a significant portion of the
estimated replacement cost of our offshore rigsamdand rigs and equipment. We also carry instgamith varying deductibles and
coverage limits with respect to offshore platfoigsrand "named wind storm” risk in the Gulf of Mexi

We have insurance coverage for compreherggweral liability, automobile liability, workek®mpensation and employer's liability, ¢
certain other specific risks. Insurance is purciasesr deductibles to reduce our exposure to cafafst events. We retain a significant
portion of our expected losses under our workerspensation, general liability and automobile lisgpprograms. The Company self-insures
a number of other risks including loss of earniagd business interruption. We are unable to olsiginificant amounts of insurance to cover
risks of underground reservoir damage; howeverargegenerally indemnified under our drilling comtsafrom this risk.
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If a significant accident or other eventas and is not fully covered by insurance or dom@eable or recoverable indemnity from a
customer, it could have a material adverse effeadwr business, financial condition and resultegdrations. Our insurance will not in all
situations provide sufficient funds to protect tanfi all liabilities that could result from our diilg operations. Our coverage includes
aggregate policy limits. As a result, we retain fils& for any loss in excess of these limits. Nsusance can be given that all or a portion of
our coverage will not be cancelled during fiscal20that insurance coverage will continue to belalbke at rates considered reasonable or
that our coverage will respond to a specific I6agther, we may experience difficulties in collegtfrom our insurers or our insurers may
deny all or a portion of our claims for insuranceerage.

Qil and natural gas prices are volatile, and low prices could negatively affect our financial resultsin the future.

Our operations can be materially affectedolw oil and gas prices. We believe that any digant reduction in oil and gas prices could
depress the level of exploration and productioivégtand result in a corresponding decline in dachfor our services. Worldwide military,
political and economic events, including initiatvey the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Caiestrmay affect both the demand for, .
the supply of, oil and gas. Fluctuations duringlts few years in the demand and supply of oil gasl have contributed to, and are likely to
continue to contribute to, price volatility. Anygdonged reduction in demand for our services chalde a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openast

A sluggish global economy may affect our business.

As a result of volatility in oil and natligas prices and a continuing sluggish global eoio@nvironment, we are unable to determine
whether our customers will maintain spending onl@ngtion and development drilling or whether custssnand/or vendors and suppliers will
be able to access financing necessary to sustimcilrrent level of operations, fulfill their contnents and/or fund future operations and
obligations. The current global economic environthmaay impact industry fundamentals and result duoed demand for drilling rigs. These
conditions could have a material adverse effeawrbusiness, financial condition and results afragions.

The contract drilling businessis highly competitive.

Competition in contract drilling involveach factors as price, rig availability, efficien@gndition and type of equipment, reputation,
operating safety, environmental impact, and custaelations. Competition is primarily on a regiobalsis and may vary significantly by
region at any particular time. Land drilling rigancbe readily moved from one region to anotheesponse to changes in levels of activity,
and an oversupply of rigs in any region may resedtding to increased price competition.

Although many contracts for drilling seretcare awarded based solely on price, we havesueeessful in establishing long-term
relationships with certain customers which havevedld us to secure drilling work even though we matyhave been the lowest bidder for
such work. We have continued to attempt to difféed@ our services based upon our FlexRigs anetiogineering design expertise,
operational efficiency, safety and environmentahemess. This strategy is less effective when laleerand for drilling services intensifies
price competition and makes it more difficult ompassible to compete on any basis other than phise, future improvements in operational
efficiency and safety by our competitors could riegdy affect our ability to differentiate our séces.
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Theloss of one or a number of our large customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

In fiscal 2012, we received approximatedypercent of our consolidated operating revenuss fsur ten largest contract drilling
customers and approximately 32 percent of our dateted operating revenues from our three largestamners (including their affiliates).
We believe that our relationship with all of thesestomers is good; however, the loss of one or raboair larger customers could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

International uncertainties and local laws could adversely affect our business.

International operations are subject teadempolitical, economic and other uncertainties ercountered in U.S. operations, including
increased risks of social unrest, strikes, termoyisidnapping of employees, nationalization, foroegotiation or modification of contracts,
expropriation of equipment as well as expropriatiéa particular oil company operator's property drilling rights, taxation policies, forei
exchange restrictions, currency rate fluctuatiors general hazards associated with foreign sovasemyer certain areas in which operations
are conducted. On June 30, 2010, the Venezuelargment seized 11 rigs and associated real andrgrsroperty owned by our
Venezuelan subsidiary. In Argentina, general ecdo@anditions have shown improvement and politpraitests and social disturbances t
diminished considerably since the economic crisB0®1 and 2002. However, the rapid and radicalneadf the changes in the Argentine
social, political, economic and legal environmewrathe past several years and the absence ofiaprétical consensus in favor of any
particular set of economic policies have given tissignificant uncertainties about the countrgsr®mic and political future. It is currently
unclear whether the economic and political instibéxperienced over the past several years wiltiooe and it is possible that, despite re
economic growth, Argentina may return to a deepeession, higher inflation and unemployment andtgresocial unrest. If instability
persists, there could be a material adverse effeciur results of operations and financial conditio

There can be no assurance that there atilba changes in local laws, regulations and adinative requirements or the interpretation
thereof which could have a material adverse efieahe profitability of our operations or on ouiiléy to continue operations in certain are
Because of the impact of local laws, our futurerapiens in certain areas may be conducted throungties in which local citizens own
interests and through entities (including joint tegas) in which we hold only a minority interestpursuant to arrangements under which we
conduct operations under contract to local entitfékile we believe that neither operating througbtsentities nor pursuant to such
arrangements would have a material adverse effeotiooperations or revenues, there can be noas=eithat we will in all cases be able to
structure or restructure our operations to confarecal law (or the administration thereof) omtsrwe find acceptable.

Although we attempt to minimize the potahitimpact of such risks by operating in more thaa geographical area, during fiscal 2012,
approximately 9 percent of our consolidated opegatevenues were generated from the internatianatact drilling business. During fiscal
2012, approximately 72 percent of the internatiaparating revenues were from operations in Soutierica. All of the South American
operating revenues were from Argentina, Colombth Bcuador.

We depend on a limited number of vendors, some of which are thinly capitalized and the loss of any of which could disrupt our operations.

Certain key rig components are either paseld from or fabricated by a single or limited nemdéf vendors, and we have no long-term
contracts with many of these vendors. Shortagelsl @mocur in these essential components due totarription of supply or increased
demands in the industry. If we are unable to preaartain of such rig components, we would be requio reduce our rig
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construction or other operations, which could haveaterial adverse effect on our business, finaooiadition and results of operations.

If our principal fabricator, located on thexas gulf coast, was unable or unwilling to conéd fabricating rig components, then we wc
have to transfer this work to other acceptableiators. This transfer could result in significaelay in the completion of new FlexRigs. Any
significant interruption in the fabrication of ra@mponents could have a material adverse impacotiobusiness, financial condition and
results of operations.

Certain key rig components are obtainethfugndors that are, in some cases, thinly capéd/imdependent companies that generate
significant portions of their business from usmnfi a small group of companies in the energy ingusthese vendors may be
disproportionately affected by any loss of busindssvnturn in the energy industry or reduction pavailability of credit. Therefore,
disruptions in rig component delivery may occur anch disruptions and terminations could have rahadverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our securities portfolio may lose significant value due to a decline in equity prices and other market-related risks, thus impacting our debt
ratio and financial strength.

At September 30, 2012, we had a portfolisexurities with a total fair value of approximgt&452 million. The fair value in Atwood
Oceanics, Inc. and Schlumberger, Ltd. was $434anitit September 30, 2012. These securities ajecub a wide variety of markegélated
risks that could substantially reduce or increasefair value of our holdings. Except for investrisein limited partnerships carried at cost,
portfolio is recorded at fair value on our balasbeet with changes in unrealized after-tax valfleated in the equity section of our balance
sheet. Subsequent to September 30, 2012, we soghate in the limited partnerships. Any reducfiofair value would have an impact on
our debt ratio and financial strength. At Novemb®y 2012, the fair value of the portfolio had iresed to approximately $438 million.

Government regulations and environmental laws could adversely affect our business.

Many aspects of our operations are sulgegbvernment regulation, including those relatimglrilling practices, pollution, disposal of
hazardous substances and oil field waste. The t)Sitates and various other countries have envirataheegulations which affect drilling
operations. The cost of compliance with these lemdd be substantial. A failure to comply with teéaws and regulations could expose t
substantial civil and criminal penalties. In adaliti environmental laws and regulations in the Whi¢ates impose a variety of requirements
on "responsible parties" related to the preventibail spills and liability for damages from sugpilts. As an owner and operator of drilling
rigs, we may be deemed to be a responsible padgrithese laws and regulations.

We believe that we are in substantial caamgle with all legislation and regulations affegtimur operations in the drilling of oil and gas
wells and in controlling the discharge of wastes date, compliance costs have not materially aff€our capital expenditures, earnings, or
competitive position, although compliance measurayg add to the costs of drilling operations. Addigl legislation or regulation may
reasonably be anticipated, and the effect themeafus operations cannot be predicted.

Regulation of greenhouse gases and climate change could have a negative impact on our business.

Scientific studies have suggested that €ionis of certain gases, commonly referred to asefgnouse gases” ("GHGs") and including
carbon dioxide and methane, may be contributingaoming of the Earth's atmosphere and other clor@tanges. In response to such stu
the issue of climate change and the effect of GHiBgions, in particular emissions from fossil fuésattracting increasing attention
worldwide. We are aware of the increasing focukacdl, state, national and
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international regulatory bodies on GHG emissiorss @imate change issues. The United States Congragsonsider legislation to reduce
GHG emissions. Although it is not possible at thise to predict whether proposed legislation outations will be adopted, any such future
laws and regulations could result in increased dimmgpe costs or additional operating restrictiohisy additional costs or operating
restrictions associated with legislation or regolas regarding GHG emissions could have a matadaérse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

New legislation and regulatory initiatives relating to hydraulic fracturing could delay or limit the drilling services we provide to customers
whose drilling programs could be impacted by such laws.

Members of the U.S. Congress and the Un8ir&hmental Protection Agency, or the EPA, aréa@ing more stringent regulation of
hydraulic fracturing, a technology which involvégtinjection of water, sand and chemicals undesqume into rock formations to stimulate
oil and natural gas production. Both the U.S. Cengrand the EPA are studying whether there isiakyétween hydraulic fracturing and
soil or ground water contamination or any impacpablic health. Legislation has been introducedi®Congress to provide for federal
regulation of hydraulic fracturing and to requiisdiosure of the chemicals used in the fracturimegess. In addition, some states have and
others are considering adopting regulations thaldcestrict hydraulic fracturing in certain circetances. We do not engage in any hydraulic
fracturing activities. However, any new laws, regidn or permitting requirements regarding hydmatracturing could delay or limit the
drilling services we provide to customers whoséidg programs could be impacted by new legal regpaents. Widespread regulation
significantly restricting or prohibiting hydraulfcacturing by our customers could have a matedaksase impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operation.

Our business and results of operations may be adversely affected by foreign currency devaluation.

Contracts for work in foreign countries gaaily provide for payment in U.S. dollars; howewgovernment-owned petroleum companies
may in the future require that a greater proportibthese payments be made in local currenciessdapon current information, we believe
that our exposure to potential losses from currafessaluation in foreign countries is immaterial. viréwer, in the event of future payments in
local currencies or an inability to exchange lanairencies for U.S. dollars, we may incur curredeyaluation losses which could have a
material adverse impact on our business, finaoiatition and results of operations.

Fixed-term contracts may in certain instances be terminated without an early termination payment.

Fixed-term drilling contracts customarilsopide for termination at the election of the cusés, with an "early termination payment" to
be paid to us if a contract is terminated priothi® expiration of the fixed term. However, undetta@@ limited circumstances, such as
destruction of a drilling rig, our bankruptcy, saised unacceptable performance by us or delivegyra beyond certain grace and/or
liquidated damage periods, no early terminatiompayt would be paid to us. Even if an early termorapayment is owed to us, the current
global economic environment may affect the custésradility to pay the early termination payment.

Shortages of drilling equipment and supplies could adversely affect our operations.

The contract drilling business is highlcligal. During periods of increased demand for caxcttdrilling services, delays in delivery and
shortages of drilling equipment and supplies canuncThese risks are intensified during periodsmitie industry experiences significant
new drilling rig construction or refurbishment. Asyich delays or shortages could have a materigraeheffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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New technologies may cause our drilling methods and equipment to become less competitive, resulting in an adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Although we take measures to ensure thaiseeadvanced oil and natural gas drilling techyyplahanges in technology or
improvements in competitors' equipment could makeeguipment less competitive or require signiftazapital investments to keep our
equipment competitive. Any such changes in techgyotmuld have a material adverse effect on ounmass, financial condition and results
operations.

Competition for experienced personnel may negatively impact our operations or financial results.

We utilize highly skilled personnel in opng and supporting our businesses. In timesgif htilization, it can be difficult to retain, and
in some cases find, qualified individuals. Althougldate our operations have not been materialctdd by competition for personnel, an
inability to obtain or find a sufficient number gfialified personnel could have a material adveffeeteon our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Improvementsin or new discoveries of alternative energy technologies could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

Since our business depends on the levattdfity in the oil and natural gas industry, amprovement in or new discoveries of
alternative energy technologies that increase $keeotfi alternative forms of energy and reduce timeadhe for oil and natural gas could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

tem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have received no written comments raggrdur periodic or current reports from the st#fthe Securities and Exchange
Commission that were issued 180 days or more piegedde end of our 2012 fiscal year and that renuairesolved.
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Item 2. PROPERTIES
CONTRACT DRILLING

The following table sets forth certain infation concerning our U.S. land and offshore idgllrigs as of September 30, 2012:

Average Drawworks:

Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
FLEXRIGS

TEXAS 164 18,00 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 165 18,00 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16€ 18,00 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 167 18,00 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16€& 18,00 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16¢ 18,00 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 17¢ 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 18C 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 181 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 182 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 184 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18t 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18€ 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 187 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18¢€ 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 18¢ 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 21C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 211 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 212 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 213 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 214 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
WYOMING 21F 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 217 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
OKLAHOMA 21¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 221 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 222 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 22% 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 224 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 22t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
NEW MEXICO 2217 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 231 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 232 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 233 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 234 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 23t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 23€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
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Average Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
TEXAS 23¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
NORTH DAKOTA 23¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 24C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 241 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 243 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 244 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 24t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 24¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 2417 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 24¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 24¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 25C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 251 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 252 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 252 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 254 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 25E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 25€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 257 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 25¢& 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 25¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 26C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 261 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 262 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 265 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 264 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 26E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 26€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 267 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 26¢& 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 26¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
WYOMING 271 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
MONTANA 272 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
UTAH 277 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 274 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 27% 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 27¢€ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 277 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 27¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 28C 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 281 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 282 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 282 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
PENNSYLVANIA 284 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
OHIO 28t 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 28¢€ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
OHIO 287 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 28¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
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Average Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
ARKANSAS 28¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 29C 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 293 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 294 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 29t 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 29€ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 297 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
UTAH 29¢€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 29¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 30C 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 30z 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 303 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 304 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 30t 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 30€ 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
COLORADO 307 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 30¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50¢
NORTH DAKOTA 30¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 31C 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 311 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 312 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 313 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 314 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 31¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 31€ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 317 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
UTAH 31¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
UTAH 31¢ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
MONTANA 32C 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 321 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 322 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 322 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50¢
NORTH DAKOTA 324 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 32t 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 32¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50¢
TEXAS 327 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 32¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 32¢ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 33C 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 331 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 33z 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 34C 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 341 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 34z 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 342 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 344 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 34t 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 34€ 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 347 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
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Location

TEXAS
CALIFORNIA
TEXAS
TEXAS
COLORADO
ARKANSAS
NEW MEXICO
OKLAHOMA
TEXAS

NEW MEXICO
PENNSYLVANIA
TEXAS
TEXAS
OKLAHOMA
OKLAHOMA
OKLAHOMA
OKLAHOMA
OKLAHOMA
OKLAHOMA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
PENNSYLVANIA
NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS
TEXAS

NEW MEXICO
LOUISIANA
TEXAS
OKLAHOMA
TEXAS
TEXAS
CALIFORNIA
TEXAS
CALIFORNIA

16

Average Drawworks:
Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
34¢ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
34¢ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
351 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
352 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
352 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
354 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
35¢ 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
35¢€ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
36C 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
37C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
371 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
372 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
37z 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
374 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
37E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
37€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
377 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
37¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
37¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
38C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
381 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
382 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
38z 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
384 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
38t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
38¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
387 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
38¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
38¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
39C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
391 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
392 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
392 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
394 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
30t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
39€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
397 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
39¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
39¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
41F 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
41€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
417 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
41€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
41¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
42 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
421 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
42z 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
427 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
424 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
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Average Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
OKLAHOMA 42F 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 42€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 427 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 42¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 42¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 43C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 431 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 43; 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 437 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 434 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 43€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 437 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
CALIFORNIA 44( 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 441 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 447 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 443 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 444 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 44F 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 44¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 447 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 44§ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 44¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 45(C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 451 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 452 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 458 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 454 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 45¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 45¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 457 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 45¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 45¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 46C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 461 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 462 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 463 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 464 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 46t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 46€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 467 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 46€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 46¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 47C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 471 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 4772 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 47z 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
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Average Drawworks:

Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
NEW MEXICO 474 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 47E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 477 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 47¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 47¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 48C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 481 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 482 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 487 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
TEXAS 48E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 48€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 487 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 48¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 494 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 50C 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 501 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 502 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 502 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 504 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50t 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 507 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 51C 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 51¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
CONVENTIONAL RIGS

LOUISIANA 122 16,00( SCR 1,70C
OKLAHOMA 162 18,00( SCR 1,50(
LOUISIANA 79 20,00( SCR 2,00(¢
TEXAS 80 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 89 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 92 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 94 20,00( SCR 1,50(C
OKLAHOMA 98 20,00( SCR 1,50(C
TEXAS 137 26,00( SCR 2,00¢
TEXAS 14¢ 26,00( SCR 2,00(
LOUISIANA 72 30,00( SCR 3,00(
OKLAHOMA 73 30,00( SCR 3,00(
TEXAS 12¢& 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 134 30,00( SCR 3,00(
TEXAS 13€ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
TEXAS 157 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 161 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 162 30,00( SCR 3,00(
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Average Drawworks:

Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
OFFSHORE PLATFORM RIGS

LOUISIANA 203 20,00  Self-Erecting 2,50(
GULF OF MEXICO 20t 20,00C  Self-Erecting 2,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 20€ 20,00  Self-Erecting 1,50C
GULF OF MEXICO 10C 30,00 Conventiona 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 10E 30,00C Conventiona 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 107 30,00( Conventiona 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 201 30,00( Tensior-leg 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 20z 30,00( Tensior-leg 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 204 30,00( Tensior-leg 3,00(

The following table sets forth informatiaith respect to the utilization of our U.S. landdasffshore drilling rigs for the periods
indicated:

Years ended September 3(
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

U.S. Land Rigs
Number of rigs at end of peric 18t 201 22( 24¢ 282
Average rig utilization rate during
period (1) 96% 68% 73% 86% 8S%
U.S. Offshore Platform Rig
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9 9 9 9
Average rig utilization rate during
period (1) 7% 8% 8% 77% 7%

(1) Arrigis considered to be utilized when it is ogethor being moved, assembled or dismantled uratgract.

19




Table of Contents

The following table sets forth certain infation concerning our international drilling rigs of September 30, 2012:

Average Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
UAE 47€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
UAE 484 22,00 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
Argentina 33t 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Argentina 33€ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Argentina 337 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
Argentina 33¢ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Argentina 122 26,00( SCR 2,10C
Argentina 17k 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Argentina 177 30,00( SCR 3,00(¢
Argentina 151 30,000- SCR 3,00(
Argentina 23C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
Bahrain 291 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Bahrain 292 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
Bahrain 301 8,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Bahrain 33¢ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
Colombia 338 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Colombia 334 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Colombia 237 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
Colombia 19C 26,00( SCR 2,00¢
Colombia 13¢ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Colombia 13¢ 30,000- SCR 3,00(¢
Colombia 152 30,000- SCR 3,00(
Ecuadotl 132 18,00( SCR 1,50(
Ecuadol 17€ 18,00( SCR 1,50(
Ecuadol 121 20,00( SCR 1,70(
Ecuadol 117 26,00( SCR 2,50(
Ecuadol 13¢ 26,00( SCR 2,50(
Tunisia 22¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
Tunisia 242 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C

The following table sets forth informatiasith respect to the utilization of our internatibdailling rigs for the periods indicated:

Years ended September 3(
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Number of rigs at end of peric 19 33 28 24 29
Average rig utilization rate during
period (1)(2) 2% 70% 71% 70% 77%

(1) Arrigis considered to be utilized when it is ogethor being moved, assembled or dismantled uratgract.

(2) Does not include rigs returned to the United Stédesnajor modifications and upgrads
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STOCK PORTFOLIO

Information required by this item regardimg stock portfolio may be found on, and is inaogted by reference to, page 12 of our
Annual Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K) undlee caption, "Management's Discussion and Analyfsignancial Condition and Results
of Operations."

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
1. Pending Investigation by the U.S. Attorney

In May 2010, one of our employees repodedain possible choke manifold testing irreguiesitat one offshore platform rig. Operations
were promptly suspended on that rig after receittrgemployee's report. The Minerals Managementi@s(now known as the Bureau of
Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and Enforcgmest promptly notified of the employee's repor @#rconducted an initial
investigation of this matter. Upon conclusion df thitial investigation, we were permitted to regunormal operations on the rig. Also, we
promptly commenced an internal investigation oféhgployee's allegations. Our internal investigafmmd that certain employees on the rig
failed to follow our policies and procedures, whielsulted in termination of those employees. Thaee no spills or discharges to the
environment.

The U.S. Attorney for the Eastern Distd€t_ouisiana has commenced a grand jury investigativhich is ongoing. We received, and
have complied with, a subpoena for documents imeotion with that investigation. Certain of ourremnt and former employees have been
interviewed by the government or have testifiecbbethe grand jury. In late April 2011, the Comparas advised that it is a subject of this
investigation.

Mr. Donald Hudson, former offshore platforigg manager, pleaded guilty to one felony chargmaking false statements to a federal
investigator concerning his participation in thstitgg irregularities that were reported in May 20d@ has been sentenced to two years
probation and 120 hours community service. Mr. Kmdsemployment was terminated by the Companyne 2010. We continue to
cooperate with this government investigation. Althb we presently believe that this matter will have a material adverse effect on the
Company, we can provide no assurances as to tlrgytion eventual outcome of this investigation.

2. Venezuela Expropriation

Our wholly-owned subsidiaries, HelmericHP&yne International Drilling Co. and Helmerich &#Ra de Venezuela, C.A. filed a lawsuit
in the United States District Court for the Distroé Columbia on September 23, 2011 against thévBahn Republic of Venezuela, Petroleos
de Venezuela, S.A. ("Petroleo") and PDVSA Petro&d,. ("PDVSA"). We are seeking damages for théniglof our Venezuelan drilling
business in violation of international law and fweach of contract. Additionally, we are participgtin one arbitration against a third party
not affiliated with the Venezuelan government, 8lets or PDVSA in an attempt to collect an aggre&&t@ million relating to the seizure of
our property in Venezuela. The arbitration heaitgresently scheduled for late May 2013. While¢hexists the possibility of realizing a
recovery, we are currently unable to determingithing or amounts we may receive, if any, or thelihood of recovery.

In the fourth fiscal quarter of 2012, wétleel an arbitration dispute with a third party adfiliated with the Venezuelan government,
Petroleo or PDVSA related to the seizure of oupprty in Venezuela. Proceeds of $7.5 million wereived and recorded as discontinued
operations.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth the named ages of our executive officers, together withpakitions and offices held with the Company
by such executive officers. Officers are electedeve until the meeting of the Board of Directimifowing the next Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and until their successors have balnetected and have qualified or until their earliesignation or removal.

Hans Helmerich, 54 Chairman of the Board since January 2012; Chiethtee Officer since September 2012; President@imef
Executive Officer from 1989 to September 2012; Etive since 198’

John W. Lindsay, 51 President and Chief Operating Officer since Separb12; Director since September 2012; Executioe V
President and Chief Operating Officer from 201@&&ptember 2012; Executive Vice President, U.S. and
International Operations of Helmerich & Payne Intgional Drilling Co. from 2006 to 2012; Vice Praésnt of
U.S. Land Operations of Helmerich & Payne Intewvai Drilling Co. from 1997 to 200

Steven R. Mackey, 61 Executive Vice President, Secretary, General Cdamgk Chief Administrative Officer since March 2010
Executive Vice President, Secretary and Generah€alifrom June 2008 to March 2010; Secretary sli8&9;
Vice President from 1988 to 2010; General Counseles198¢

Juan Pablo Tardio, 47 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer sinceiAp010; Director of Investor Relations from Janu2008
to April 2010; Manager of Investor Relations fromugust 2005 to January 20
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PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The principal market on which our commauctis traded is the New York Stock Exchange utideisymbol "HP". The high and low

sale prices per share for the common stock for gaahterly period during the past two fiscal yeasgeported in the NYSE-Composite
Transaction quotations follow:

2011 2012
Quarter High Low High Low
First $ 49.4¢ $ 39.65 $ 60.8¢ $ 35.5¢
Seconc 69.72 47.57 68.6( 51.6¢
Third 70.47 57.0¢ 55.7¢ 38.71
Fourth 73.4( 40.6( 51.71 41.8:

We paid quarterly cash dividends duringphst two fiscal years as shown in the followirlgj¢a

Paid per Share Total Payment
Fiscal Fiscal
Quarter 2011 2012 2011 2012
First $ .06 $ .07 $ 6,376,28 $ 7,522,28
Seconc .0€ .07 6,408,61 7,548,29'
Third .0€ .07 6,438,10! 7,549,98
Fourth .07 .07 7,518,60. 7,428,94.

Payment of future dividends will dependeamnings and other factors.

As of November 15, 2012, there were 620mktiolders of our common stock as listed by camgfer agent's records.

ltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes selectediiicial information and should be read in conjunctiéth the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Notes thereto and the relateddédaent's Discussion and Analysis of Financialdmm and Results of Operations
contained on pages 3 through 56 of our Annual Rejodhibit 13 to this Form 10-K). Amounts for fidgaears 2008 and 2009 have been

restated to reflect the Venezuelan operationssaodtinued operations. Refer to Part I, Item 1 alfov additional information regarding
discontinued operations.
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Five-year Summary of Selected Financial Data

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(in thousands except per share amount:
Operating revenue $ 1,869,37. $ 1,843,741 $ 1,875,16. $ 2,543,89. $ 3,151,80:
Income from continuing
operations 420,25¢ 380,54t 286,08: 434,66¢ 573,60¢
Income (loss) from
discontinued operatior 41,48( (27,009 (129,769 (482) 7,43¢
Net Income 461,73t 353,54! 156,31: 434,18t 581,04!

Basic earnings per share

from continuing

operations 4.0z 3.61 2.7C 4.0¢€ 5.3t
Basic earnings (loss) pel

share from discontinue

operations 0.4C (0.26) (1.23) — 0.07
Basic earnings per she 4.4z 3.3t 1.4% 4.0¢€ 5.4z
Diluted earnings per sha

from continuing

operations 3.9¢ 3.5¢ 2.6¢€ 3.9¢ 5.27
Diluted earnings (loss) p

share from discontinue

operations 0.3¢ (0.25) (2.27 — 0.07
Diluted earnings per sha 4.32 3.31 1.4t 3.9¢ 5.34
Total assets 3,588,04! 4,161,022 4,265,371 5,003,89. 5,721,08!
Long-term debt 475,00( 420,00( 360,00( 235,00( 195,00(
Cash dividends declarec

per common shat 0.185( 0.200( 0.220( 0.260( 0.280(
* Total assets for all years include amounts reladatiscontinued operation

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Information required by this item may berfid on, and is incorporated by reference to, pdghsough 17 of our Annual Report
(Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K) under the captiondiagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financiald@imn and Results of Operations."

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information required by this item may berfid under the caption "Risk Factors" beginning agep6 of this Form 10-K and on, and is
incorporated by reference to, the following pagesus Annual Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-#)der Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems and in the Notes to Consolidated Finandetegents:

Market Risk Page

¢ Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk 16
e Commodity Price Risk 1€
* Interest Rate Risk 16-17
e Equity Price Risk 17

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Information required by this item may berfid on, and is incorporated by reference to, pa§akrough 56 of our Annual Report
(Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).
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ltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
Iltem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this ForrKl@ur management, under the supervision and thitparticipation of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officevaluated the effectiveness of the design andatipa of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a)1# 15d-15(e) under the Securities ExchangeoAtB34, as amended) as
of September 30, 2012. Based on that evaluatianChief Executive Officer and Chief Financial O#frcconcluded that:

. our disclosure controls and procedures are effeetivensuring that information required to be diset by us in
the reports we file or submit under the Securiigshange Act of 1934, as amended, is recordedepsed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipd in the SEC's rules and forms; and

. our disclosure controls and procedures opetatk that important information flows to appropriat#lection
and disclosure points in a timely manner and dexgfe to ensure that such information is accutedand
communicated to our management, and made knowartGloief Executive Officer and Chief Financial @#t,
particularly during the period when this Form 1Gwis prepared, as appropriate to allow timely deuisi
regarding the required disclosure.

b) Management's Report on Internal Control oveaFRcial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the SecuritigsHange Act of 1934, as amended. Our internal obatrer financial
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assarsgarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princigles internal control ove
financial reporting includes those policies andcedures that:

0] pertain to the maintenance of records that, inorealsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trengactions and
dispositions of our assets;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactionme@aled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iah
statements in accordance with generally acceptenliating principles, and that our receipts and egjiares
are being made only in accordance with authorinatmf our management and the Board of Directors; an

(i)  provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ose
disposition of our assets that could have a mateffiact on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutiufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degfreempliance with the policies or procedures rdateriorate.

Management, with the participation of our Chief Extdve Officer and Chief Financial Officer, condedtan evaluation of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial
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c)

reporting based on the framework in Internal Cdrtiotegrated Framework issued by the CommitteepafriSoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. This@at@bn included review of the documentation of colst evaluation of tr
design effectiveness of controls, testing of theraping effectiveness of controls and a conclusiothis evaluation. Although
there are inherent limitations in the effectivenefany system of internal control over financigborting, based on this
evaluation, management has concluded that oumiaiteontrol over financial reporting was effecta® of September 30, 201

The independent registered public accounting fiat wudited our financial statements, Ernst & Yoluhg, has issued an
attestation report on our internal control oveafinial reporting. This report appears below atetig of this Iltem 9A of
Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repgrtin

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during our fourth fiscal quarté 2012 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

* % %
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited Helmerich & Payne, Inaitsrnal control over financial reporting as of Sepber 30, 2012, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framédwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s ngamaent is responsible for maintaining effectiveinal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriatecontrol over financial reporting included hetaccompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the compsaiternal control over financial reporti
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioa reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeionrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company&etsthat could have a material effect on the firstatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Helmerich & Payne, Inc. mained, in all material respects, effective ingmontrol over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Helmerich & Payre,ds of September 30, 2012 and 2011 and thedetansolidated statements of income,
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for eachefhiree years in the period ended September 3@, &0d our report dated November 21,
2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Erds¥oung LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 21, 201
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to the material utidecaptions "Proposal 1—Election of
Directors," "Corporate Governance" and "Sectiora)l 8eneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” im definitive Proxy Statement for tl
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held MarcR®13, to be filed with the SEC not later than 1a@gafter September 30, 2012.
Information required under this item with respecekecutive officers under Iltem 401 of Regulatiel 8ppears under "Our Executive
Officers" in Part | of this Form 10-K.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Ppaidexecutive Officer and Senior Financial Officefie text of this code is located on our
website under "Corporate Governance." Our Inteadéetess is www.hpinc.com. We intend to discloseamgndments to or waivers from
this code on our website.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item regjag executive compensation, as well as directargensation and compensation committee
interlocks and insider participation is incorpothterein by reference to the material beginnindp wite caption "Executive Compensation
Discussion and Analysis" and ending with the captiotential Payments Upon Termination", as welliader the captions "Director
Compensation in Fiscal 2012" and "Compensation Citt@eninterlocks and Insider Participation” in al&finitive Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held MarcR®13, to be filed with the SEC not later than 1a@after September 30, 2012.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to the material utigecaptions "Summary of All Existing
Equity Compensation Plans," "Security Ownershigeftain Beneficial Owners" and "Security OwnersfipManagement" in our definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockleoddto be held March 6, 2013, to be filed with $#t€C not later than 120 days after
September 30, 2012.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item isdnporated herein by reference to the material utisecaptions "Transactions With Related
Persons, Promoters and Certain Control Persons"Guogborate Governance" in our definitive Proxyt8taent for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held March 6, 2013, to be filéth the SEC not later than 120 days after Septerd®e2012.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to the material utidecaption "Audit Fees" in our definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockleoddto be held March 6, 2013, to be filed with $#t€C not later than 120 days after
September 30, 2012.
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Iltem 15.

a) 1.

PART IV
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

Financial Statements The following appear in our Annual Report tockholders (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K) on theges

indicated below and are incorporated herein byregiee:

_Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféing 18

Consolidated Statements of Income for the YearseBi®&kptember 30, 2012, 2011 and 2 19

Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2@1204 1 20-21

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquitthiolYears Ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 22

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEeaded September 30, 2012, 2011 and - 23

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 24-5€
2. Financial Statement Schedutes All schedules are omitted as inapplicable erduse the required information is contained in

the financial statements or included in the ndteseto.
3. Exhibits. The following documents are included as exsitn this Form 10-K. Exhibits incorporated by refece are duly

noted as such.

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatibHelmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated hedgjrreference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Forn-K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. (-04221.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Helmerich & Payme,are incorporated herein by reference to ExI3d of the
Company's Form-K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. (-04221.

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leetttee Company and The Liberty National Bank andsT€ompany of
Oklahoma City, N.A. is incorporated herein by refeze to Exhibit 1 of the Company's Form 8-K filedJanuary 18, 1996,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December &,2tween the Company and UMB Bank, N.A. is inooaped
herein by reference to Exhibit 4 of the Compangmi¢-K filed on December 12, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

*10.1 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Pimcorporated herein by reference to Appendix 8Athe Company's
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on January®Q61.

*10.2 2012-1 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 200ickincentive Plan is incorporated herein by raefeesto Exhibit 10.5
of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QhoSecurities and Exchange Commission for the guartded
March 31, 2012, SEC File No. C-04221.
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*10.3

*10.4

*10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.1(

10.11

10.1Z

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc0@@tock Incentive Plan being (i) Restricted StAgkard Agreement,
(i) Incentive Stock Option Agreement and (iii) Nojpralified Stock Option Agreement are incorporatgaddference to
Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's Registration Statenim 33:-63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreerhéar the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock IncemPlan is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q tdSbeurities and
Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Jun2@I2, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericlP&yne, Inc. is incorporated herein by referendextaibits 10.2 and
10.3 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1fo-€e Securities and Exchange Commission fogtteater ended
June 30, 2002, SEC File No. (-04221.

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15,,200@ng Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.Cdelmerich &
Payne, Inc. and various insurance companies ispocated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 ef @ompany's Annual
Report on Form 1-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission f@afi2002, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of June 15, 26Gthg Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Cdeglmerich &
Payne, Inc. and various Note purchasers is incatpdiby reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the CompaRyisn 8-K filed on
July 21, 2009, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Credit Agreement dated May 25, 2012, among Helrheti®ayne International Drilling Co., Helmerich &j¥he, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association is incorgedaby reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Compangs#8-K filed on
May 31, 2012, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Funhdnd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated het®i reference to
Exhibit 10.18 of the Company's Annual Report onnrdi0-K to the Securities and Exchange Commissioffisoal 2003,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

First Amendment to Lease between ASP, Inc. and Eiédin & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by refiee to Exhibit 10.
of the Company's Forir-K filed on May 29, 2008, SEC File No. (-04221.

Second Amendment to Office Lease dated Decembet(il3,, between ASP, Inc. and Helmerich & Payne,ifnc
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. Fofm 8-K filed by the Company on December 14, 2(BHAC File No. 001-
04221.

Third Amendment to Office Lease dated Septemb20%2, between ASP, Inc. and Helmerich & Payne,
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*10.13

*10.14

*10.1%

*10.1€

*10.17

*10.1€

*10.1¢

*10.2C

*10.21

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for &xéve Officers is incorporated herein by referete&xhibit 10.4 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form QQo the Securities and Exchange Commission fogtfeeter ended March 31, 20
SEC File No. 00-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference to Appehdixto the
Company's Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filedaian26, 2006

2012-1 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005d-d erm Incentive Plan is incorporated herein gnence to
Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Quarterly Report onnfr 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiotihe quarter
ended March 31, 2012, SEC File No. -04221.

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20@59-Term Incentive Plan applicable to certainceives:

(i) Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, (ii) Indere Stock Option Agreement, and (iii) Restricteadck Award Agreemel
are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi2 3.the Company's Form 8-K filed on December QREEC File

No. 001-04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@05 Long-Term Incentive Plan applicable to pgptcits other than
certain executives: Nonqualified Stock Option Agneait, Incentive Stock Option Agreement, and ReastliStock Award
Agreement are incorporated herein by referencextoliit 10.3 of the Company's Form 8-K filed on Dedeer 7, 2009, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeents and Amendment to Restricted Stock Award éxgents for
the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term InceatRlan applicable to certain executive officersiacerporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's F8-K filed on December 7, 2009, SEC File No. -04221.

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeents and Amendment to Restricted Stock Award éxgents for
the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncemtRlan applicable to participants other than aegaecutive officers
are incorporated herein by reference to ExhibibId.the Company's Form 8-K filed on December QR ®EEC File

No. 00-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2010 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference to Appetdixof the
Company's Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filedaowary 26, 201:

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20b@g-Term Incentive Plan applicable to certaincexes:
(i) Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement aiiji Restricted Stock Award Agreement are incorpedaterein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Fo-K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. (-04221.
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*10.22

*10.22

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.23

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3(

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan applicable to pastints other than
certain executives: (i) Nonqualified Stock Optiow#d Agreement and (ii) Restricted Stock Award éggnent are
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2hef Company's Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2012C3Hle No. 001-
04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan applicable to Diresto
(i) Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement aiyl Restricted Stock Award Agreement are incorpedaby reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Forr-K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. (-04221.

Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynerh@dgonal Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Indestrinc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on December 7, 2@¥C File No. 001-
04221.

Contract dated July 18, 2007, between Helmericregne International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texasistrial
Services, Inc. is incorporated herein by referandexhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed dudy 18, 2007, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwtsdmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andusheast Texas
Industries, Inc. is incorporated herein by refeesttcExhibit 10.33 of the Company's Annual Reporform 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2@8B8; File No. 00-04221.

Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwtsmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andusheast Texas
Industrial Services, Inc. is incorporated hereirrdfgrence to Exhibit 10.34 of the Company's AnRigbort on Form 16 to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis88B2 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 20dfiyeen Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.@nd Southeast
Texas Industries, Inc. is incorporated herein igremce to Exhibit 10.24 of the Company's Annugbéeon Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis0all2 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 28dfiyeen Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.@ad Southeast
Texas Industrial Services, Inc. is incorporateceheby reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Compa#yiaual Report on
Form 1(-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission faafi2011, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 20Etwken Helmerich & Payne International Drilling @God Southeast
Texas Industries, Inc. is incorporated herein lgresmce to Exhibit 10.26 of the Company's Annugbéteon Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis8all2 SEC File No. 0(-04221.
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Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 2@iEtween Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.@nd Southeast
Texas Industrial Services, Inc. is incorporateceheby reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Compa#iyiaual Report on
Form 1(-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission fa@afi2011, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Salariepleyees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporatedein by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly Reparfrarm 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Comamidsir the quarter
ended December 31, 2008, SEC File No.-04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeésetrherich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated hereirréfgrence to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Quarterly Report onnfr 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiotihe quarter
ended December 31, 2008, SEC File No0.-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeiwsaPlan is incorporated herein by reference toiikh0.3 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B8&esiand Exchange Commission for the quarter émecember 31,
2008, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

The Company's Annual Report to Stockholders faali2012.
List of Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the Securiteh&nge Act of 1934,
as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 362 &arban«-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaotRule 13at4(a) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAt934, a
amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 &atimne-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3& adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Financial statements from the annual report on Fid#{ of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. for the fiscal yearded September 3
2012, filed on November 21, 2012, formatted in XBRi).the Consolidated Statements of Income, (i@ Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (iii) the Consolidated Statemer&hareholders' Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Stegsts of Cash Flows al
(v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

* Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangen
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Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, @mpany has duly caused this Report to

SIGNATURES

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized:

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

By /s/ HANS HELMERICH

Hans Helmerich,
Chief Executive Officer
Date: November 21, 201

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this Report has beeresidpelow by the following persons on
behalf of the Company and in the capacities anthermates indicated:

By /s/ WILLIAM L. ARMSTRONG

By

/s/ RANDY A. FOUTCH

William L. Armstrong,Director
Date: November 21, 201

By /s/ HANS HELMERICH

By

Randy A. FoutchDirector
Date: November 21, 201

/s/ JOHN W. LINDSAY

Hans HelmerichDirector & CEO
Date: November 21, 201

By /s/ PAULA MARSHALL

By

John W. LindsayDirector & President
Date: November 21, 201

/sl THOMAS A. PETRIE

Paula MarshallDirector
Date: November 21, 201

By /s/ DONALD F. ROBILLARD, JR.

By

Thomas A. PetridDirector
Date: November 21, 201

/sl FRANCIS ROONEY

Donald F. Robillard, JrDirector
Date: November 21, 201

By /s/ EDWARD B. RUST, JR.

By

Francis RooneyDirector
Date: November 21, 201

/s/ JOHN D. ZEGLIS

Edward B. Rust, JrDirector
Date: November 21, 201

By /s/ JUAN PABLO TARDIO

By

John D. ZeglisDirector
Date: November 21, 201

/sl GORDON K. HELM

Juan Pablo Tardio
(Principal Financial Officer)
Date: November 21, 201

Gordon K. Helm
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Date: November 21, 201
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Exhibit Index

The following documents are included asilgixhto this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Exhibitgorporated herein are duly noted as
such.

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporadibHelmerich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 14, 2012, SEC File No. C-04221.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Helmerich & Payme,are incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form 8kd on March 14, 2012, SEC File
No. 00-04221.

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leettiee Company and The Liberty
National Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma CityA Ns incorporated herein t
reference to Exhibit 1 of the Company's Form 84Kdion January 18, 1996, SEC File
No. 00-04221.

4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December &,28&tween the Company and
UMB Bank, N.A. is incorporated herein by referebadxhibit 4 of the Company's
Form &K filed on December 12, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

*10.1 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plaimcorporated herein by reference
to Appendix "A" of the Company's Proxy StatementSmedule 14A filed on
January 26, 200:

*10.2 2012-1 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 200icktincentive Plan is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.%hef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiotihe quarter ended March 31,
2012, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

*10.3 Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@10ck Incentive Plan being
(i) Restricted Stock Award Agreement, (ii) Incemti8tock Option Agreement and
(iii) Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement are inporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2
to the Company's Registration Statement No. 33263h Form S-8 dated June 15,
2001.

*10.4 Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreerhéar the Helmerich & Payne, In
2000 Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated hereimddgrence to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B8&esiand Exchange Commission
for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File Bt-04221.

*10.5 Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericlP&yne, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibits 10.2 and 10.3 efGompany's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended June 30,
2002, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

10.¢ Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15,,200@ng Helmerich & Payr
International Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Iramd various insurance companies is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange Commisiipfiscal 2002, SEC File
No. 001-04221.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.7

10.¢

10.¢

10.1¢(

10.11

10.1Z

*10.13

*10.14

*10.1%

*10.1€

*10.17

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of June 15, 266thg Helmerich & Payr
International Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Iremd various Note purchasers is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of then(Ppany's Form 8-K filed on July 21,
2009, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Credit Agreement dated May 25, 2012, among Helrheti®ayne International
Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Wells BarBank, National Association is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of then(pany's Form 8-K filed on May 31,
2012, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Fuhdrd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.L86he Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange Commisiipfiscal 2003, SEC File

No. 00-04221.

First Amendment to Lease between ASP, Inc. and Eiedin & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on
May 29, 2008, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Second Amendment to Office Lease dated Decembez(l3,, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein &ference to Exhibit 10.1 of Formi8-
filed by the Company on December 14, 2011, SECNde00:-04221.

Third Amendment to Office Lease dated Septemb20%2, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for ExeauOfficers is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Compa@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for thetgquanded March 31, 2012, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by
reference to Appendix "A" to the Company's Proxgt&nent on Schedule 14A filed
January 26, 200t

2012-1 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2006d-d erm Incentive Plan is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.éhef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiotihe quarter ended March 31,
2012, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20@5g-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to certain executives: (i) Nonqualiftethck Option Agreement, (ii) Incentive
Stock Option Agreement, and (iii) Restricted Stédekard Agreement are incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Compsufigrm 8-K filed on December 7,
2009, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@05 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to participants other than certain eiiees: Nonqualified Stock Option
Agreement, Incentive Stock Option Agreement, anstifReted Stock Award Agreement
are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi8 ¥.the Company's Form 8-K filed on
December 7, 2009, SEC File No. +04221.
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Exhibit No.

Description

*10.1€

*10.1¢

*10.2C

*10.21

*10.22

*10.22

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.23

10.2¢

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Optionrégments and Amendment to
Restricted Stock Award Agreements for the Helme&dPayne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan applicable to certain executiveceffs are incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Form 8léd on December 7, 2009, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeents and Amendment to
Restricted Stock Award Agreements for the Helme&dPayne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan applicable to participants othentbartain executive officers are
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5hef Company's Form 8-K filed on
December 7, 2009, SEC File No. +04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2010 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by
reference to Appendix "A" of the Company's Proxgt&ment on Schedule 14A filed on
January 26, 201:

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 200@g-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to certain executives: (i) Nonqualifeck Option Award Agreement and
(ii) Restricted Stock Award Agreement are incorpedsherein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed on Marl4, 2012, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to participants other than certain etees: (i) Nonqualified Stock Option
Award Agreement and (ii) Restricted Stock Award égment are incorporated hereir
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8léd on March 14, 2012, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to Directors: (i) Nonqualified Stock @pt Award Agreement and

(ii) Restricted Stock Award Agreement are incorpedsby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
the Company's Formr-K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. (-04221.

Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynerh@tgonal Drilling Co. and
Southeast Texas Industries, Inc. is incorporatedihdy reference to Exhibit 10.1 of t
Company's Form-K filed on December 7, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Contract dated July 18, 2007, between Helmericregn International Drilling Co. ar
Southeast Texas Industrial Services, Inc. is inm@igd herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed onydiiB, 2007, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwtsmerich & Payne Internatior
Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Industries, Iadéncorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.33 of the Company's Annual Report onnrd0-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2008, SEC File Niil-04221.

Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwtsimerich & Payne Internatior
Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Industrial Sersjdac. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.34 of the Company's AniRgport on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2888 File No. 00-04221.

Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 20dtfyeen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas btdas, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the Company's AnriRgport on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2GHC File No. 00-04221.
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Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 20diveen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas bidal Services, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Compaaynual Report on Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis8&ll2 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 20Etwken Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas btdas, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the Company's AnriRegport on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2GHC File No. 00-04221.

Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 20Etwken Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas btdal Services, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Compaiynual Report on Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis8all2 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieglByees of Helmerich &
Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by referendextabit 10.1 of the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities Brchange Commission for the
quarter ended December 31, 2008, SEC File Nc-04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeésetrherich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2hef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended
December 31, 2008, SEC File No. -04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeiasaPlan is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded December 31, 2008, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

The Company's Annual Report to Stockholders faali®012.
List of Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeafi@sted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rule 13a-14(a) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeafj@sted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer Pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Seefiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Financial statements from the annual report on FiOAK of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, GletNovember 21, 2012, formatted in
XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Incom@,tfie Consolidated Balance Sheets,
(iii) the Consolidated Statements of Shareholdegsiity, (iv) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows and (v) the Notes to Giolated Financial Statemen

* Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangen
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Exhibit 10.12

THIRD AMENDMENT TO OFFICE LEASE

This Third Amendment to Office Lease (thiBHird Amendmerit) is made and entered into by and betw&&®, Inc., the managing
partner of Boulder Tower Tenants in Common(“Landlord’), andHELMERICH & PAYNE, INC., a Delaware Corporation (the
“Tenant), effective on and as of the date on which Tenant@es this Third Amendment, as set forth on thaatigre page (theEffective

Date’).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant previously entered that certain Office Lease dated May 30, 2003masnded by First
Amendment to the Lease dated May 23, 2008 and Setorendment to Lease dated December 13, 201daéé ), pursuant to which
Landlord leases to Tenant certain premises totdl6&868 rentable square feet in the building comignknown as Boulder Towers (the
“Building") , located at 1437 South Boulder, Tulsa, Oklahontsl 94the Existing Premis€q ; and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to expand teenBBes, amend certain other terms of the Leaskpavide lease terms for
the Fourth Amendment to Office Lease, all as mantiqularly provided hereinbelow;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the foregoing, andoinsideration of the mutual covenants and agreencentsined in the Lease
and herein, the Lease is hereby modified and anteaslset out below:

1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used herein shall havestime meaning as defined in the Lease, unlessisiger
defined in this Third Amendment. The recitals abave incorporated herein by reference.

2. Expansion Space Landlord and Tenant hereby confirm, stipulatd agree that, effective October 1, 2012 (or at such
earlier time as Tenant occupies the Sixth Flooraaspon Space), the Existing Premises shall be eguhto include an additional 4,709
contiguous rentable square feet of office space ‘{#ixth Floor Expansion Space”) as described ohiliik“A” attached hereto. Except as
otherwise provided in paragraph five of this Thinshendment, the term for the Sixth Floor Expansipac shall expire on the later of
March 31, 2015 or 30 days after substantial coriguieif Tenant improvements in the office space ceddy the Fourth Amendment to
Office Lease. The Annual Rental for the Sixth Fleapansion Space payable by Tenant under the Istedibe as follows:

Square Footage Price/RSF Annual Rent Monthly Installment
4,70¢ $ 12.0C $ 56,508.00 $ 4,709.0

Landlord shall deliver the Sixth Floor Expansiora&g “AS IS” in its current condition except as éolks:

On or before September 1, 2012, Landlord, at its sost, shall (i) replace all cracked window film exterior windows and
(ii) install “cool white” lamps in the space outid in red on the attached Exhibit “A”.

Tenant may, at its sole cost, remodel any porticdhe Sixth Floor Expansion Space other than tlmany entrance and existing reception
area, with Landlord’s written approval which shadt be unreasonably withheld. With the Sixth FIEgpansion Space, the total rentable
square feet of the




Leased Premises is 173,5&nhtable square feet and the total rentable ardsedBuilding is 521,802Pentable square feet.

3. Parking. With respect to the Sixth Floor Expansion Spaesadlord shall provide Tenant with fourteen (14ylpng
spaces, including two (2) reserved covered spact®iattached parking structure and twelve (123 ann-reserved basis on the existing
surface lots. After giving effect to the precedsentence, Tenant shall have a total of four-huhdiety-seven (467) parking spaces, which
shall consist of one hundred twelve (112) resenmabred spaces in the attached parking structutérmae hundred fifty-five (355) on a non-
reserved basis on the existing surface lots. Thpaees are free of charge. At the end of the teasefor the Sixth Floor Expansion Space
reserved parking spaces and the non-reserved gasgaces attributable thereto shall be surrenddoed) with the Sixth Floor Expansion
Space.

4, Tenants Share and Operating Expense Babenant’s Share attributable to the Sixth Floop&hsion Space shall be
0.90%. Tenant's Share attributable to the entiraskd Premises after the addition of the Sixth Flbgransion Space shall be 33.26%;
provided, however, with respect to the Sixth FIB&pansion Space, Tenant shall pay no Operatingrisqgsefor calendar 2012. The
Operating Expense Base for the Sixth Floor ExpanSisace shall mean the amount of Operating Expdosése calendar year 2012. The
5% cap on increases in Tenant’s Share attributalilee Sixth Floor Expansion Space as to increims@perating Expenses, as set forth in
Section 4.02(g) of the H&P Lease, shall be apple#dthe Sixth Floor Expansion Space and Tend@tiare shall be made in reference to the
base amount established in 2013.

5. Eighth Floor Space The parties hereto acknowledge that Suite 8%3{wing of eighth floor) of the Building, which
contains 6,319 rentable square feet, is presesdiseld to another tenant (“Existing Tenant”) throdigly 31, 2014 (the “Eighth Floor Spage”
The Landlord and Tenant agree to cause their dulyosized representatives to execute the Fourthnsiment to Office Lease in form
identical to Exhibit “B” on the later of August 2014 or the date that the Existing Tenant vac&tegighth Floor Space subject to the terms
of this paragraph 5. In the event the Existingdrgrholds over past July 31, 2014, Landlord shedlits best efforts to vacate the Existing
Tenant from the Eighth Floor Space. In the eveanrtdlord is unable to vacate Existing Tenant froeEighth Floor space by December 31,
2014, then Tenant shall have the continuing rigateafter, upon written notice, to terminate itigaition to lease the Eighth Floor Space,
provided that such notice is received by Landlaidrgo the vacation of Existing Tenant from thglith Floor Space. If Tenant terminate:
obligation to lease the Eighth Floor Space as iwstabove, then Tenant shall have 60 days frondalte of its termination notice to provide
Landlord its written election to extend the ternttaé Third Amendment.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisrihPAmendment, Tenant shall have the right to pileviandlord its written electit
to extend the term of this Third Amendment conditibupon Landlord receiving such election on oobeflanuary 31, 2015. In the event
Tenant elects to extend this Third Amendment asrie=d in this paragraph 5, the (i) per square fent and lease term then applicable to the
Existing Premises shall also apply to the SixttoFBxpansion Space and (ii) Landlord will provideriaint a $9.60 per square foot Tenant
Improvement Allowance totaling $45,206.40 to redtieecost of Tenant Improvements to be constructéide Leased Premises (in the
manner set forth in Exhibit “B” of the Lease).

6. Authority . Each of Landlord and Tenant represents and wartarthe other that the execution, delivery andigpmance o
this Third Amendment by such party is within thquisite power of such party, has been duly autledrand is not in contravention of the
terms of such party’s organizational or governmlesthd@uments.




7. Binding Effect. Each of Landlord and Tenant further represendsvearrants to the other that this Third Amendmeitign
duly executed and delivered, will constitute a legalid, and binding obligation of Tenant, Landland all owners of the Building, fully
enforceable in accordance with its respective teexsept as may be limited by bankruptcy, moratoriarrangement, receivership,
insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affegtthe rights of creditors generally and the avdlitgtof specific performance or other
equitable remedies.

8. Successors and Assigndhis Third Amendment will be binding on the past successors and assigns.

9. Brokers. Tenant warrants that it has had no dealings anthbroker or agent other than CB Richard Ellisébkma (the
“Broker’ ) in connection with the negotiation or executiortto§ Third Amendment. Landlord shall indemnify amald Tenant harmless frc
and against any cost, expense or liability for cassions or other compensation or charges of Brokenant agrees to indemnify Landlord
and hold Landlord harmless from and against anyadintbsts, expenses or liability for commissiongther compensations or charges
claimed to be owed by Tenant to any broker or ggeher than Broker, with respect to this Third Ardment or the transactions evidenced
hereby.

10. Amendments With the exception of those terms and conditigmecifically modified and amended herein, the keesdsall
remain in full force and effect in accordance wvathits terms and conditions. In the event of aogftict between the terms and provisions of
this Third Amendment and the terms and provisidrite® Lease, the terms and provisions of this TAinendment shall supersede and
control.

11. Counterparts This Third Amendment may be executed in any remalb counterparts, each of which shall be deemed a
original, and all of such counterparts shall cdostione agreement. To facilitate execution of Tisd Amendment, the parties may execute
and exchange facsimile counterparts of the sigagiages and facsimile counterparts shall serveigisals.

12. Disclosure. Members of the Boulder Towers Tenants in Comaranicensed real estate brokers in the State &Okna
and are affiliated with Commercial Realty, LLC dBB Richard Ellis|Oklahoma; they are also partnemadulder Towers Tenants in
Common, the Landlord.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettliss Third Amendment to be effective as of thg dad year as set forth
above.

LANDLORD:
By: ASP, Inc.

Managing Partner ¢
Boulder Towers Tenants in Comm

By:
Name: William H. Mizene
Title: Presiden

Date Executec

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

By:
Name: Steven R. Mackse

Title: Executive Vice Preside
Date Executec




Exhibit “X”

[insert space diagram]

Suite 660, 8 Floor
4,709 Total RSF

Exhibit “B”
To Third Amendment to Office Lease

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO OFFICE LEASE

This Fourth Amendment to Office Lease (thiurth Amendmeri) is made and entered into by and betwa8&i®, Inc., the
managing partner of Boulder Tower Tenants in Commor(“Landlord’), andHELMERICH & PAYNE, INC., a Delaware Corporation
(the_‘Tenant), effective on and as of the date on which Tenant@es this Fourth Amendment, as set forth on tieadure page (the
“Effective Daté).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant previously entered that certain Office Lease dated May 30, 2088 amended by that certain
First Amendment to the Lease dated as of May 288 20d Second Amendment to Lease dated Decemb2613B,(“Lease”) pursuant to
which Landlord leases to Tenant certain premisesding 168,868 rentable square feet in the buildioogpmonly known as Boulder Towers
(the_‘Building”), located at 1437 South Boulder, Tulsa, Oklahoma 94fle_Existing Premis€q; and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a Thindeddment to Office Lease dated August of 2012 (&'Bimendment”) to
which this Fourth Amendment to Office Lease (“Faudimendment”) was attached as Exhibit “B”.

WHEREAS, the Third Amendment terminated simultarspwith the Landlord and Tenant’s execution ofthourth Amendment.

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to expand teenizes, and amend certain other terms of the |alises more particularly
provided hereinbelow;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the foregoing, andoinsideration of the mutual covenants and agreencentsined in the Lease
and herein, the Lease is hereby modified and anteaslset out below:

1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used hereinlshave the same meaning as defined in the Leadessi otherwise define
in this Fourth Amendment.

2. Expansion Space Landlord and Tenant hereby confirm, stipulatd agree that the Existing Premises shall be exphasle
of the Term Commencement Date (“TCD"), to includeaaditional 6,319entable square feet of office space (the “EighttoFExpansion
Space”) as described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto

With such Eighth Floor Expansion Space, the taatable square feet of the Leased Premises is87feftable square feet and the total
rentable area of the Building is 521.,8@?table square feet.




3. Tenants Share and Operating Expense Babenant's Share attributable to the Expansion &ghall be 1.21%. Tenant’s
Share attributable to the entire Leased Premi¢esthE addition on the TCD of the Expansion Sl be 33.57%; provided however, w
respect to the Expansion Space, Tenant shall p@peoating Expenses for calendar 2014 or for thetign of calendar 2015 prior to the
TCD. The Operating Expense Base for the ExparSpate shall mean the amount of Operating Expenséisef calendar year 2015. From
and after the TCD, the 5% cap on increases in Tten8hare attributable to the Expansion Space axteases in Operating Expenses, as set
for the in Section 4.02(g) of the H&P Lease, shallapplicable to the Expansion Space and Tenah#iseShall be made in reference to the
base amount established in 2015.

4. Rent and Term The per square foot rental rate and lease tppticable to the Existing Premises on the TCD séislb
apply to the Eighth Floor Expansion Space. ThetR®rthe Eighth Floor Expansion Space shall comraemm the earlier of Substantial
Completion or ninety (90) days after Landlord deti/the space to Tenant.

5. Tenant Improvement AllowanceThe Landlord shall provide Tenant a $10.66 patable square foot Tenant Improven
Allowance totaling $67,361.00 to reduce the cosEefant Improvements to be constructed in the EsiparSpace (in the same manner as set
forth in Exhibit B of the Lease), inclusive of delition, above ceiling modification, preliminary sgaplanning and construction documents
and construction. Landlord shall timely pay thetaaf Tenant Improvements up to the amount of thieaht Improvement Allowance. In the
event that the total cost of Tenant Improvemenksss than the Tenant Improvement Allowance, therbalance shall be used by Tenant to
improve any area of the Leased Premises as lotigeasmprovements are completed within two (2) ydan the TCD. In the event that the
total cost of Tenant Improvements is more tharieant Improvement Allowance, then Tenant shall faesh excess costs when such
amounts become due and owing to the contractors.

6. Parking. With respect to the Expansion Space, the Laddibell provide Tenant nineteen (19) parking spdoebiding
three (3) reserved covered spaces in the attacirithp structure and sixteen (16) on a non-resebasis on the existing surface lots. As of
the TCD, Tenant shall have a total of four hundsedenty-two (472) parking spaces, which shall giredione hundred thirteen (113)
reserved covered spaces in the attached parkingfste and three hundred fifty-nine (359) on a negerved basis on the existing surface
These spaces are free of charge. Notwithstandimfpregoing, in the event Tenant elects to extbaderm of the Sixth Floor Expansion
Space as described in paragraph 5 of the Third Aiment to Office Lease, then Tenant shall posséstabof four hundred eighty-six (486)
parking spaces, including one hundred fifteen (X#&5grved covered spaces in the attached parkingfuate and three hundred seventy-one
(371) on a non-reserved basis on the existing seilfzs.

7. Authority . Each of Landlord and Tenant represents and wartarthe other that the execution, delivery andigpsance o
this Fourth Amendment by such party is within teguisite power of such party, has been duly autedrand is not in contravention the
terms of such party’s organizational or governmlesthd@uments.

8. Binding Effect. Each of Landlord and Tenant further represendsvearrants to the other that this Fourth Amendmehgr
duly executed and delivered, will constitute a legalid, and binding obligation of Tenant, Landland all owners of the Building, fully
enforceable in accordance with its respective teexsept as may be limited by bankruptcy, moratoriarrangement,




receivership, insolvency, reorganization or simidavs affecting the rights of creditors generaltygldhe availability of specific performance
other equitable remedies.

9. Successors and AssigndThis Fourth Amendment will be binding on thetjes’ successors and assigns.

10. Brokers. Tenant warrants that it has had no dealings anthbroker or agent other than CB Richard Elligébkma (the
“Broker’) in connection with the negotiation or executiortte§ Fourth Amendment. Landlord shall indemnifgldiold Tenant harmless
from and against any cost, expenses or liabilitycfommissions or other compensation or chargesa@fds. Tenant agrees to indemnify
Landlord and hold Landlord harmless from and adaing and all costs, expenses or liability for casgsions or other compensations or
charges claimed to be owed by Tenant to any brokagent, other than Broker, with respect to tliarth Amendment or the transactions
evidenced hereby.

11. Amendments With the exception of those terms and conditigmecifically modified and amended herein, the bessall
remain in full force and effect in accordance wathits terms and conditions. In the event of aogftict between the terms and provisions of
this Fourth Amendment and the terms and provisodrie Lease, the terms and provisions of this #ftodmendment shall supersede and
control.

12. Counterparts This Fourth Amendment may be executed in anybmirof counterparts, each of which shall be deeamed
original, and all of such counterparts shall cdnttione agreement. To facilitate execution of Buarth Amendment, the parties may execute
and exchange facsimile counterparts of the sigagiages and facsimile counterparts shall serveigisals.

13. Disclosure. Members of the Boulder Towers Tenants in Comaranicensed real estate brokers in the State &Okna
and are affiliated with Commercial Realty, LLC dBB Richard Ellis|Oklahoma; they are also partneBadulder Towers Tenants in
Common, the Landlord.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthis Fourth Amendment to be effective as of the @nd year as set forth
above.

LANDLORD:
By: ASP, Inc.

Managing Partner ¢
Boulder Towers Tenants in Comm

By:
Name: William H. Mizene
Title: Presiden

Date Executec

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

By:
Name: Steven R. Mackse

Title: Executive Vice Preside
Date Executec
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Exhibit 13

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.is the holding Company for Helmerich & Payne Intgional Drilling Co., a drilling contractor withia and
offshore operations in the United States, South #gagAfrica and the Middle East. Holdings alsolimte commercial real estate propertie
the Tulsa, Oklahoma area, and an energy-weightetbpo of securities valued at approximately $48flion as of September 30, 2012.

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

HELMERICH & PAYNE-TULSA, OKLA. @

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2012

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 3(

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share amount:
Operating Revenue $ 3,151,80. $ 2,543,89. $ 1,875,16:
Net Income 581,04! 434,18t 156,31.
Diluted Earnings per Sha 5.3¢ 3.9¢ 1.4t
Dividends Paid per Sha .28( .25(C .21C
Capital Expenditure 1,097,68! 694,26 329,57:

Total Assets 5,721,08! 5,003,89 4,265,371




Financial & Operating Review
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 3C

2012

2011

2010 2009 2008 2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF INCOME*t
Operating Revenue

$3,151,80; $2,543,89- $1,875,16. $1,843,74

$1,869,37. $1,502,381 $1,140,21' $

733,90: $ 532,75¢ $ 472,40° $ 472,86!

Operating Costs, excluding depreciat 1,750,511 1,432,60. 1,071,95 944,78( 987,83t 788,96 606,94! 435,05 375,60( 322,55! 319,33(
Depreciation** 387,54¢ 315,46¢ 262,65! 227,53! 195,34: 137,18 93,36 88,48 139,59: 76,74¢ 56,20¢
General and Administrative Exper 107,30 91,45: 81,47¢ 58,82: 56,42¢ 47,40: 51,87: 41,01t 37,66 41,00 36,56
Operating Income (Los: 909,59¢ 702,51: 451,79t 608,87! 640,08« 586,50t 395,34: 182,35! (14,699) 35,84¢ 61,94¢
Interest and Dividend Incon 1,38( 1,951 1,811 2,75¢ 3,52¢ 4,14: 9,68¢ 5,77: 1,62z 2,467 3,624
Gain on Sale of Investment Securit — 912 — — 21,99« 65,45¢ 19,86¢ 26,96¢ 25,41¢ 5,52¢ 24,82(
Interest Expens 8,65: 17,35t 17,15¢ 13,59( 18,72: 9,591 6,49¢ 12,41¢ 12,54: 12,357 99:
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operatic 573,60! 434,66¢ 286,08: 380,54t 420,25¢ 415,92« 269,85: 120,66t (1,01¢) 16,41: 55,01°
Net Income 581,04! 434,18t 156,31: 353,54! 461,73¢ 449,26 293,85t 127,60t 4,35¢ 17,87: 63,51°
Diluted Earnings Per Common Sha
Income (Loss) from Continuing
Operations 5.27 3.9¢ 2.6¢€ 3.5¢€ 3.9¢ 3.9t 2.5¢ 1.1€ (0.02) 0.17 0.5¢
Net Income 5.3¢ 3.9¢ 1.4t 3.31 432 4.2 2.71 1.2t 0.04 0.17 0.6
* $000's omitted, except per share (
T All data excludes discontinued
operations except net incor
** 2004 includes an asset impairment of
$51,516 and depreciation of $88,(
SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA*
Casht $ 96,09 $ 364,24t $ 63,02( $ 96,14. $ 77,54¢$ 67,44t $ 32,19! 284,460 $ 63,78 $ 29,760 $ 45,69¢
Working Capitalt 511,57: 537,03« 417,88t 157,108 274,51¢ 209,76t 126,54( 378,491 157,26t 82,71: 87,58¢
Investment: 451,14« 347,92: 320,71: 356,40« 199,26t 223,36( 218,30¢ 178,45. 161,53: 158,77( 150,17!
Property, Plant, and Equipment, N 4,351,57. 3,677,071 3,275,021 3,194,27. 2,605,38 2,068,81. 1,399,97. 897,50: 913,33t 983,02¢ 824,81!
Total Asset: 5,721,08' 5,003,89. 4,265,37' 4,161,02. 3,588,04' 2,885,36' 2,134,71. 1,663,35 1,406,84. 1,417,77\ 1,227,31
Long-term Debi 195,00( 235,00( 360,00( 420,00( 475,00( 445,00( 175,00( 200,00( 200,00( 200,00( 100,00¢
Shareholders' Equi 3,834,991 3,270,04 2,807,46: 2,683,000 2,26547. 1,81551 1,381,89. 1,079,23 914,11( 917,25: 895,17(
Capital Expenditure 1,097,68! 694,26« 329,57: 876,83¢ 697,90¢ 885,58 521,84 78,67" 86,05 233,85( 298,29!
* $000's omitte:
T Excludes discontinued operatit
Rig Fleet Summaryt
Drilling Rigs—
U. S. Lan—FlexRigs 264 221 182 162 14€ 11¢ 73 5C 48 43 2€
U. S. Lan—Highly Mobile — 4 11 11 12 12 12 12 11 11 11
U. S. Lan—Conventiona alfg 23 27 27 27 27 28 28 28 29 28
Offshore Platforn 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 11 11 12 12
International Land- 2¢ 24 2€ 33 19 1€ 16 14 1¢ 21 1¢
Total Rig Fleer 32 281 257 242 213 182 13¢ 11€ 117 11€ 97
Rig Utilization Percenta—
U. S. Lan—FlexRigs 97 99 87 7€ 10C 10C 10C 10C 9¢ 97 9€
U. S. Lan—Highly Mobile 0 0 0 2¢ 83 93 10C 9¢ 91 89 97
U. S. Lan—Conventiona 14 16 17 3¢ 80 87 95 82 67 58 7C
U. S. Lan—All Rigs 8¢ 86 78 68 96 97 99 94 87 81 84
Offshore Platforn 7¢ 77 8C 8¢ 75 6t 69 52 48 51 82
International Land' 77 70 71 71e 72 8¢ 95 8C 47 42 59

T Excludes discontinued operatit




Management's Discussion & Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Risk Factors and Forward-Looking Statements

The following discussion should be readanjunction with Part | of our Form 10-as well as the Consolidated Financial Statemand
related notes thereto. Our future operating resnitg be affected by various trends and factors lvaie beyond our control. These include,
among other factors, fluctuations in oil and natgess prices, unexpected expiration or terminatibdrilling contracts, currency exchange
gains and losses, expropriation of real and petgwpgaerty, changes in general economic conditidisspptions to the global credit markets,
rapid or unexpected changes in technologies, déksreign operations, uninsured risks, changednimestic and foreign policies, laws and
regulations and uncertain business conditionsaffatt our businesses. Accordingly, past resultsteands should not be used by investors to
anticipate future results or trends.

With the exception of historical informatiache matters discussed in Management's Discugsimalysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations include forward-looking stedats. These forward-looking statements are base@ious assumptions. We caution
that, while we believe such assumptions to be restsle and make them in good faith, assumed factestlalways vary from actual results.
The differences between assumed facts and actdtsean be material. We are including this canatig statement to take advantage of the
"safe harbor" provisions of the Private Securitigigation Reform Act of 1995 for any forward-loalg statements made by us or persons
acting on our behalf. The factors identified irstbautionary statement and those factors discugser Risk Factors beginning on page 6 of
our Form 10-K are important factors (but not neaghsinclusive of all important factors) that cdutause actual results to differ materially
from those expressed in any forwdomking statement made by us or persons actinguobehalf. Except as required by law, we undertad
duty to update or revise our forward-looking statats based on changes of internal estimates ocetjmas or otherwise.

Executive Summary

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is primarily a caut drilling company with a total fleet of 320 Itirg rigs at September 30, 2012. Our cont
drilling segments consist of the U.S. Land segmtit 282 rigs, the Offshore segment with 9 offshplaform rigs and the International
Land segment with 29 rigs at September 30, 2012cdviéinued to expand our rig fleet and activity2dil2 even as pronounced volatility in
oil and natural gas prices impacted drilling mar@tditions and prospects. Our position in the regik strengthened by our high quality
fleet, our long-term contracts and our customeebBsiring 2012, we placed into service 48 new FiggRall with fixed multi-year contracts.
Two of these new FlexRigs were sent to an inteonatilocation. At September 30, 2012, we had 2@#ecigs, as compared to 250 active
rigs at the same time during the prior year.

As we begin 2013, we expect our custonecohtinue to become more focused in their effartsnhance drilling efficiencies to reduce
total well costs. We believe that our superiordiperformance and safety record will allow us totdwie to gain market share over the
coming years.

As further discussed in Note 2 of the Cdidsted Financial Statements, our Venezuelan sidrgigvas classified as discontinued
operations on June 30, 2010, after the seizureioflolling assets in that country by the Venezoejavernment. Except as specifically
discussed, the following results of operationsgiagtonly to our continuing operations. Unless otliee indicated, references to 2012, 2011
and 2010 in the following discussion are refertoa@ur fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010.
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Results of Operations

All per share amounts included in the Rissofl Operations discussion are stated on a dilogésés. Our net income for 2012 was
$581.0 million ($5.34 per share), compared with4523nillion ($3.99 per share) for 2011 and $156ilion ($1.45 per share) for 2010.
Included in our net income for 2011 was an aftergain from the sale of an investment in a limipedtnership of $0.6 million ($0.01 per
share). Net income also includes after-tax gaiomfthe sale of assets of $12.3 million ($0.11 pere) in 2012, $8.8 million ($0.08 per
share) in 2011 and $3.3 million ($0.03 per share)G10.

Consolidated operating revenues were $8i@rbin 2012, $2.5 billion in 2011 and $1.9 bdh in 2010. As 2012 progressed, commodity
price volatility and our customers' desire to skathin their 2012 budgets caused our active rigntaa decline late in the fiscal year after
experiencing increases since early 2010 througfirdtehree quarters of fiscal 2012. As a result; U.S. land rig utilization was 89 percer
2012, 86 percent in 2011 and 73 percent in 2018.aMerage number of U.S. land rigs available w&srigs in 2012, 237 rigs in 2011 and
207 rigs in 2010. Revenue in the Offshore segmedilirted in 2012, after remaining steady in 2011 20t0. Rig utilization for offshore rigs
was 79 percent in 2012, compared to 77 percer@1d 2nd 80 percent in 2010. Revenue in the IntematLand segment increased in 2012
after declining in 2011 from 2010. Rig utilizationour International Land segment was 77 perce@0i?, 70 percent in 2011 and 71 percent
in 2010.

In 2011, we had a $0.9 million gain frone #ale of investment securities. We did not sefliamestment securities in 2012 or 2010.
Interest and dividend income was $1.4 million, $2i0ion and $1.8 million in 2012, 2011 and 2018spectively.

Direct operating costs in 2012 were $118oli or 56 percent of operating revenues, compavitd $1.4 billion or 56 percent of operati
revenues in 2011 and $1.1 billion or 57 percergp#rating revenues in 2010.

Depreciation expense was $387.5 millio20d2, $315.5 million in 2011 and $262.7 million2@10. Included in depreciation are
abandonments of equipment of $16.4 million in 208429 million in 2011 and $4.2 million in 2010. Diepiation expense, exclusive of the
abandonments, increased over the three-year pasiag placed into service 48 new rigs in 2012038011 and 23 in 2010. Depreciation
expense in 2013 is expected to increase from 2@I2 fiew rigs placed into service during 2012 arditamhal rigs placed into service during
2013. (See Liquidity and Capital Resources.)

As conditions warrant, management perfaamanalysis of the industry market conditions intipacits long-lived assets in each drilling
segment. Based on this analysis, management detsfiany impairment is required. In 2012, 201d 32610, no impairment was recorded.

General and administrative expenses totsl€f.3 million in 2012, $91.5 million in 2011 afifl1.5 million in 2010. The $15.8 million
increase in 2012 from 2011 is due to increasealaries, bonuses, and stock-based compensatigpaidamately $12.5 million associated
with growth in the number of employees and increasevages in comparative periods. The remainiggeiase is primarily due to higher
professional services and to other corporate oeerlassociated with supporting continued growthusfdyilling business.

Interest expense was $8.7 million in 20817.4 million in 2011 and $17.2 million in 2010térest expense is primarily attributable to
the fixed-rate debt outstanding. Interest experseadsed in 2012 from 2011 primarily due to a rédndn outstanding debt balances, a
reduction in interest related to uncertain tax pass, interest accrued for settlement of a lawisuR®011 not incurred in 2012 and an increase
in capitalized interest. Capitalized interest wa2.9 million, $8.2 million and $6.4 million in 2012011 and 2010, respectively. All of the
capitalized interest is attributable to our rig stvaction program.




The provision for income taxes totaled $828illion in 2012, $252.4 million in 2011 and $182nillion in 2010. The effective income
tax rate was 36 percent in 2012 compared to 37epeio 2011 and 35 percent in 2010. Deferred inctares are provided for temporary
differences between the financial reporting basis the tax basis of our assets and liabilities.oRebility of any tax assets are evaluated
and necessary allowances are provided. The carghg of the net deferred tax assets is basedamragement's judgments using certain
estimates and assumptions that we will be abletegate sufficient future taxable income in certainjurisdictions to realize the benefits of
such assets. If these estimates and related assamphange in the future, additional valuatiomatnces may be recorded against the
deferred tax assets resulting in additional incéaxeexpense in the future. (See Note 4 of the Aafeded Financial Statements for additional
income tax disclosures.)

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, we incurred.$hillion, $15.8 million and $12.3 million, resgiaely, of research and development
expenses primarily related to the ongoing develayroéthe rotary steerable system tools. We ardteipesearch and development expenses
to continue during 2013.

In 2012, we had income from discontinuedrafions of $7.4 million compared to a loss fromcdntinued operations in 2011 and 2010
of $0.5 million and $129.8 million, respectively. the fourth fiscal quarter of 2012, we settledharitration dispute with a third party not
affiliated with the Venezuelan government, Petrslde Venezuela, S.A. ("Petroleo") or PDVSA Petrped\. ("PDVSA") related to the
seizure of our property in Venezuela. Proceeds @ #illion were received and recorded as discoetihoperations. The loss from
discontinued operations in 2011 and 2010 was thdtref our Venezuelan drilling business, includeigven rigs and associated real and
personal property, being seized by the Venezuadaergment on June 30, 2010. In 2010, we derecogmiae Venezuela property and
equipment and warehouse inventory and wrote ofroéiccounts where future cash inflows and outflassociated with them were no longer
expected to occur.

Our whollyewned subsidiaries, Helmerich & Payne Internatiddling Co. and Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela Cfiled a lawsui
in the United States District Court for the Distraé Columbia on September 23, 2011 against thévBaan Republic of Venezuela, Petroleo
and PDVSA. Our subsidiaries seek damages for kiegaf their Venezuelan drilling business in viidda of international law and for breach
of contract. Additionally, we are participatinganother arbitration against a third party not effédd with the Venezuelan government,
Petroleo or PDVSA in an attempt to collect an aggte $50 million relating to the seizure of ourgedy in Venezuela. The arbitration
hearing is presently scheduled for late May 2013.

While there exists the possibility of realg a recovery, we are currently unable to deteentine timing or amounts we may receive, if
any, or the likelihood of recovery. No gain congngies are recognized in our Consolidated Finastetements.
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The following tables summarize operatiopsdportable operating segment.
Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2012dap011

2012 2011 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

U.S. LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 2,678,47" $ 2,100,50! 27.5%
Direct operating expens 1,407,98! 1,119,70! 25.7
General and administrative expel 30,79¢ 25,06¢ 22.¢
Depreciatior 332,72: 264,12° 26.C
Segment operating incon $ 906,96t $ 691,61! 31.1
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 86,34( 73,90¢ 16.8%
Average rig revenue per d $ 27,730 $  25,80¢ 7.5
Average rig expense per d $ 13,02 $ 12,53¢ 3.¢
Average rig margin per de $ 14,71 $ 13,27 10.¢
Number of rigs at end of peric 282 24¢ 13.7
Rig utilization 8% 86% 3.t

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemgkraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupatket" expenses of $283,640
and $193,093 for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Operating income in the U.S. Land segmeerieiased to $907.0 million in 2012 from $691.6 imillin 2011. Included in U.S. land
revenues for 2012 and 2011 is approximately $10liomand $5.4 million, respectively, from earlgrimination revenue. Excluding early
termination related revenue, the average revenudayefor 2012 increased by $1,885 to $27,620 f#@%,735 in 2011, primarily attributable
to increases in dayrates in 2012 compared to 2011.

Direct operating expenses increased 25gepéin 2012 from 2011; however, the expense@aeentage of revenue was 53 percent in
both 2012 and 2011.

Rig utilization increased to 89 percen2@i?2 from 86 percent in 2011. The total numbeiigd at September 30, 2012 was 282
compared to 248 rigs at September 30, 2011. Thimoretase is due to 46 new FlexRigs having beerptated and placed into service, 3
FlexRigs transferred to the International Land sexgin3 idle conventional rigs sold, and four olderchanical highly mobile rigs and two
older conventional rigs removed from service.

Depreciation includes charges for aband@wrdpment of $15.9 million and $3.8 million in ZDand 2011, respectively. Excluding the
abandonment amounts, depreciation in 2012 increz@eercent from 2011 due to the increase in availdags.

We expect to complete and deliver approsatyefour rigs per month through early calendar2Qlike those completed in fiscal 2012,
each of these new rigs is committed to work foeaploration and production company under a fixedtingear term contract, performing
drilling services on a daywork contract basis. Assult of the new FlexRigs added in fiscal 201@ additional rigs scheduled for complet
in fiscal 2013, we anticipate depreciation expeansgontinue to increase in fiscal 2013.

At September 30, 2012, 231 out of 282 @xgstigs in the U.S. Land segment were generativgmue. Of the 231 rigs generating
revenue, 158 were under fixed-term contracts, &wére working in the spot market. At November2®12, the number of existing rigs
under fixed-term contracts in the segment was HsBtlae number of rigs working in the spot marketéased to 78.
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Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2012da2011

2012 2011 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

OFFSHORE OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 189,08t $ 201,41 (6.2)%
Direct operating expens 126,47( 135,36¢ (6.6)
General and administrative expel 7,38¢ 6,07 21.¢
Depreciatior 13,45¢ 14,68¢ (8.9
Segment operating incon $ 41,778 $ 45,29 (7.9
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 2,62 2,54¢ 3.2%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 53927 $ 51,79 4.1
Average rig expense per d $ 33,05 $ 29,37¢ 12.f
Average rig margin per de $ 20,87¢ $ 2241t (6.9
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9 —
Rig utilization 79% 7% 2.€

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-otket" expenses of $18,346 and
$33,718 for 2012 and 2011, respectively. Also elediare the effects of offshore platform managem@mtracts and currency
revaluation expense.

Segment operating income and average rigimaer day in our Offshore segment declined ih2ffom 2011 partly because our rig
previously working offshore Trinidad completeddtntract in the first quarter of fiscal 2012, reied to the U.S. during the second quarter of
fiscal 2012 and was idle the remainder of the figear. Additionally, a second rig was on standiyfive months during 2012 compared to
working all of 2011.

Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2012daR011

2012 2011 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 270,027 $ 226,84 19.(%
Direct operating expens 215,64. 175,72¢ 22.1i
General and administrative expel 3,31¢ 3,392 (2.2
Depreciatior 30,70: 28,01¢ 9.€
Segment operating incon $ 20,36¢ $ 19,71 3.2
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 7,34 6,40¢ 14.€%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 32,99¢ $ 31,63 4.2
Average rig expense per d $ 25,52« $ 23,41¢ 9.C
Average rig margin per de $ T747¢ $ 8,217 (9.0
Number of rigs at end of peric 29 24 20.¢
Rig utilization 77% 70% 10.C

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-otket" expenses of $27,720 and
$24,207 for 2012 and 2011, respectively. Also eatiuare the effects of currency revaluation expense
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The International Land segment had opegatinome of $20.4 million for 2012 compared to ¥1®illion for 2011.

Revenues in 2012 increased by $43.2 mifiiom 2011 in our international land operationshwig utilization increasing to 77 percent
2012 from 70 percent in 2011. The total numbeiigs at September 30, 2012 was 29 compared to 84ti§eptember 30, 2011. The incre
was due to two new FlexRigs having been completeldpdaced into service and three FlexRigs transfefirom the U.S. Land segment.

Segment operating income and average maggiday decreased in 2012 compared to 2011 phinthre to early termination revenue
earned in 2011 and higher operating expenses i2.201

Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2011da2010

2011 2010 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

U.S. LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 2,100,500 $ 1,412,49 48.7%
Direct operating expens 1,119,701 772,76t 44.¢
General and administrative expel 25,06¢ 23,79¢ 5.2
Depreciatior 264,12 211,65: 24.¢
Segment operating incon $ 691,61 $ 404,27 71.1
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 73,90¢ 55,05 34.2%
Average rig revenue per d $ 2580¢ $  23,90¢ 7.6
Average rig expense per d $ 1253t $ 12,28¢ 2.C
Average rig margin per de $ 1327 $ 11,62 14.2
Number of rigs at end of peric 24¢ 22( 12.7
Rig utilization 8€6% 73% 17.¢

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemgkeraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupoatket" expenses of $193,093
and $96,304 for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Rlgation excludes one FlexRig completed and refadylelivery at September 30,
2010.

Operating income in the U.S. Land segmeereiased to $691.6 million in 2011 from $404.3 imillin 2010. Included in U.S. land
revenues for 2011 and 2010 was approximately $illibmand $41.2 million, respectively, from eatlgrmination revenue and revenue from
customers that requested delivery delays for nexH&bs. Excluding early termination related reveand customer requested delivery delay
revenue for new FlexRigs, the average revenue @efat 2011 increased by $2,574 to $25,735 from B2Bin 2010, primarily attributable
increases in dayrates in 2011 compared to 2010.

Direct operating expenses increased 44@pein 2011 from 2010; however, the expense@ereentage of revenue decreased to
53 percent in 2011 from 55 percent in 2010. Theaeerig expense per day increased by only $250gi@011.

Rig utilization increased to 86 percen2@il from 73 percent in 2010. The total numbeiigd at September 30, 2011 was 248
compared to 220 rigs at September 30, 2010. Thmmoretase was due to 35 new FlexRigs completecplueed into service, five transferred
from the International Land segment, one transtetoethe International Land segment, four sold seven old mechanical highly mobile rigs
removed from service.




Depreciation includes charges for aband@wrdpment of $3.8 million and $3.5 million in 20atd 2010, respectively. Excluding the
abandonment amounts, depreciation in 2011 increzs@ercent from 2010 due to the increase in availdags.

Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2011010

2011 2010 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

OFFSHORE OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 201,41 $ 202,73 (0.60%
Direct operating expens 135,36¢ 131,32! 3.1
General and administrative expel 6,07¢ 5,821 4.2
Depreciatior 14,68¢ 12,51¢ 17.2
Segment operating incon $ 4529 $ 53,06¢ (14.9)
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 2,54¢ 2,642 (3.7%
Average rig revenue per d $ 51,79+ $ 47,53¢ 9.C
Average rig expense per d $ 29,37¢ $ 24,65: 19.2
Average rig margin per de $ 2241F $ 22,88 (2.0
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9 —
Rig utilization 77% 80% (3.9

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofket" expenses of $33,718 and
$37,594 for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Also edadlare the effects of offshore platform managewr@mntracts and currency
revaluation expense.

Segment operating income in our Offshoggrent declined by 14.7 percent in 2011 from 201 @rily due to a decrease in revenue
days. The decrease in revenue days was primardyalthe temporary stacking of a rig in early fls#@11 compared to the same rig working
all of 2010.




Comparison of the years ended September 30, 201122010

2011 2010 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 226,84¢ $ 247,17 (8.2)%
Direct operating expens 175,72¢ 166,02: 5.8
General and administrative expel 3,392 2,94¢ 15.C
Depreciatior 28,01¢ 29,93¢ (6.9
Segment operating incon $ 19,71 $ 48,27] (59.9)
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 6,40¢ 7,25¢ (11.9%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 31,63 $ 32457 (2.5
Average rig expense per d $ 2341¢ $ 21,14: 10.¢
Average rig margin per de $ 8217 $ 11,30¢ (27.9)
Number of rigs at end of peric 24 28 (14.3)
Rig utilization 70% 71% (1.9

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-otket" expenses of $24,207 and
$11,779 for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Also elediare the effects of currency revaluation expense

The International Land segment had opegatinome of $19.7 million for 2011 compared to $#&illion for 2010.

Rig utilization for International land oj¢ions decreased to 70 percent in 2011 from 7lepéin 2010. The total number of rigs at
September 30, 2011 was 24 compared to 28 rigspe®@ber 30, 2010. The decrease was due to fiverdgsferred to the U.S. Land segm
and one rig transferred from the U.S. Land segment.

Segment operating income and average maggiday decreased in 2011 compared to 2010 piintare to labor union interruptions in
one country and idle rigs incurring fixed expenses.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our capital spending was $1.1 billion irt20$694.3 million in 2011 and $329.6 million in120 Net cash provided from operating
activities was $1.0 billion in 2012, $977.6 millian2011 and $462.3 million in 2010. Our 2013 calpspending is currently estimated at
$740 million. In addition to capital maintenancgugements, tubulars and other special projects ahnual estimate includes the completion
of new FlexRigs that are already under long-termtrats and capital components and spares to ei#neice existing rigs or be used to build
additional rigs.

Historically, we have financed operationisnarily through internally generated cash flows periods when internally generated cash
flows are not sufficient to meet liquidity needs will either borrow from available credit souragsve may sell portfolio securities.
Likewise, if we are generating excess cash flowsnvay invest in short-term money market securities.

We manage a portfolio of marketable semsithat, at the close of fiscal 2012, had a falue of $451.6 million. Our investments in
Atwood Oceanics, Inc. ("Atwood") and Schlumberdgd. made up 96 percent of the portfolio's fairmeabn September 30, 2012. The value
of the portfolio is subject to fluctuation in thearket and may vary considerably over time. Exclgdiar investments in limited partnerships
carried at cost, the portfolio is recorded at falue on our balance sheet.
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We generated cash proceeds from the sae wivestment in a limited partnership of $3.9liolin 2011. We did not sell any portfolio
securities in 2012 or 2010. Subsequent to SepteBther012, we sold our share in three limited paghips that were primarily invested in
international equities. Proceeds of approximatéy.$ million were received during the first quaréfiscal 2013.

Our proceeds from asset sales totaled $88li&n in 2012, $26.8 million in 2011 and $7.91kain in 2010. Income from asset sales in
2012 totaled $19.2 million which includes the sali¢hree conventional rigs. In each year we alsbdaes of old or damaged rig equipment
and drill pipe used in the ordinary course of basm

We have $75 million of intermediate-termsaoured debt obligations that mature in August 20h4 interest rate through maturity will
be 6.56 percent. The terms of the debt obligatiegsire that we maintain a ratio of debt to totgbitalization of less than 55 percent.

We have $160 million senior unsecured fixa@ notes outstanding at September 30, 2012thatre over a period from July 2013 to
July 2016. Interest on the notes is paid semi-diynbased on an annual rate of 6.10 percent. Anpriatipal repayments of $40 million are
due July 2013 through July 2016. Financial covenagquire that we maintain a funded leverage #Htless than 55 percent and an interest
coverage ratio (as defined) of not less than 250Q0.

On May 25, 2012, we entered into an agre¢mvéh a multi-bank syndicate for a $300 millionsecured revolving credit facility that
will mature May 25, 2017. We anticipate that thgonty of any borrowings under the facility will aue interest at a spread over the London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). We will also pag@nmitment fee based on the unused balance o&tliléyf. Borrowing spreads as well
commitment fees are determined according to a $@aled on a ratio of our total debt to total cdigation. The LIBOR spread ranges from
1.125 percent to 1.75 percent per annum and comanitfees range from .15 percent to .35 percenapenm. Based on our debt to total
capitalization on September 30, 2012, the LIBORagrand commitment fees would be 1.125 percentldngercent, respectively. Financial
covenants in the facility require us to maintaiiuaded leverage ratio (as defined) of less thapés@ent and interest coverage ratio (as
defined) of not less than 3.00 to 1.00. The criadiility contains additional terms, conditions,tragions and covenants that we believe are
usual and customary in unsecured debt arrangerfeertempanies of similar size and credit qualitg. & September 30, 2012, there were no
borrowings and one letter of credit outstandinthim amount of $3.5 million. The $3.5 million lettefrcredit was issued to guarantee a
separate line of credit for an international sulasid At September 30, 2012, we had $296.5 milkeailable to borrow under our
$300 million unsecured credit facility.

At September 30, 2012, we had two collatessts totaling $26.1 million that were classifias restricted cash and included in prepaid
expense and other in the Consolidated Balance Shelesequent to September 30, 2012, we terminatidcbllateral trusts and proceeds
totaling $26.1 million were returned to us. We esd the collateral trusts with two letters of @réataling $27.2 million. This reduced the
amount available to borrow under the $300 millimsecured credit facility to approximately $269.3ligm.

At September 30, 2012, we had two stantktigrs of credit that were issued separately filoen$300 million unsecured credit facility.
One letter of credit for $0.1 million was issuedabpank on our behalf to support customs and tratefpon guaranties that were required to
move a rig between two international locations. $keond letter of credit for $0.2 million was isdu® a bank on our behalf to guarantee
payment of certain expenses incurred by an intermalttransportation vendor. Subsequent to Septe8he2012, we issued two letters of
credit totaling $12 million to a bank for the puses of issuing two performance guaranties requiretér an international drilling contract.
These letters of credit were issued separate fhen$300 million credit facility and therefore didtrreduce that borrowing capacity.

The applicable agreements for all of theamnuired debt described above contain additionaisteronditions and restrictions that we
believe are usual and customary in unsecured debtgements for
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companies that are similar in size and credit tyalit September 30, 2012, we were in complianad &il debt covenants.

At September 30, 2012, we had 176 exigiiggwith contracts under fixed terms with origitadm durations ranging from six months to
seven years, with some expiring in fiscal 2013. @twmtracts provide for termination at the electiéithe customer, with an early termination
payment to be paid if a contract is terminatedmoahe expiration of the fixed term. While mo$toar customers are primarily major oil
companies and large independent oil companieskaexists that a customer, especially a smallergeddent oil company, may become
unable to meet its obligations and may exercisedtfy termination election in the future and netdble to pay the early termination fee.
Although not expected at this time, our future raveand operating results could be negatively itguhif this were to happen.

Our operating cash requirements, schedigbd repayments, any stock repurchases and estiroapital expenditures, including our rig
construction program, for fiscal 2013 are expettelle funded through current cash, cash providad fsperating activities and, possibly,
from funds available under our credit facility ainom sales of available-for-sale securities.

The current ratio was 2.4 at Septembef802 and 2.3 at September 30, 2011. The long-tebmtd total capitalization ratio, including
the current portion of long-term debt, was six patat September 30, 2012 compared to ten pertSapaember 30, 2011.

During 2012, we purchased 1,747,819 comsinames at an aggregate cost of $77.6 million, waiehheld as treasury shares. During
2012, we paid dividends of $0.28 per share, ota td $30.0 million, representing the 40th condkeuyear of dividend increases.

STOCK PORTFOLIO HELD

Number of
Segtember 30, 201 Shares Cost Basis Market Value
(in thousands, except share amount:
Atwood Oceanics, Inc 8,000,001 $ 121,49¢ $ 363,60(
Schlumberger, Ltd 967,50( 7,68¢ 69,97¢
Other 9,35( 18,02¢
Total $ 138,530 $ 451,60

Material Commitments

We have no off balance sheet arrangeméhés than operating leases discussed below. Ouraminal obligations as of September 30,
2012, are summarized in the table below in thousand

Payments due by yea

After

Contractual Obligations Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017
Long-term debt anc

estimated

interest (a $267,13¢ $ 54,20t $ 126,56: $ 44,40F $ 4196t $ — $ =
Operating leases (| 34,43( 5,72¢ 3,94: 3,027 2,412 2,380 16,94
Purchase

obligations (b; 193,78¢  193,78¢ — — — — —
Total contractual

obligations $ 495,35¢ $ 253,72. $ 130,50t $ 47,43. $ 44,377 $ 2,38( $ 16,94

(@) Interest on fixed-rate debt was estimated basegrimtipal maturities. See Note 3 "Debt" to our Colidated
Financial Statements.
(b) See Note 14 "Commitments and Contingencies" t@Counsolidated Financial Statemen

The above table does not include obligatimn our pension plan or amounts recorded for tairetax positions.
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In 2012, we contributed $8.3 million to hension plan. Based on current information avélétom plan actuaries, we estimate
contributing at least $0.1 million in 2013 to még minimum contribution required by law. We expiecimake additional contributions in
2013 to fund unexpected distributions in lieu gliidating pension assets. Future contributions hay®13 are difficult to estimate due to
multiple variables involved.

At September 30, 2012, we had $14.6 milliecorded for uncertain tax positions and relatgerest and penalties. However, the timing
of such payments to the respective taxing autlesritannot be estimated at this time. Income taxemare fully described in Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statementsrapacted by the accounting policies used and bgstimates and assumptions made by
management during their preparation. These estinzatd assumptions are evaluated on an on-going. lizsdimates are based on historical
experience and on various other assumptions théelieve to be reasonable under the circumstativesesults of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of asmad liabilities that are not readily apparentrfrother sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptiomsditions. The following is a discussion of thigical accounting policies and estimates
used in our financial statements. Other signifia@ounting policies are summarized in Note 1 ¢éoGbnsolidated Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment  Property, plant and equipment, including reriswaad betterments, are stated at cost, while
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incuntecedt costs applicable to the construction ofifyireg assets is capitalized as a
component of the cost of such assets. We accouttidalepreciation of property, plant and equipmesiig the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets consideriag#timated salvage value of the property, pladtempuipment. Both the estimated useful
lives and salvage values require the use of manageestimates. Certain events, such as unforesegmyes in operations, technology or
market conditions, could materially affect our esttes and assumptions related to depreciation. §éamnent believes that these estimates
have been materially accurate in the past. Foydlaes presented in this report, no significant geanvere made to the determinations of
useful lives or salvage values. Upon retiremerdtber disposal of fixed assets, the cost and itiateumulated depreciation are removed
from the respective accounts and any gains or $asserecorded in the results of operations.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets Management assesses the potential impairmentrdbng-lived assets whenever events or changes
in conditions indicate that the carrying value nfasset may not be recoverable. Changes that pooapt such an assessment may include
equipment obsolescence, changes in the market defoaa specific asset, periods of relatively lagvutilization, declining revenue per day,
declining cash margin per day, completion of specibntracts and/or overall changes in general gtarénditions. If a review of the long-
lived assets indicates that the carrying valueeotfain of these assets is more than the estimatgidaounted future cash flows, an impairn
charge is made to adjust the carrying value teefitenated fair market value of the asset. Thevialine of drilling rigs is determined based
upon estimated discounted future cash flows omedéd fair market value, if available. Cash flows estimated by management considering
factors such as prospective market demand, rebaniges in rig technology and its effect on eack ritarketability, any cash investment
required to make a rig marketable, suitabilityigfsize and makeup to existing platforms, and cditipe dynamics due to lower industry
utilization. Fair value is estimated, if applicabtensidering factors such as recent market sélegsoof other companies and our own sale
rigs, appraisals and other factors. Use of diffeemsumptions could result in an impairment chaitjerent from that reported.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments  Fair value is defined as an exit price, whiglthie price that would be received upon sale of an
asset or paid upon transfer of a liability in adesty transaction between market participants @antleasurement date. The degree of judgment
utilized in measuring the fair value of assets kathllities generally correlates to the level ofgimg observability. Financial assets and
liabilities with readily available, actively quotguices or for which fair value can be measuredfactively quoted prices in active markets
generally have more pricing observability and regléss judgment in measuring fair value. Convgrdlancial assets and liabilities that are
rarely traded or not quoted have less price obbdityaand are generally measured at fair valuegsialuation models that require more
judgment. These valuation techniques involve sawellof management estimation and judgment, theegegf which is dependent on 1
price transparency of the asset, liability or maeeed the nature of the asset or liability. Theyiag amounts reported in the statement of
financial position for current assets and currattilities qualifying as financial instruments appimate fair value because of the short-term
nature of the instruments. Marketable securitiescarried at fair value which is generally detemuifty quoted market prices. We have
categorized financial assets and liabilities measbatt fair value into a three-level hierarchy is@dance with Accounting Standards
Coadification ("ASC") 820. (See Note 8 of the Corndaled Financial Statements for fair value disctesy

Self-Insurance Accruals  We self-insure a significant portion of expeclesses relating to worker's compensation, getieflity,
employer's liability and automobile liability. Geadly, deductibles range from $1 million to $3 rah per occurrence depending on the
coverage and whether a claim occurs outside adénsi the United States. Insurance is purchasedd®eductibles to reduce our exposure to
catastrophic events. Estimates are recorded farried outstanding liabilities for worker's compeiwa general liability claims and for
claims that are incurred but not reported. Estimate based on adjusters' estimates, historic iexperand statistical methods that we bel
are reliable. Nonetheless, insurance estimatesdedtertain assumptions and management judgmeyasdieg the frequency and severity of
claims, claim development and settlement practidesnticipated changes in these factors may prothaterially different amounts of
expense that would be reported under these programs

Our wholly-owned captive insurance compfingnces a significant portion of the physical dgmask on company-owned drilling rigs
as well as international casualty deductibles. Withexception of "named wind storm" risk in thelf@&f Mexico, we insure rig and related
equipment at values that approximate the currgiiacement cost on the inception date of the poli¢g.self-insure a $5 million per
occurrence deductible, as well as 20 percent oéstienated replacement cost of offshore rigs ande36ent of the estimated replacement
for land rigs and equipment. We have two insurgudieies covering eight offshore platform rigs foamed windstorm" risk in the Gulf of
Mexico. The first policy covers four rigs and ha$7b million aggregate insurance limit over a $8iom deductible. The second policy
covers four rigs and has a $40 million aggregaét land a $3.5 million deductible. We maintain e@rtother insurance coverage with
deductibles as high as $2.5 million. Excess instgas purchased over these coverage amounts toolimexposure to catastrophic claims,
but there can be no assurance that such coverdigespiond or be adequate in all circumstancesaiRed losses are estimated and accrued
based upon our estimates of the aggregate liafdlitglaims incurred and, using adjuster's estisyatar historical loss experience or
estimation methods that are believed to be relidiidmetheless, insurance estimates include ceatsumptions and management judgments
regarding the frequency and severity of claimsnptidevelopment and settlement practices. Unantieghahanges in these factors may
produce materially different amounts of expenseratated liabilities. We self-insure a number dfetrisks including loss of earnings and
business interruption.

Pension Costs and Obligations  Our pension benefit costs and obligations apmeddent on various actuarial assumptions. We make
assumptions relating to discount rates and expe&etadh on plan
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assets. Our discount rate is determined by matgtriojgcted cash distributions with the appropraigorate bond yields in a yield curve
analysis. The discount rate was lowered from 46£38¢nt to 4.06 percent as of September 30, 206eflext changes in the market conditions
for high-quality fixed-income investments. The esiegl return on plan assets is determined basedstoribal portfolio results and future
expectations of rates of return. Actual results tiier from estimated assumptions are accumulatetiamortized over the estimated future
working life of the plan participants and couldréfere affect the expense recognized and obligatiofuture periods. As of September 30,
2006, the Pension Plan was frozen and benefit atcwere discontinued. As a result, the rate ofgmmsation increase assumption has been
eliminated from future periods. We anticipate pengxpense to be approximately $1.2 million in 2013

Stock-Based Compensation  Historically, we have granted stock-based awéndkey employees and non-employee directors dopa
their compensation. We estimate the fair valudidaftack option awards as of the date of grant jogl@ing the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The application of this valuation model ilmas assumptions, some of which are judgmentahégitly sensitive. These assumptions
include, among others, the expected stock pricatiit}, the expected life of the stock options dhd risk-free interest rate. Expected
volatilities were estimated using the historicalatiity of our stock based upon the expected tefrthe option. We consider information in
determining the grant date fair value that wouldehedicated that future volatility would be expedtto be significantly different from
historical volatility. The expected term of the ioptwas derived from historical data and represtrggeriod of time that options are
estimated to be outstanding. The risk-free intenast for periods within the estimated life of thygtion was based on the U.S. Treasury Strip
rate in effect at the time of the grant. The failue of each award is amortized on a straightdiass over the vesting period for awards
granted to employees. Stock-based awards granteaht@mployee directors are expensed immediatain gpant.

The fair value of restricted stock awarslgétermined based on the closing price of our comstock on the date of grant. We amortize
the fair value of restricted stock awards to congaéinn expense on a straight-line basis over teéngeperiod. At September 30, 2012,
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesgtdcted stock was $13.3 million. The cost iseotpd to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 2.6 years.

Revenue Recognition  Contract drilling revenues are comprised ofvdak drilling contracts for which the related revexs and
expenses are recognized as services are perfommdezblection is reasonably assured. For certaitraots, we receive payments
contractually designated for the mobilization gfsrand other drilling equipment. Mobilization payrtereceived, and direct costs incurrec
the mobilization, are deferred and recognized diverterm of the related drilling contract. Costsuirred to relocate rigs and other drilling
equipment to areas in which a contract has not beeured are expensed as incurred. Reimbursenseeised for out-opocket expenses a
recorded as both revenues and direct costs. Foraotsithat are terminated prior to the specifexdht early termination payments received by
us are recognized as revenues when all contragtgairements are met.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On October 1, 2011, we adopted the prongsif Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 208)Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures(Topic 820)—Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurememégjuiring a reconciliation of purchases, sakksjance,
and settlements of financial instruments valuedhait.evel 3 method, which is used to price the dstrtb value instruments. The adoption
had no impact on the Consolidated Financial Statésne

On May 12, 2011, the Financial Accountirigrflards Board ("FASB") issued ASU No. 2011404dir Value Measuremergi opic 820):
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measuresanel
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Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IF. ASU No. 2011-04 is intended to create consistdratween U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") on the d#&fin of fair value and on the guidance on how teasure fair value and on what to
disclose about fair value measurements. ASU NolZwill be effective for financial statementsued for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2011, with early adoption prohibiteddublic entities. We do not expect the adoptibthese provisions to have a material
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued ASU G1205,Comprehensive Inconf&opic 220):Presentation of Comprehensive Income
ASU No. 2011-05 was issued to increase the pronsmei other comprehensive income ("OCI") in finahsitatements. The guidance
provides two options for presenting OCI. An OCltstaent can be included with the net income statémdrich together will make a
statement of total comprehensive income. Altermdyivan OCI statement can be separate from a getria statement but the two statements
will have to appear consecutively within a finamcegport. ASU No. 2011-05 will be applied retrosppeely and is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2011 with early adwpgiermitted. We are currently evaluating the méthiopresentation but the adoption on
October 1, 2012 will have no impact on the Consaéd Financial Statements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk ~ We have operations in several South Americamt@s, Africa and the Middle East. Our
exposure to currency valuation losses is usualimaterial due to the fact that virtually all invoib#lings and receipts in other countries ar
U.S. dollars.

We are not operating in any country thatugently considered highly inflationary, whichdsefined as cumulative inflation rates
exceeding 100 percent in the most recent threeperamd. All of our foreign operations use the WiBllar as the functional currency and
local currency monetary assets and liabilitiesrameasured into U.S. dollars with gains and loss&glting from foreign currency
transactions included in current results of operati As such, if a foreign economy is considereghliyiinflationary, there would be no imps
on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Commodity Price Risk  The demand for contract drilling services result of exploration and production companies dpgnmoney
to explore and develop drilling prospects in searfctrude oil and natural gas. Their appetite famtsspending is driven by their cash flow
and financial strength, which is very dependentaongng other things, crude oil and natural gas codity prices. Crude oil prices are
determined by a number of factors including su@lg demand, worldwide economic conditions and gitagad factors. Crude oil and
natural gas prices have been volatile and verycditfto predict. While current energy prices argortant contributors to positive cash flow
for customers, expectations about future pricespaing volatility are generally more important fitetermining future spending levels. This
volatility can lead many exploration and productemmpanies to base their capital spending on mumte ronservative estimates of
commodity prices. As a result, demand for contdaiting services is not always purely a functidittee movement of commaodity prices.

In addition, customers may finance thepleration activities through cash flow from opeoats, the incurrence of debt or the issuanc
equity. Any deterioration in the credit and capitarkets, as experienced in 2008 and 2009, can indifécult for customers to obtain
funding for their capital needs. A reduction oftftfiew resulting from declines in commodity priagsa reduction of available financing may
result in a reduction in customer spending anddgraand for drilling services. This reduction insgi@g could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial results or operations.

We attempt to secure favorable prices thihcadvanced ordering and purchasing for drillimga@mponents. While these materials have
generally been available at acceptable pricesetisano assurance the prices will not vary sigaifity in the future. Any fluctuations in
market conditions
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causing increased prices in materials and supptigkl have a material adverse effect on futureatpey costs.

Interest Rate Risk  Our interest rate risk exposure results prilpdirom short-term rates, mainly LIBORased, on borrowings from ¢
commercial banks. Because all of our debt at Sdme®0, 2012 has fixed-rate interest obligatioherd is no current risk due to interest rate
fluctuation.

The following tables provide information@sSeptember 30, 2012 and 2011 about our inteastrisk sensitive instruments:

INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 (dollass in thousands)

After Fair Value
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 Total 9/30/12

Fixed-Rate

Debt $ 40,00 $115,00( $40,00C $40,000 $ — $ — $235,000 $ 252,70
Average

Interest

Rate 6.1% 6.5% 6.1% 6.1% —% —% 6.2%
Variable Rate

Debt $ — 3 — 3 — 3% — $ — $ — 3 — 3 —
Average

Interest

Rate

INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 (dollass in thousands)

After Fair Value
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 Total 9/30/11

Fixed-Rate
Debt $115,00( $ 40,00 $115,00( $ 40,00 $40,00 $ — $350,00( $ 376,88:
Average
Interes
Rate 6.4% 6.1% 6.5% 6.1% 6.1% —% 6.2%
Variable
Rate
Debt $ — 3 — % — 3% — 3 — $ — 3 — 3 —
Average
Interes
Rate

Equity Price Risk  On September 30, 2012, we had a portfolio ofisges with a total fair value of $451.6 milliomhe total fair value
of the portfolio of securities was $348.5 millionSeptember 30, 2011. The fair value in Atwood 8nblumberger, Ltd. was $433.6 million
or 96 percent of the portfolio's fair value at Szpber 30, 2012. We make no specific plans to sellisties, but rather sell securities based on
market conditions and other circumstances. Thesgrisies are subject to a wide variety and numbenarket-related risks that could
substantially reduce or increase the fair valueuwfholdings. Except for our investments in limifgttnerships carried at cost, the portfolio is
recorded at fair value on the balance sheet wiimgls in unrealized after-tax value reflected edfuity section of the balance sheet.
Subsequent to September 30, 2012, we sold our shtre limited partnerships. At November 15, 20th2, total fair value of the remaining
securities had increased to approximately $437lomivith an estimated after-tax value of $278.ilion. Currently, the fair value exceeds
the cost of the investments. We continually mortiter fair value of the investments but are unablgrédict future market volatility and any
potential impact to the Consolidated Financial Stants.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. &ptember 30, 2012 and 2011, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shatet®lequity, and cash flows for each of the tlyess in the period ended September 30,
2012. These financial statements are the respditsitfithe Company's management. Our responsjtigito express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on glasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. at September 30, 2012 &1d 2and the consolidated results of its operatamsits cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2012 nfoonity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtd8oard (United States), Helmerict
Payne, Inc.'s internal control over financial rejpgy as of September 30, 2012, based on critetébkshed in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@mations of the Treadway Commission and our ttegetied November 21, 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 21, 201
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Consolidated Statements of Income

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 3(
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share amount:

Operating revenues

Drilling—U.S. Land $ 2,678,47' $ 2,100,500 $ 1,412,49
Drilling—Offshore 189,08 201,41 202,73:
Drilling—International Lanc 270,02 226,84¢ 247,17¢
Other 14,21 15,12( 12,75:¢

3,151,80: 2,543,89 1,875,16.

Operating costs and expense

Operating costs, excluding depreciat 1,750,511 1,432,60: 1,071,95
Depreciatior 387,54¢ 315,46¢ 262,65¢
Research and developme 16,06( 15,76 12,26:
General and administratiy 107,30 91,45: 81,47¢
Income from asset sal (19,227 (13,909 (4,992
2,242,20: 1,841,38: 1,423,36
Operating income from continuing operations 909,59¢ 702,51: 451,79t
Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon 1,38( 1,951 1,811
Interest expens (8,65%) (17,35 (17,159
Gain on sale of investment securit — 912 —
Other 254 (95%) 1,78
(7,019 (15,444) (13,560)
Income from continuing operations before income$ 902,58( 687,06 438,23t
Income tax provisiol 328,97: 252,39¢ 152,15!
Income from continuing operatiol 573,60 434,66 286,08:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before
income taxe: 7,35¢ (487) (125,94,
Income tax provision (benefi (82) 5) 3,82t
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 7,43¢ (482) (129,769
NET INCOME $ 581,04 $ 434,18t $ 156,31
Basic earnings per common she
Income from continuing operatiol $ 53t $ 4.0¢ $ 2.7C
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ 0.07 $ — 8 (2.29)
Net income $ 54z $ 4.0¢ $ 1.47
Diluted earnings per common she
Income from continuing operatiol $ 527 $ 3.9¢ $ 2.6¢€
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ 0.07 $ — 8 (1.2))
Net income $ 53¢ $ 3.9¢ $ 1.45
Weighted average shares outstanding (in thousa
Basic 106,81¢ 106,64 105,71:
Diluted 108,37 108,63: 107,40:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Assets
September 30
2012 2011
(in thousands)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 96,09¢ $ 364,24t
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $942 in 20tR%Y 76 in 201 620,48 460,541
Inventories 78,77 54,407
Deferred income taxe 17,55¢ 19,85¢
Prepaid expenses and otl 74,69: 49,73t
Current assets of discontinued operati 7,61¢ 7,52¢
Total current asse 895,22¢ 956,31:
INVESTMENTS 451,14. 347,92:
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cos
Contract drilling equipmer 5,743,35. 4,834,98!
Construction in progres 215,75: 232,70:
Real estate properti 62,17" 61,47¢
Other 284,81: 211,89
6,306,09 5,341,06
Less-Accumulated depreciatic 1,954,52 1,663,99
Net property, plant and equipme 4,351,57. 3,677,07
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Other asset 23,14 22,58¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,721,08 $ 5,003,89

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

September 30
2012 2011
(in thousands, excep
share data and per
share amounts)

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payabl $ 159,42( $ 103,85:
Accrued liabilities 176,61! 192,89
Long-term debt due within one ye 40,00( 115,00(
Current liabilities of discontinued operatic 5,12¢ 4,97¢

Total current liabilities 381,16« 416,72¢

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long-term debi 195,00( 235,00t
Deferred income taxe 1,209,041 975,28
Other 98,39: 104,28!
Noncurrent liabilities of discontinued operatic 2,49( 2,55(

Total noncurrent liabilitie: 1,504,92. 1,317,11

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $.10 par value, 160,000,000 shatb®@zed,
107,598,889 and 107,243,473 shares issued as tHrisiegr 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively, and 105,697,693 am&6,324
shares outstanding as of September 30, 2012 arid 201

respectively 10,76( 10,72«
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 sharémered, no shart

issued — —
Additional paic-in capital 236,24( 210,90¢
Retained earning 3,505,29! 2,954,211
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 166,80 98,90¢

3,919,10: 3,274,75
Less treasury stock, 1,901,196 shares in 2012 and 49 shares ii

2011, at cos 84,10« 4,70«
Total shareholders' equi 3,834,99 3,270,04
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 5,721,08. $ 5,003,89

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Balance, September 30, 2C
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive los
Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale securities, ni
Amortization of net periodic benefit co—net of actuarial los

Total other comprehensive la
Total comprehensive incon

Dividends declared ($.22 per sha

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit of stock-based awards, including extas®enefits of
$3.9 million

Treasury stock issued for vested restricted s

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, September 30, 2C
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains on availal-for-sale securities, n
Amortization of net periodic benefit co—net of actuarial los

Total other comprehensive incoi
Total comprehensive incon

Dividends declared ($.26 per sha

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit of stock-based awards, including extasdenefits of
$13.4 million

Treasury stock issued for vested restricted s

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, September 30, 2C
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive incor
Unrealized gains on availal-for-sale securities, n
Amortization of net periodic benefit co—net of actuarial gai

Total other comprehensive incoi
Total comprehensive incon

Dividends declared ($.28 per sha

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit of stock-based awards, including extas®enefits of
$3.6 million

Treasury stock issued for vested restricted stoekpf shares withhel

for employee taxe
Repurchase of common sta
Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, September 30, 2C

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Accumulated

Common Stock  Additional Other Treasury Stock
_— Comprehensive
Paid-In Retained
Shares  Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Shares  Amount Total
(in thousands, except per share amount:

107,05¢ $ 10,70¢ $ 176,03¢ $ 2,414,94. $ 112,45: 1,572 $ (31,129 $ 2,683,00!
156,31: 156,31:
(22,881) (22,88)
(5,459 (5,459
(28,349
127,96¢
(23,33) (23,33)
(2,729 (267) 2,51¢ (202)
4,17z 4,172
(1,44%) (70) 1,44t —
15,85¢ 15,85¢
107,05¢ 10,70¢ 191,90( 2,547,91 84,10" 1,23¢ (27,16%) 2,807,46!
434,18¢ 434,18t
18,41« 18,41«
(3,613 (3,613)
14,80:
448,98
(27,89) (27,89)
18t 18 (3,947 (94¢) 19,36¢ 15,44:
13,94¢ 13,94¢
(3,09¢) (1349) 3,09¢ —
12,10: 12,10:
107,24: 10,72« 210,90¢ 2,954,211 98,90¢ 157 (4,709 3,270,04
581,04! 581,04!
63,72t 63,72
4,17 4,174
67,89¢
648,94«
(29,960 (29,96()
31¢ 32 5,39¢ 47 (2,757 2,67:
4,34( 4,34(
41 4 (2,48%) (52) 967 (1,514
1,74¢ (77,610 (77,610
18,07¢ 18,07¢
107,59¢ $ 10,76( $ 236,24( $ 3,505,29! $ 166,80 1,901 $ (84,109 $ 3,834,99

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Adjustment for (income) loss from discontinued @piems

Income from continuing operatio

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 3C

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciatior
Provision for bad det
Stock-based compensatic
Gain on sale of investment securit
Income from asset sal
Deferred income tax expen
Other
Change in assets and liabiliti¢
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income taxe
Other noncurrent liabilitie

Net cash provided by operating activities from amnhg operation:
Net cash used in operating activities from discurgd operation

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditure
Acquisition of TerraVici Drilling Solution:
Proceeds from asset sa
Purchase of shc-term investment
Proceeds from sale of investme

Net cash used in investing activities from contirguoperation:
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activifiesn discontinued operatiol

Net cash used in investing activiti

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in lor-term debr
Proceeds from line of crec
Payments on line of crec
Decrease in bank overdri
Repurchase of common stc
Dividends paic
Exercise of stock optior

Tax withholdings related to net share settlemehtssiricted stock operatiol
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic

Net cash used in financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

$ 581,04! $ 434,18 $ 156,31:
(7,436 482 129,76¢
573,60¢ 434,66¢ 286,08:
387,54¢ 315,46¢ 262,65!
20& 10€ 20€
18,07¢ 12,10: 15,85!

— (919) —
(19,229 (13,909 (4,997
196,93: 187,65: 105,69:
— — 7¢
(160,159 (2,987) (223,91)
(22,170 (11,008 (3,85%)
(27,759 12,62 (12,800
54,90¢ 17,36: 16,76(
19t 20,48:¢ 14,03:

(180) 251 2,457
(1,599 6,12¢ 8,40z
1,000,39 978,03¢ 466,65!
(64) (482) (4,362)
1,000,33: 977,55: 462,28t
(1,097,681 (694,264 (329,57)
— (4,000 —

39,89: 26,79¢ 7,861
— — (1€)

— 3,932 12,51¢
(1,057,78) (667,53) (309,20
7,50C — (55)
(1,050,28) (667,53) (309,26()
(115,000 — —
20,00( 10,00( 895,00(
(20,000 (20,000 (1,060,00i)
— — (2,03%)
(77,610 — —
(30,049 (26,74) (22,25¢)
2,67% 15,44 (202)
(1,519 — —
3,302 12,51: 3,34
(218,19) (8,789) (186,15()
(268,15) 301,22¢ (33,12))
364,24t 63,02( 96,14:

$ 96,09t $ 364,24t $ 63,02(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. anditslly-owned subsidiaries. Fiscal years of
our foreign operations end on August 31 to fad#iteeporting of consolidated results. There wersigoificant intervening events which
materially affected the financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

We classified our former Venezuelan opergtan operating segment within the Internatiorsid_ segment, as a discontinued operation
in the third quarter of fiscal 2010, as more fudiscribed in Note 2. Unless indicated otherwise jtformation in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements relates only to our continwipgrations.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The functional currency for all our foreigperations is the U.S. dollar. Nonmonetary assadsliabilities are translated at historical rates
and monetary assets and liabilities are transkitestchange rates in effect at the end of the gehiwome statement accounts are translat
average rates for the year. Gains and losses feamasurement of foreign currency financial statesnand foreign currency translations into
U.S. dollars are included in direct operating costsluded in direct operating costs are aggrefgategn currency remeasurement and
transaction gains of $0.3 million in fiscal 2012dasses totalling $1.2 million and $0.5 millionfiacal 2011 and 2010, respectively.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of our financial statemémtsonformity with accounting principles generadigcepted in the United States of America
("GAAP") requires management to make estimatesassdmptions that affect reported amounts of aaset$iabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitheancial statements and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those psttes.

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On October 1, 2011, we adopted the prongsimf Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 208)Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures (Topic 82—Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measureraengquiring a reconciliation of purchases, sakesyance, and
settlements of financial instruments valued witteael 3 method, which is used to price the harttestlue instruments. The adoption had no
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of investmensghort-term, highly liquid securities having origimaaturities of three months or less. The
carrying values of these assets approximate theivélues. We primarily utilize a cash managensgstem with a series of separate accounts
consisting of lockbox accounts for receiving casincentration accounts, and several "zero-balagiseursement accounts for funding
payroll and accounts payable. As a result of osha@aanagement system, checks issued, but not pedgerthe banks for payment, may
create negative book cash balances. Checks
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

outstanding in excess of related book cash balareesicluded in accounts payable where applicaideincluded as a financing activity in
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

We had restricted cash and cash equivatér$81.0 million and $18.0 million at September 2012 and 2011, respectively. Restricted
cash consists of $26.2 million for two trusts ebshied to collateralize self-insurance programs $4@& million for the purpose of potential
insurance claims in our wholly-owned captive insiwe&company. Of the total at September 30, 2018, B#lion is from the initial
capitalization of the captive company and managéernas elected to restrict an additional $2.8 millidhe restricted amounts are primarily
invested in short-term money market securities.

The restricted cash and cash equivalentsadliected in the balance sheet as follows:

September 30

2012 2011

(in thousands)
Other current asse $ 28,98¢ $ 16,01¢
Other asset $ 2,000 $ 2,000

INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

Inventories and supplies are primarily agpiment parts and supplies held for use in odimdyibperations. Inventories and supplies are
valued at the lower of cost (moving average oragtor market value.

INVESTMENTS

We maintain investments in equity secwsitié certain publicly-traded companies. The costagfurities used in determining realized
gains and losses is based on the average cosibéisessecurity sold.

We regularly review investment securitiesimpairment based on criteria that include thieeixto which the investment's carrying ve
exceeds its related fair value, the duration ofnttaeket decline and the financial strength andifipgrospects of the issuer of the security.
Unrealized losses that are other than temporaryeg@gnized in earnings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stateositless accumulated depreciation. Substantdilfyroperty, plant and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method baseti®estimated useful lives of the assets (conthditing equipment, 4-15 years; real estate
buildings and equipment, 10-45 years; and oth@3 2ears). Depreciation in the Consolidated Statésnef Income includes abandonments
of $16.4 million, $4.9 million and $4.2 million fdiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The obstaintenance and repairs is charged to
direct operating cost, while betterments and rééinminents are capitalized. Effective September 8022we decommissioned four idle
mechanical highly mobile rigs and two idle convenél rigs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

We lease office space and equipment folirusperations. Leases are evaluated at inceptian any subsequent material modification
and, depending on the lease terms, are classHiedlzer capital leases or operating leases agppate under Accounting Standards
Cadification ("ASC") 840 eases We do not have significant capital leases.

CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

We capitalize interest on major projectamtyconstruction. Interest is capitalized basedh@anaverage interest rate on related debt.
Capitalized interest for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2@/H8 $12.9 million, $8.2 million and $6.4 milliorgspectively.

VALUATION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

We review long-lived assets for impairmetiienever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Changes that could proaght an assessment include a significant declimevienue or cash margin per day,
extended periods of low rig utilization, changesnarket demand for a specific asset, obsolescenogpletion of specific contracts and/or
overall general market conditions. If a reviewlod tonglived assets indicates that the carrying valueeofain of these assets is more thar
estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impat charge is made to adjust the carrying valwendo the estimated fair value of the
asset. The fair value of drilling rigs is determidrimsed upon estimated discounted future cash fhowstimated fair market value, if
available. Cash flows are estimated by managenwersidering factors such as prospective market ddnragent changes in rig technology
and its effect on each rig's marketability, anyhcasestment required to make a rig marketablaability of rig size and make up to existing
platforms, and competitive dynamics due to lowelustry utilization. Fair value is estimated, if dpgble, considering factors such as recent
market sales of rigs of other companies and our sales of rigs, appraisals and other factors.

SELF-INSURANCE ACCRUALS

We have accrued a liability for estimatentker's compensation and other casualty claimstiaduThe liability for other benefits to
former or inactive employees after employment leibte retirement is not material.

DRILLING REVENUES

Contract drilling revenues are comprisedafwork drilling contracts for which the relatea/enues and expenses are recognized as
services are performed and collection is reasoraddyred. For certain contracts, we receive paysyamtractually designated for the
mobilization of rigs and other drilling equipmeMobilization payments received, and direct costsiired for the mobilization, are deferred
and recognized on a straight-line basis over tima t# the related drilling contract. Costs incurtedelocate rigs and other drilling equipment
to areas in which a contract has not been secueceixpensed as incurred. Reimbursements receivedifaof-pocket expenses are recorded
as both revenues and direct costs. Reimbursermmaniisdal 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $329.7 mill§261.0 million and $145.7 million,
respectively. For contracts that are terminatedrpid the specified term, early termination payrsarteived by us are recognized as reve
when all contractual requirements are met.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

RENT REVENUES

We enter into leases with tenants in ontaleproperties consisting primarily of retail amalti-tenant warehouse space. The lease terms
of tenants occupying space in the retail centetsvearehouse buildings generally range from ondeteem years. Minimum rents are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the tefrth@related leases. Overage and percentageaentmsed on tenants' sales volume.
Recoveries from tenants for property taxes andatijmgy expenses are recognized in other operatientes in the Consolidated Statements
of Income. Our rent revenues are as follows:

Years Ended September 3(

2012 2011 2010

(in thousands)
Minimum rents $ 8,751 $ 8,941 $ 8,61
Overage and percentage re $ 1485 $ 1,13t $ 1,241

At September 30, 2012, minimum future reimaome to be received on noncancelable operdtiages was as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
(in thousands)

2013 $ 7,53(
2014 6,80z
2015 5,57¢
2016 4,22¢
2017 3,32¢
Thereatfte! 7,30¢

Total $ 34,76¢

Leasehold improvement allowances are dag@thand amortized over the lease term.

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the cadiaoumulated depreciation for real estate progeevtiere as follows:

September 30
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Real estate properti $ 62,177 $ 61,47¢
Accumulated depreciatic (40,887 (39,665

$ 21,29¢ $ 21,81

INCOME TAXES

Current income tax expense is the amoumaafme taxes expected to be payable for the cuyesar. Deferred income taxes are
computed using the liability method and are proglida all temporary differences between the findrzaais and the tax basis of our assets
and liabilities.
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We provide for uncertain tax positions wisech tax positions do not meet the recognitioagholds or measurement standards
prescribed in ASC 740ncome Taxeswhich is more fully discussed in Note 4. Amoufisuncertain tax positions are adjusted in periods
when new information becomes available or whentjpos are effectively settled. We recognize accringerest related to unrecognized tax
benefits in interest expense and penalties in @kpense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed utfithe two-class method and is calculated basedeighted-average humber of common
shares outstanding during the periods presentéateldiearnings per share is computed using thehiexdigaverage number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding during thiegeutilizing the two-class method for stock opsand nonvested restricted stock.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We record compensation expense associdatedtock options in accordance with ASC 7C®&mpensation—Stock Compensation
Compensation expense is determined using a faieviahsed measurement method for all awards grantedmputing the impact, the fair
value of each option is estimated on the date arfitgnased on the Black-Scholes options-pricing thatilezing certain assumptions for a risk
free interest rate, volatility, dividend yield aagpected remaining term of the awards. The assomgtised in calculating the fair value of
share-based payment awards represent managenesttssbmates, but these estimates involve inherergrtainties and the application of
management judgment. Stock-based compensationagmized on a straight-line basis over the requisgtrvice periods of the stock awards,
which is generally the vesting period. Compensagigimense related to stock options is recordedcasmponent of general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock purchases are accounteahfiber the cost method whereby the cost of the esdjstock is recorded as treasury stock.
Gains and losses on the subsequent reissuancaretsire credited or charged to additional paichpital using the average-cost method.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On May 12, 2011, the Financial Accountirigriflards Board ("FASB") issued ASU No. 201144y Value Measurement (Topic 820):
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureanenDisclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFASU No. 2011-04 is
intended to create consistency between U.S. GAAR@ternational Financial Reporting Standards ("$Ron the definition of fair value
and on the guidance on how to measure fair valdeoarwhat to disclose about fair value measuremé&@t No. 2011-04 will be effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal peribdginning after December 15, 2011, with early aidopprohibited for public entities. We do
not expect the adoption of these provisions to lzar@aterial impact on the Consolidated Financiate®hents.

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 0&1205,Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentationah@ehensive IncomASU
No. 20105 was issued to increase the prominence of
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other comprehensive income ("OCI") in financialtstaents. The guidance provides two options forgrsg OCI. An OCI statement can be
included with the net income statement, which tohgetvill make a statement of total comprehensiveiine. Alternatively, an OCI statement
can be separate from a net income statement bawthstatements will have to appear consecutivelljia financial report. ASU No. 2011-
05 will be applied retrospectively and is effectfee fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2@tth early adoption permitted. We are
currently evaluating the method of presentationcwhiill be the only impact on the Consolidated Ficial Statements when adopted
October 1, 2012.

NOTE 2 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On June 30, 2010, the Official Gazette eh¥zuela published the Decree of Venezuelan Preditlgo Chavez, which authorized the
"forceful acquisition" of eleven rigs owned by d¢enezuelan subsidiary. The Decree also authortzedéizure of "all the personal and real
property and other improvements" used by our Veelezusubsidiary in its drilling operations. Thezaag of our assets became effective
June 30, 2010, and met the criteria establishetefargnition as discontinued operations under attoy standards for presentation of
financial statements. Therefore, operations froem\tenezuelan subsidiary, an operating segmentqarslyi within the International Land
segment, have been classified as discontinued tigresan our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Summarized operating results from disca@thoperations are as follows:

Years Ended September 3C

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Revenue $ — % — $ 13,53
Income (loss) before income tax 7,35¢ (487 (125,94,
Income tax provision (benefi (82) (5) 3,82¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ 7,43¢ $ (482) $ (129,769

Income from discontinued operations indls2012 is attributable to proceeds from arbitmatias more fully described in Note 14, net of
expenses incurred for in-country obligations.

Significant categories of assets and it from discontinued operations are as follows:

September 30

2012 2011

(in thousands)
Other current asse $ 7,61¢ $ 7,52¢
Total asset $ 7,61¢ $ 7,52¢
Total current liabilities $ 5,12¢ $ 4,97¢
Total noncurrent liabilitie: 2,49( 2,55(
Total liabilities $ 7,61¢ $ 7,52¢
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Other current assets consist of restrictsh to meet remaining geuntry current obligations. Liabilities consistrofinicipal and incon
taxes payable and social obligations due withinctientry of Venezuela.

NOTE 3 DEBT

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, we had $1i#'on and $235 million, respectively, in unseedrong-term debt outstanding at rates
and maturities shown in the following table:

September 30
2012 2011
(in thousands)

Unsecured intermediate debt issued August 15, 2

Series C, due August 15, 2012, 6.4 $ — $ 75,00(
Series D, due August 15, 2014, 6.5 75,00( 75,00(
Unsecured senior notes issued July 21, 2
Due July 21, 2012, 6.10' — 40,00(
Due July 21, 2013, 6.10' 40,00( 40,00(
Due July 21, 2014, 6.10' 40,00( 40,00(
Due July 21, 2015, 6.10' 40,00( 40,00(
Due July 21, 2016, 6.10' 40,00( 40,00(

Unsecured revolving credit facility due May 25, Z( — —

$ 235,000 $ 350,00(
Less lon+term debt due within one ye 40,00( 115,00(

Long-term debt $ 195,00 $ 235,00(

The intermediate unsecured debt outstaratii®eptember 30, 2012 matures August 15, 2014 amigs an interest rate of 6.56 percent,
which is paid semi-annually. The terms require thatmaintain a ratio of debt to total capitalizatif less than 55 percent. The debt is held
by various entities.

We have $160 million senior unsecured fixa notes outstanding at September 30, 2012rthatre over a period from July 2013 to
July 2016. Interest on the notes is paid semi-dhjnbased on an annual rate of 6.10 percent. Anpriatipal repayments of $40 million are
due July 2013 through July 2016. We have compligl aur financial covenants which require us tomt&in a funded leverage ratio of less
than 55 percent and an interest coverage ratiddfised) of not less than 2.50 to 1.00.

Our $400 million senior unsecured crediilfey matured in December 2011 and was alloweédxpire. On May 25, 2012, we entered
into an agreement with a multi-bank syndicate f8880 million unsecured revolving credit facilityat will mature May 25, 2017. We
anticipate that the majority of any borrowings untles facility will accrue interest at a spread iotie London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR). We will also pay a commitment fee basedlom unused balance of the facility. Borrowing sgieas well as commitment fees are
determined according to a scale based on a ratardfotal debt to total capitalization. The LIB@Rread ranges from 1.125 percent to
1.75 percent per annum and commitment fees raoge ft5 percent to .35 percent per annum. Basediodeit to total capitalization on
September 30, 2012, the LIBOR spread and commitfeestwould be 1.125 percent
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and .15 percent, respectively. Financial covenantise facility require us to maintain a fundeddeage ratio (as defined) of less than

50 percent and an interest coverage ratio (aselfiof not less than 3.00 to 1.00. The credit itgcdlontains additional terms, conditions,
restrictions, and covenants that we believe aralsmud customary in unsecured debt arrangement®fopanies of similar size and credit
quality. As of September 30, 2012, there were modwangs and one letter of credit was outstandmthe amount of $3.5 million. The
$3.5 million letter of credit was issued to guaesné separate line of credit for an internationbkaliary. At September 30, 2012, we had
$296.5 million available to borrow under our $30llion unsecured credit facility.

During the first fiscal quarter of 2012, Wumded two collateral trusts totaling $26.1 milliand terminated two letters of credit. The
September 30, 2012 balances of the collateralstiargt classified as restricted cash and are indlidprepaid expense and other in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. Subsequent to Sept&@p2012, we terminated both collateral trusts modeeds totaling $26.1 million were
returned to us. We replaced the collateral trustts two letters of credit totaling $27.2 millionhiE reduced the amount available to borrow
under the $300 million unsecured credit facilityafproximately $269.3 million.

At September 30, 2012, we had two lettégedit outstanding that were issued separateiy fihe $300 million unsecured credit
facility. One letter of credit for $0.1 million wassued by a bank on our behalf to support custnmdstransportation guaranties that were
required to move a rig between two internationeht@ns. The second letter of credit for $0.2 miilwas issued by a bank on our behalf to
guarantee payment of certain expenses incurred iyt@rnational transportation vendor. SubsequeSeptember 30, 2012, we issued two
letters of credit totaling $12 million to a bank the purposes of issuing two performance guaraméquired under an international drilling
contract. These letters of credit were issued sepd@rom the $300 million credit facility and thémee did not reduce our borrowing capacity
discussed above.

The applicable agreements for all unsecdedat described in this Note 3 contain additioraints, conditions and restrictions that we
believe are usual and customary in unsecured debtgements for companies that are similar in aimk credit quality. At September 30,
2012, we were in compliance with all debt covenants

At September 30, 2012, aggregate matuatiésng-term debt are as follows (in thousands):

Years ending September 3C

2013 $ 40,00(
2014 115,00(
2015 40,00(
2016 40,00(

$ 235,00(
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The components of the provision for incdasees are as follows:

Years Ended September 3(
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Current:
Federal $108,29° $ 42,377 $ 31,31.
Foreign 13,20: 14,25¢ 13,21¢
State 10,54 8,11: 1,93
132,04( 64,74¢ 46,46

Deferred:
Federal 196,37: 185,07¢ 100,20t
Foreign (6,489 (4,117 7,84¢
State 7,04z 6,692 (2,36))
196,93: 187,65: 105,69:
Total provision $ 328,97: $ 252,39¢ $ 152,15!

The amounts of domestic and foreign inctvefre income taxes are as follows:

Years Ended September 3(

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Domestic $ 886,48: $ 666,07. $ 389,38:
Foreign 16,09¢ 20,99« 48,85:

$ 902,58( $ 687,060 $ 438,23t

Deferred income taxes are provided fortémeporary differences between the financial repgrbasis and the tax basis of our assets anc
liabilities. Recoverability of any tax assets avalaated and necessary allowances are providedcdinging value of the net deferred tax
assets is based on management's judgments ustagastimates and assumptions that we will be @higenerate sufficient future taxable
income in certain tax jurisdictions to realize tenefits of such assets. If these estimates aatedeassumptions change in the future,
additional valuation allowances may be recordednatjshe deferred tax assets resulting in additio@me tax expense in the future.
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The components of our net deferred taxlitas are as follows:

September 30
2012 2011
(in thousands)

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme $ 1,103,76: $ 898,65
Available-for-sale securitie 154,46: 119,46
Other 4 62
Total deferred tax liabilitie 1,258,223 1,018,18:
Deferred tax asset
Pension reserve 9,48: 14,26(
Selfinsurance reserve 7,730 8,34«
Net operating loss and foreign tax credit carryfmmig 59,73( 54,96
Financial accrual 39,83: 36,67
Other 6,53¢ 3,22¢
Total deferred tax asse 123,31! 117,46
Valuation allowanct 56,56+ 54,70¢
Net deferred tax asse 66,75 62,75¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 1,191,48° $ 955,42!

The change in our net deferred tax assetdiabilities is impacted by foreign currency reasarement.

As of September 30, 2012, we had statdf@eign net operating loss carryforwards for incamre purposes of $21.4 million and
$34.7 million, respectively, and foreign tax credhitryforwards of approximately $49.9 million (ohieh $46.0 million is reflected as a
deferred tax asset in our Consolidated Financetke®tents prior to consideration of our valuatidaveance) which will expire in years 2013
through 2022. The valuation allowance is primaaitiributable to state and foreign net operating kryforwards of $1.6 million and
$11.4 million, respectively, and foreign tax crechtryforwards of $43.5 million which more likelgan not will not be utilized.

Effective income tax rates as compareth¢od.S. Federal income tax rate are as follows:

Years Ended

September 30,
2012 2011 2010
U.S. Federal income tax rée 35% 35% 35%
Effect of foreign taxe 1 1 1
State income taxe 0 1 D
Effective income tax rat 3% 37% 35%

We recognize accrued interest related teaognized tax benefits in interest expense, andlpes in other expense in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. As of September 30, 20128ad, we had accrued interest and penalties ofiilibn and $5.4 million,
respectively.
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A reconciliation of the change in our grassecognized tax benefits for the fiscal year eénfleptember 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

September 30

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits at Octobe $ 6,87¢ $ 5,54¢
Gross decreas—tax positions in prior perioc 4) (249
Gross increas—tax positions in prior perioc 2,63 2,561
Gross increas—current period effect of tax positio (242) 434
Expiration of statute of limitations for assessnst (82€) (1,415
Unrecognized tax benefits at September $ 8,43t $ 6,87¢

As of September 30, 2012 and Septembe2@01, our liability for unrecognized tax benefitasn$8.4 million and $6.9 million,
respectively, which would affect the effective tate if recognized. The liabilities for unrecogrizex benefits and related interest and
penalties are included in other noncurrent liakb#itn our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For the next 12 months, we cannot predittt eertainty whether we will achieve ultimate riegmn of any uncertain tax position
associated with our international operations tleala result in increases or decreases of our ugrézed tax benefits. However, we believe it
is reasonably possible that the reserve for unicetda positions may increase by approximately $ilion to $9.5 million during the next
12 months due to an international matter.

We file a consolidated U.S. federal incdarereturn, as well as income tax returns in vagistates and foreign jurisdictions. The tax
years that remain open to examination by U.S. fdderd state jurisdictions include fiscal years@@trough 2011. Audits in foreic
jurisdictions are generally complete through fisgzdr 2000

NOTE 5 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

On September 30, 2012, we had 105,697,683amding preferred stock purchase rights ("RIglgarsuant to the terms of the Rights
Agreement dated January 8, 1996, as amended by dm®t No. 1 dated December 8, 2005. As adjustethétwo-for-one stock splits in
fiscals 1998 and 2006, and as long as the Rigbtaatrseparately transferable, one-half Right h#ato each share of our common stock.
Under the terms of the Rights Agreement each Ragtitles the holder thereof to purchase one full emnsisting of one one-thousandth of a
share of Series A Junior Participating PreferreatiS("Preferred Stock"), without par value, at @@mf $250 per unit. The exercise price and
the number of units of Preferred Stock issuablexarcise of the Rights are subject to adjustmeneitain cases to prevent dilution. The
Rights will be attached to the common stock cedtes and are not exercisable or transferable &ipartthe common stock, until ten busin
days after a person acquires 15 percent or mateeafutstanding common stock or ten business dadlgsving the commencement of a ten
offer or exchange offer that would result in a parswning 15 percent or more of the outstandingraomstock. In that event, each holder of
a Right (other than the acquiring person) shaletéve right to receive, upon exercise of the Rigbtmon stock of the Company having a
value equal to two times the exercise price ofRight. In the event we are acquired in a
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merger or certain other business combination t@iwss (including one in which we are the survivoayporation), or more than 50 percer
our assets or earning power is sold or transfegach holder of a Right shall have the right tenes, upon exercise of the Right, common
stock of the acquiring company having a value etpuédo times the exercise price of the Right. Rights are redeemable under certain
circumstances at $0.01 per Right and will expirdess earlier redeemed, on January 31, 2016.

The Company has authorization from the BadrDirectors for the repurchase of up to fourlimil common shares in any calendar year.
The repurchases may be made using our cash anégaistalents or other available sources. Duringafi®012, we purchased 1,747,819
common shares at an aggregate cost of $77.6 millibich are held as treasury shares.

NOTE 6 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On March 2, 2011, the 2010 Long-Term InsenPlan (the "2010 Plan") was approved by ourldiolders. The 2010 Plan, among other
things, authorizes the Board of Directors to graotiqualified stock options, restricted stock awamad stock appreciation rights to selected
employees and to non-employee Directors. Restritisek may be granted for no consideration othen fhrior and future services. The
purchase price per share for stock options mayadéss than market price of the underlying stotkhe date of grant. Stock options expire
ten years after the grant date. We have the rigbatisfy option exercises from treasury sharesftamd authorized but unissued shares. There
were 455,900 nonqualified stock options and 2438G0es of restricted stock awards granted unée2@40 Plan during fiscal 2012. Awal
outstanding in the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plée (2005 Plan") and one prior equity plan remainject to the terms and conditions of
those plans.

On December 1, 2009, we amended the fofragreement under the 2005 Plan for awards of raliftpd stock options, incentive stock
options and restricted stock. We also amendediegistock option and restricted stock award agregsnender the 2005 Plan. The
amendments provided for continued vesting (andlexated vesting upon death) of restricted stocksiadk options effective upon a
participant becoming retirement eligible. A pagiant meets the definition of retirement eligibl¢hié participant attains age 55 and has 15 or
more years of continuous service as a full-time legge. The amendments were applied retroactivedya Aesult of the continued vesting
provisions, we incurred additional compensatiort cbspproximately $4.9 million in fiscal 2010.

A summary of compensation cost for stockdobpayment arrangements recognized in generadmahistrative expense in fiscal 2012,
2011 and 2010 is as follows:

September 30
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Compensation expen
Stock options $ 9,791 $ 7,22¢ $ 11,47t
Restricted stoc 8,287 4,871 4,38(

$ 18,07¢ $ 12,10 $ 15,85!
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Benefits of tax deductions in excess obgeized compensation cost of $3.3 million, $12.8iom and $3.3 million are reported as a
financing cash flow in the Consolidated StatemefhtSash Flows for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respely.

STOCK OPTIONS

Vesting requirements for stock optionsaetermined by the Human Resources Committee oBoard of Directors. Options currently
outstanding began vesting one year after the giaetwith 25 percent of the options vesting forfoonsecutive years.

We use the Black-Scholes formula to estntlag fair value of stock options granted to emeésy The fair value of the options is
amortized to compensation expense on a straightblirsis over the requisite service periods of theksawards, which are generally the
vesting periods. The weighted-average fair valueutations for options granted within the fiscatipe are based on the following weighted-
average assumptions set forth in the table belgtio®s that were granted in prior periods are basedssumptions prevailing at the date of
grant.

2012 2011 2010

Risk-free interest rat 1% 1.9% 2.2%
Expected stock volatilit 53.2% 51.€% 49.9%
Dividend yield 0.4% 0.5% 0.5%
Expected term (in year 5.E 5.E 5.€

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.8a3ury securities for the expected term of theoapti

Expected Volatility Rate. Expected volatilities are based on the daibgitlg price of our stock based upon historical eérpee over a
period which approximates the expected term obteon.

Expected Dividend Yield. The dividend yield is based on our currentdtvid yield.

Expected Term. The expected term of the options granted reptsshe period of time that they are expectecttodistanding. We
estimate the expected term of options granted basénistorical experience with grants and exercises

Based on these calculations, the weightedlage fair value per option granted to acquirkaesof common stock was $27.70, $22.20
and $17.64 per share for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2@HBpectively.

36




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 6 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

The following summary reflects the stockiop activity for our common stock and related imf@ation for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010
(shares in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at
October 1 4,58¢ $ 25.8¢ 557 $ 22.82 5,401 $ 20.5¢
Grantec 45¢ 59.6¢ 324 47.9¢ 57C 38.02
Exercisec (319 17.2¢ (1,289 18.2¢ (397) 13.6:
Forfeited/Expire (42) 42.21 (18) 34.0¢ )] 38.0z
Outstanding on
September 3( 4,69C $ 29.5¢ 4,58¢ $ 25.8¢ 5572 $ 22.8:
Exercisable on
September 3( 3,67t $ 24.6¢ 3,281 $ 22.3¢ 3,88t $ 19.6¢
Shares available
to grant 5,082 6,00( 761

The following table summarizes informatetmout stock options at September 30, 2012 (shartt®usands):

Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable Stock Options

Weighteo-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Range of Exercise Price Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$11.3318 to $16.0 1,26¢ 12 $ 14.1¢ 1,26¢ $ 14.1¢
$21.05 to $30.237 1,571 4¢ 3 25.0( 1,371 $ 25.57
$35.105 to $59.7 1,85( 7€ $ 43.9¢ 93t $ 37.5¢
$11.3318 to $59.7 4,69( 48 $ 29.5¢ 3,57t $ 24.6¢

At September 30, 2012, the weighted-averag®ining life of exercisable stock options wayaars and the aggregate intrinsic value
was $82.3 million with a weighted-average exerpisee of $24.66 per share.

The number of options vested or expected#d at September 30, 2012 was 4,648,528 witlygregate intrinsic value of $89.4 million
and a weighted-average exercise price of $28.38mme.

As of September 30, 2012, the unrecognipedpensation cost related to the stock options®42sl million. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2asye

The total intrinsic value of options exeetl during fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $12.6om,l$50.5 million and $11.3 million,
respectively.

The grant date fair value of shares vedtethg fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $8.1 milli®n.9 million and $7.0 million, respectively.
RESTRICTED STOCK

Restricted stock awards consist of our comstock and are time vested over three to sixsy&de recognize compensation expense on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period. fetievalue of restricted stock awards under the@?Btian is determined based on the closing
price of our shares on the grant date. As of Seip¢er80, 2012, there was $13.3 million of total wognized compensation
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NOTE 6 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
cost related to unvested restricted stock awarldat dost is expected to be recognized over a waiigaverage period of 2.6 years.

A summary of the status of our restrictextls awards as of September 30, 2012, and of clsangestricted stock outstanding during
fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 an@, 20as follows (share amounts in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair
Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share
Outstanding at
October 1 32 % 42.3¢ 28¢ $ 35.2¢ 177 $ 30.0¢
Grantec 244 59.7¢ 16¢ 47.9¢ 182 38.0¢2
Vested (1) (119) 40.21 (139 33.9: (70) 29.3¢
Forfeited/Expire (18 49.7¢ Q) 47.9¢ — —
Outstanding on
September 3( 43C $ 52.5¢ 32¢ $ 42.3¢ 28¢ $ 35.2¢

(1)  The number of restricted stock awards vested irdwgthares that we withheld on behalf of our em@sye satisfy the
statutory tax withholding requiremen

NOTE 7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

ASC 260Earnings per Sharerequires companies to treat unvested share-lpgsadent awards that have non-forfeitable rights to
dividend or dividend equivalents as a separatesaésecurities in calculating earnings per shéfe.have granted and expect to continue to
grant to employees restricted stock grants thatagmmon-forfeitable rights to dividends. Such dsaare considered participating securities
under ASC 260. As such, we are required to incthdee grants in the calculation of our basic eger share and calculate basic earnings
per share using the two-class method. The two-chethod of computing earnings per share is an mgsrallocation formula that determines
earnings per share for each class of common stutlarticipating security according to dividendsldeed (or accumulated) and
participation rights in undistributed earnings.

Basic earnings per share is computed utfithe two-class method and is calculated basedeighted-average humber of common
shares outstanding during the periods presented.

Diluted earnings per share is computedguie weightediverage number of common and common equivalengstmatstanding durir
the periods utilizing the two-class method for &toptions and nonvested restricted stock.
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NOTE 7 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
The following table sets forth the compigtatof basic and diluted earnings per share:

September 30

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 573,60¢ $ 434,66¢ $ 286,08:
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 7,43¢ (482) (129,769
Net income 581,04! 434,18t 156,31:
Adjustment for basic earnings per sh
Earnings allocated to unvested sharehol (2,246 (1,299 (409
Numerator for basic earnings per shi
From continuing operatior 571,36: 433,37 285,67
From discontinued operatio 7,43¢ (482) (129,769
578,79! 432,89: 155,90t
Adjustment for diluted earnings per she
Effect of reallocating undistributed earnings of/ested
shareholder 31 22 6
Numerator for diluted earnings per she
From continuing operatior 571,39: 433,39! 285,68:
From discontinued operatio 7,43¢ (482) (129,769
$ 578,83( $ 432,911 $ 155,91«
Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings per share—weighted
average share 106,81¢ 106,64 105,71:
Effect of dilutive shares from stock options anstrieted
stock 1,55¢ 1,98¢ 1,69:
Denominator for diluted earnings per share—adjustec
weighte-average share 108,37 108,63: 107,40«
Basic earnings per common shal
Income from continuing operatiol $ 53t $ 4.06 $ 2.7C
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.07 — (1.29)
Net income $ 54z $ 4.0¢ $ 1.4%
Diluted earnings per common shar
Income from continuing operatiol $ 521 $ 3.9¢ % 2.6¢€
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.07 — (2.27)
Net income $ 534§ 3.9¢ % 1.4t
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NOTE 7 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

The following shares attributable to outsiag equity awards were excluded from the calautadf diluted earnings per share because
their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive:

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, excep
per share amounts)
Shares excluded from calculation of diluted earsipgr shar 44¢€ 31C 554
Weighte(-average price per she $ 59.6¢ $ 47.9¢ $ 38.0Z

NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASURE MENT

The estimated fair value of our availaliegale securities is primarily based on marketegior he following is a summary of available-
for-sale securities, which excludes investmentsmited partnerships carried at cost and assetsihed Non-qualified Supplemental Savings
Plan:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(in thousands)
Equity Securities
September 30, 201 $ 129,18 $ 304,39 $ — $ 433,57
September 30, 201 $ 129,18. $ 203,48t $ — $ 332,66

On an on-going basis, we evaluate the ntaloke equity securities to determine if a decliméair value below cost is other-than-
temporary. If a decline in fair value below costiefermined to be other-than-temporary, an impaitrobarge is recorded and a new cost
basis established. We review several factors terdete whether a loss is other-than-temporary. @ i@stors include, but are not limited to,
(i) the length of time a security is in an unreadizoss position, (ii) the extent to which fairwalis less than cost, (iii) the financial condition
and near term prospects of the issuer and (iv)rdent and ability to hold the security for a pefriaf time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value.

The investments in the limited partnersiuasied at cost were approximately $9.4 milliorBaptember 30, 2012 and 2011. The
estimated fair value of the limited partnerships 8.0 million and $15.8 million at September 3012 and 2011, respectively. During
fiscal 2011, we sold our investment in a limitedtparship that was carried at a cost of approxiip&®.0 million and had a fair value of
approximately $3.9 million at the date of the s&lgjross realized gain of approximately $0.9 millis included in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. Subsequent to Septembe03Q, #e sold our shares in three limited partnessttiat were primarily invested in
international equities. Proceeds of approximatdl§.$ million were received during the first quantéfiscal 2013.

The assets held in a Non-qualified SuppleaieSavings Plan are carried at fair market vathih totaled $8.2 million and $5.9 million
at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The majority of cash equivalents are inedsh moneymarket mutual funds invested primarily in directimdirect obligations of the U.
Government. The carrying amount of cash and casivaents approximates fair value due to the shmaturity of those investments.
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NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASURE MENT (Continued)
The carrying value of other assets, acchadilities and other liabilities approximatedrfaalue at September 30, 2012 and 2011.
ASC 820 defines fair value as "the pricat thould be received to sell an asset or paidatasfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measuremernt de®€ 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy torfiize the inputs used in valuation

techniques into three levels as follows:

. Level 1—Observable inputs that reflect quoted fwiceactive markets for identical assets or lisibsi in active markets.

. Level 2—Inputs other than Level 1 that are obsdeyatither directly or indirectly, such as quotetes for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are active; or other inputs that are observable ortmanorroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of #esets or liabilities.

. Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unofadde and not corroborated by market data.

At September 30, 2012, our financial assglizing Level 1 inputs include cash equivalergquity securities with active markets and
money market funds we have elected to classifesisicted assets that are included in other cuassets and other assets. Also included is
cash denominated in a foreign currency we haveezldo classify as restricted that is includedurrent assets of discontinued operations
limited to remaining liabilities of discontinued egations. For these items, quoted current marke¢pare readily available.

At September 30, 2012, Level 2 inputs idela bank certificate of deposit, which is includtedurrent assets.
Currently, we do not have any financiatinments utilizing Level 3 inputs.

The following table summarizes our assedasured at fair value on a recurring basis predenteur Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
September 30, 2012:

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Total Identical Observable Unobservable
Measured at Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in thousands)
Assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 96,09 $ 96,09: $ — 9 —
Investment: 433,57¢ 433,57¢ — —
Other current asse 36,60¢ 36,35¢ 25C —
Other asset 2,00( 2,00( — —
Total assets measure
at fair value $ 568,28. $ 568,03 $ 25C $ —
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NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASURE MENT (Continued)

The following information presents the sigppental fair value information about long-termefikrate debt at September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011.

September 30

2012 2011

(in thousands)
Carrying value of lon-term fixec-rate deb $ 235.C $ 350.C
Fair value of lon-term fixec-rate deb $ 2527 $ 376.¢

The fair value for fixed-rate debt was mstied using discounted cash flows at rates refigaturrent interest rates at similar maturities
plus credit spread which was estimated using thetanding market information on debt instrumentdai similar credit profile to us. The
debt was valued using a Level 2 input.

NOTE 9 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS )
The components of other comprehensive irc@ioss) for the years ended September 30, 2012, @6d 2010 were as follows:

Years Ended September 3C
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on secug;itiet of
tax of $37,185, $11,047 and $(13,7. $ 63,72F $ 18,41 $ (22,88Y

Amortization of net periodic benefit costset of actuarial gai
(loss), net of tax of $2,436, $(2,167) and $(3,- 4,174 (3,619 (5,459

$ 67,89¢ $ 14,80. $ (28,34

The components of accumulated other congmrgilie income (loss) at September 30, 2012 and, 2@t bf applicable tax effects, were
follows:

September 30
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Unrealized appreciation on securit $ 189,85. $ 126,12
Unrecognized actuarial loss and prior service (23,049 (27,219

$ 166,800 $ 98,90¢

NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We maintain a domestic noncontributory wedi benefit pension plan covering certain U.S. eyg®#s who meet certain age and service
requirements. In July 2003, we revised the Helnhegid®ayne, Inc. Employee Retirement Plan ("PenBilam") to close the Pension Plan to
new participants effective October 1, 2003, andicedbenefit accruals for current participants tgfoGeptember 30, 2006, at which time
benefit accruals were discontinued and the Peri@lmmwas frozen.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

The following table provides a reconciliatiof the changes in the pension benefit obligatemd fair value of Pension Plan assets over
the two-year period ended September 30, 2012 atatement of the funded status as of Septemb&03@, and 2011:

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Accumulated Benefit Obligatio $ 112,06: $ 104,91:

Changes in projected benefit obligatic

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 104,91: $ 102,09
Interest cos 4,49¢ 4,51¢
Actuarial gain 5,99( 2,411
Benefits paic (3,337 (4,11¢

Projected benefit obligation at end of y $ 112,06: $ 104,91:

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 67,28 $ 61,38t¢
Actual return on plan asse 14,49t (1,329
Employer contributiot 8,27¢ 11,33¢
Benefits paic (3,337 (4,11¢

Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 86,71¢ $ 67,28¢

Funded status of the plan at end of y $ (25,349 $ (37,62)

The amounts recognized in the ConsolidB@dnce Sheets are as follows (in thousands):

Accrued liabilities $ (95) $ (698
Noncurrent liabilitie-other (25,249 (37,559
Net amount recognize $ (25,349 $ (37,62)

The amounts recognized in Accumulated O@w@nprehensive Income at September 30, 2012 antl 20d not yet reflected in net
periodic benefit cost, are as follows (in thousands

Net actuarial los $ (37,177 $ (43,78)
Prior service cos Q) 2
Total $ (37,179 $ (43,78))

The amount recognized in Accumulated O@@mprehensive Income and not yet reflected in peribenefit cost expected to be
amortized in next year's periodic benefit cost ietactuarial loss of $2.7 million.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

The weighted average assumptions usedéopénsion calculations were as follows:

Years Ended September 3(
2012 2011 2010

Discount rate for net periodic benefit co 43% 4.48% 5.42%
Discount rate for ye-end obligation: 406 4.32% 4.48%
Expected return on plan ass 7.16% 8.0% 8.0(%

We contributed $8.3 million to the PensRian in fiscal 2012 to fund distributions in liefiliguidating pension assets. We estimate
contributing at least $0.1 million in fiscal 20X8rmeet the minimum contribution required by law axgect to make additional contributions
in fiscal 2013 if needed to fund unexpected distiins.

Components of the net periodic pension Bgpdbenefit) were as follows:

Years Ended September 3C

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Interest cos $ 449 $ 451¢ $ 4,82
Expected return on plan ass (5,467 (5,050 (4,552
Amortization of prior service co: 2 — —
Recognized net actuarial Ic 3,561 2,97¢ 2,29t
Settlement/curtailmer — 28 —
Net pension expense (bene $ 2,60¢ $ 2,47 $ 2,56¢

The following table reflects the expecteaéfits to be paid from the Pension Plan in eachehext five fiscal years, and in the
aggregate for the five years thereafter (in thodsan

Years Ended September 3C
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018- 2022 Total

$ 6,477 $ 5555 $ 5997 $6,59° $ 6,35( $ 36,90( $ 67,87:

Included in the Pension Plan is an unfurglgzblemental executive retirement plan.
INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND ASSET ALLOCATION

Our investment policy and strategies atal#ished with a long-term view in mind. The invasnt strategy is intended to help pay the
cost of the Plan while providing adequate secudatsneet the benefits promised under the Plan. Wataia a diversified asset mix to
minimize the risk of a material loss to the poiitiolalue that might occur from devaluation of amgte investment. In determining the
appropriate asset mix, our financial strength drilityato fund potential shortfalls are consider&dian assets are invested in portfolios of
diversified public-market equity securities andefixincome securities. The Plan does not directlg kecurities of the Company.
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The expected long-term rate of return @nRissets is based on historical and projectes oateturn for current and planned asset
classes in the Plan's investment portfolio aftedyming historical experience and future expectatiof the return and volatility of various
asset classes.

The target allocation for 2013 and the aabecation for the Pension Plan at the end afdi2012 and 2011, by asset category, follows:

Percentage
of Plan
Target Assets At
Allocation September 30
Asset Category 2013 2012 2011
U.S. equities 56% 55% 56%
International equitie 14 12 13
Fixed income 25 25 3C
Real estate and oth 5 8 1
Total 10(% 10(% 10(%

PLAN ASSETS

The fair value of Plan assets at Septer@bep012 and 2011, summarized by level within gievalue hierarchy described in Note 8,
as follows:

Fair Value as of September 30, 201

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands)
Shor-term investment $ 723 $ 723 $ — $ —
Mutual funds:
Domestic stock fund 36,20¢ 36,20¢ — —
Bond funds 21,45¢ 21,45¢ — —
International stock func 10,06¢ 10,06¢ — —
Total mutual fund: 67,73¢ 67,73¢ — —
Domestic common stoc 10,54: 10,54: — —
Foreign equity stoc 907 907 — —
Qil and gas propertie 29¢ — — 29¢
Total $ 86,71¢ $8641¢ $ — $ 29¢
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Fair Value as of September 30, 201

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands)

Shor-term investment $ 691 $ 691 $§ — $ —
Mutual funds:

Domestic stock fund 28,28¢ 28,28¢ — —

Bond funds 20,127 20,127 — —

International stock func 8,84¢ 8,84¢ — —

Total mutual fund: 57,26: 57,26: — —

Domestic common stoc

8,252 8,252 — —

Foreign equity stoc 803 803 — —
Oil and gas propertie 27¢ — — 27t
Total $ 67,28 $ 67,00¢ $§ — $ 27t

The Plan's financial assets utilizing LeVéhputs are valued based on quoted prices imeantarkets for identical securities. The Plan
has no assets utilizing Level 2. The Plan's asg#iwing Level 3 inputs consist of oil and gas pesties. The fair value of oil and gas
properties is determined by Wells Fargo Bank, Nbased upon actual revenue received for the previeelve-month period and experience
with similar assets.

The following table sets forth a summaryglsénges in the fair value of the Plan's Levels®tssfor the years ended September 30, 2012
and 2011:

Oil and Gas

Properties
Years Ended

SeEtember 30,
2012 2011

(in thousands)

$ 278 § 27¢

Balance, beginning of ye
Unrealized gains relating to property still heldrsa reporting
date 24

Balance, end of ye: $ 29¢ $ 27¢

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Substantially all employees on the Unit¢at&s payroll may elect to participate in the 4)I(krift Plan by contributing a portion of the
earnings. We contribute an amount equal to 100epef the first five percent of the participamtsnpensation subject to certain limitations.
The annual expense incurred for this defined coation plan was $26.7 million, $21.0 million andd$a million in fiscal 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.
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The following reflects the activity in oteserve for bad debt for 2012, 2011 and 2010:

September 30
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Reserve for bad dek

Balance at October $ 77¢ $ 83C $ 65¢
Provision for (recovery of) bad de 20¢ 10€ 20¢
Write-off of bad deb (39 (160 (35
Balance at September & $ 94z $§ 77¢ $ 83C

Accounts receivable, prepaid expensespaddiabilities and long-term liabilities at Septasn 30 consist of the following:

September 30

2012 2011
Prepaid expenses and ott
Restricted cas $ 28,98¢ $ 16,01t
Prepaid insuranc 15,52: 10,117
Deferred mobilizatior 19,80¢ 8,51
Prepaid value added ti 1,47(C 3,88¢
Other 8,90: 11,20¢
Total prepaid expenses and ot $ 74,69° $ 49,73¢
Accrued liabilities:
Accrued operating cos $ 37,645 $ 50,41
Payroll and employee benef 52,18 43,07°
Taxes payable, other than income 35,84: 37,78¢
Accrued income taxe 1,32¢ 17,07t
Deferred mobilizatior 13,351 11,28:
Self-insurance liabilitie: 5,611 5,452
Deferred incom 11,28( 4,07:
Other 19,374 23,73¢
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 176,61! $ 192,89¢
Noncurrent liabilitie—Other:
Pension and other n-qualified retirement plar $ 40,14: $ 50,22t
Self-insurance liabilitie: 12,38t 13,78(
Deferred mobilizatior 19,36¢ 12,03
Deferred incomt 6,76¢ 10,56¢
Uncertain tax positions including interest and
penalties 12,18¢ 9,82¢
Other 7,552 7,84¢
Total noncurrent liabilitie—other $ 98,39! $ 104,28
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NOTE 12 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Years Ended September 3C
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Cash payment:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: $ 10,717 $ 16,107 $ 16,72
Income taxes pai $ 144,95¢ $ 19,62: $ 104,02

Capital expenditures on the Consolidatededtents of Cash Flows for the years ended Septe36b2012, 2011 and 2010 do not
include additions which have been incurred butpzat for as of the end of the year. The followiaglé reconciles total capital expenditures
incurred to total capital expenditures in the Cdidsted Statements of Cash Flows:

September 30

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Capital expenditures incurre $ 1,082,67 $ 730,34 $ 345,26«
Additions incurred prior year but paid for in curteear 61,59 25,50¢ 9,81¢
Additions incurred but not paid for as of the efidhe yeal (46,589 (61,59) (25,509
Capital expenditures per Consolidated Statemen@ash
Flows $ 1,097,681 $ 694,26: $ 329,57.

NOTE 13 RISK FACTORS
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT

Financial instruments which potentially gab us to concentrations of credit risk consigtarily of temporary cash investments, short-
term investments and trade receivables. We plampdeary cash investments in the U.S. with estabtidinancial institutions and invest in a
diversified portfolio of highly rated, short-termomey market instruments. Our trade receivablemanily with established companies in the
oil and gas industry, may impact credit risk asg@uners may be similarly affected by prolonged cleanig economic and industry conditions.
International sales also present various riskaitfinly governmental activities that may limit orrdist markets and restrict the movement of
funds. Most of our international sales, howeveg,tarlarge international or government-owned nali@il companies. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of customers and do not typfaafuire collateral in support for trade receiesbWe provide an allowance for doubtful
accounts, when necessary, to cover estimated ¢osdiés. Such an allowance is based on managerkeotidedge of customer accounts.
Except as disclosed in Note 2, Discontinued Opamatino significant credit losses have been expesi in recent history.

VOLATILITY OF MARKET

Our operations can be materially affectg@iband gas prices. Oil and natural gas pricesvaftatile and very difficult to predict. While
current energy prices are important contributongdsitive cash flow for customers, expectationsualture prices and price volatility are
generally more important for determining a custdeiture spending levels. This volatility, alongwthe difficulty in predicting future
prices, can lead many exploration and productionganies to base their capital
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spending on much more conservative estimates oframiity prices. As a result, demand for contradtidg services is not always purely a
function of the movement of commodity prices.

In addition, customers may finance thepleration activities through cash flow from opeoat$, the incurrence of debt or the issuanc
equity. Any deterioration in the credit and capitarkets may cause difficulty for customers to obfanding for their capital needs. A
reduction of cash flow resulting from declines omomodity prices or a reduction of available finamgcmay result in a reduction in customer
spending and the demand for drilling services. Tédiction in spending could have a material adveffect on our operations.

SELF-INSURANCE

We self-insure a significant portion of exfed losses relating to worker's compensatiorergéhiability and automobile liability.
Generally, deductibles range from $1 million torslion per occurrence depending on the coveragkvemether a claim occurs outside or
inside of the United States. Insurance is purchased deductibles to reduce our exposure to cafalsic events. Estimates are recorded for
incurred outstanding liabilities for worker's compation, general liability claims and claims the scurred but not reported. Estimates are
based on adjusters' estimates, historic experig@ndestatistical methods that we believe are radidkibnetheless, insurance estimates include
certain assumptions and management judgments irgdhe frequency and severity of claims, claimalepment and settlement practices.
Unanticipated changes in these factors may prothaterially different amounts of expense that wdwddeported under these programs.

We have a wholly-owned captive insuranaagany which finances a significant portion of thggical damage risk on compaoy#ned
drilling rigs as well as international casualty detibles. With the exception of "named wind stomisk in the Gulf of Mexico, we insure rigs
and related equipment at values that approxima&eirent replacement cost on the inception dateeopolicy.

INTERNATIONAL DRILLING OPERATIONS

International drilling operations may sifigantly contribute to our revenues and net opegaincome. There can be no assurance that we
will be able to successfully conduct such operatji@amd a failure to do so may have an adverseteffeour financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows. Also, the success ointernational operations will be subject to numes contingencies, some of which are
beyond management's control. These contingenaiégdie general and regional economic conditionstdiations in currency exchange rates,
modified exchange controls, changes in internaticegulatory requirements and international emplegitissues, risk of expropriation of
and personal property and the burden of complyiitly fereign laws. Additionally, in the event thattended labor strikes occur or a country
experiences significant political, economic or sbaistability, we could experience shortages bolaand/or material and supplies necessary
to operate some of our drilling rigs, thereby ptitdly causing an adverse material effect on owitess, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are not operating in any country thaugently considered highly inflationary, whichdsfined as cumulative inflation rates
exceeding 100 percent in the most recent threeperémd. All of our foreign subsidiaries use thé&Udollar as the functional currency and
local currency monetary assets are remeasuredJitodollars with gains and losses resulting fromeign currency
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transactions included in current results of opereti As such, if a foreign economy is considereghlgiinflationary, there would be no imps
on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS

During fiscal 2012, we announced agreemientsiild and operate 29 new FlexRigs. As of Novenith, 2012, nine new FlexRigs with
customer commitments remained under constructiomin® construction, rig construction cost is inaddn construction in progress and tl
transferred to contract drilling equipment whentigeis placed in the field for service. Equipmauayts and supplies are ordered in advan
promote efficient construction progress. At Septen8D, 2012, we had purchase orders outstandiagmbximately $193.8 million for the
purchase of drilling equipment.

LEASES

At September 30, 2012, we were leasing@pprately 174,000 square feet of office space deamtown Tulsa, Oklahoma. We also
lease other office space and equipment for uspénations. For operating leases that contain bujitre-determined rent escalations, rent
expense is recognized on a straight-line basis theelife of the lease. Leasehold improvementscapitalized and amortized over the lease
term. Future minimum rental payments required ungerating leases having initial or remaining nanaelable lease terms in excess of a
year at September 30, 2012 are as follc

Fiscal Year Amount
(in thousands)

2013 $ 5,72¢
2014 3,94%
2015 3,027
2016 2,41z
2017 2,38(
Thereaftel 16,94

Total $ 34,43(

Total rent expense was $8.5 million, $5iBiom and $5.4 million for fiscal 2012, 2011 an@1D, respectively.
CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions, the majority of whigrise in the ordinary course of business, areipgnWe maintain insurance against certain
business risks subject to certain deductibles. Nditleese legal actions are expected to have arialaaelverse effect on our financial
condition, cash flows or results of operations.

We are contingently liable to suretiesaapect of bonds issued by the sureties in conmegtih certain commitments entered into by us
in the normal course of business. We have agregualeannify the sureties for any payments made byntin respect of such bonds.
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During the ordinary course of our businessitingencies arise resulting from an existingditoon, situation, or set of circumstances
involving an uncertainty as to the realization gfassible gain contingency. We account for gairtiogencies in accordance with the
provisions of ASC 450Contingencies and, therefore, we do not record gain contingesnand recognize income until realized. As disalisse
in Note 2, Discontinued Operations, property andiggent of our Venezuelan subsidiary was seizethby/enezuelan government on
June 30, 2010. Our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Heithe® Payne International Drilling Co. and Helnari& Payne de Venezuela, C.A.,
filed a lawsuit in the United States District Cofat the District of Columbia on September 23, 2@f4inst the Bolivarian Republic of
Venezuela, Petroleos de Venezuela, S.A. ("Petrpkend PDVSA Petroleo, S.A. ("PDVSA"). Our subsi@arseek damages for the taking of
their Venezuelan drilling business in violationimternational law and for breach of contract. Aadially, we are participating in an
arbitration against a third party not affiliatectvthe Venezuelan government, Petroleo or PDVSaniattempt to collect an aggregate
$50 million relating to the seizure of our propertyenezuela. The arbitration hearing is presestlyeduled for late May 2013.

While there exists the possibility of realg a recovery, we are currently unable to deteentine timing or amounts we may receive, if
any, or the likelihood of recovery. No gain congngies are recognized in our Consolidated Finastetements.

In the fourth fiscal quarter of 2012, wétleel another arbitration dispute with a third parbt affiliated with the Venezuelan governm
Petroleo or PDVSA related to the seizure of oupprty in Venezuela. Proceeds of $7.5 million wereived and recorded in discontinued
operations.

NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION

We operate principally in the contractldrg industry. Our contract drilling business ind&s the following reportable operating
segments: U.S. Land, Offshore and InternationatlLdie contract drilling operations consist maiofycontracting Company-owned drilling
equipment primarily to large oil and gas explomt@mmpanies. To provide information about the défe types of business activities in wr
we operate, we have included Offshore and InteynatiLand, along with our U.S. Land reportable atiag segment, as separate reportable
operating segments. Additionally, each reportaplerating segment is a strategic business unit wikiolanaged separately. Our primary
international areas of operation include ColomBieyador, Argentina, Tunisia, Bahrain, Abu Dhabi attter South American countries.
Other includes additional non-reportable operasiegments. Revenues included in Other consist phindrental income. Consolidated
revenues and expenses reflect the eliminationl ohatlerial intercompany transactions.

We evaluate segment performance basedoomia or loss from operations (segment operatingni®) before income taxes which
includes:

. revenues from external and internal customers
. direct operating costs

. depreciation and

. allocated general and administrative costs

but excludes corporate costs for other depreciatimome from asset sales and other corporate ia@md expense.
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NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

General and administrative costs are almtto the segments based primarily on specifiotifieation and, to the extent that such
identification is not practical, on other methodsieth we believe to be a reasonable reflection efutilization of services provided.

Segment operating income for all segmenésrion-GAAP financial measure of our performaasdt excludes certain general and
administrative expenses, corporate depreciatiamonie from asset sales and other corporate incothexpense. We consider segment
operating income to be an important supplementalsme of operating performance for presenting sémaeur core businesses. We use this
measure to facilitate period-to-period comparisarnsperating performance of our reportable segmierttse aggregate by eliminating items
that affect comparability between periods. We helithat segment operating income is useful to itovedecause it provides a means to
evaluate the operating performance of the segnoen#s ongoing basis using criteria that are useaupynternal decision makers.
Additionally, it highlights operating trends andlgianalytical comparisons. However, segment opgratticome has limitations and should
be used as an alternative to operating incomess, b performance measure determined in accordatt&AAP, as it excludes certain co
that may affect our operating performance in fuppggods.
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NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Summarized financial information of our oggable segments for continuing operations for e#dche years ended September 30, 2012,
2011 and 2010 is shown in the following table:

Segment Additions
External Inter - Total Operating Total to Long-Lived
(in thousands) Sales Segment Sales Income (Loss Depreciation Assets Assets
2012
Contract
Drilling
U.S.Land $2,678,47'$ — $2,678,47' $ 906,96¢ $ 332,720 $4,422,29° $ 991,96t
Offshore 189,08t — 189,08¢ 41,77¢ 13,45t 160,13! 8,541
Internatione
Land 270,02 — 270,02’ 20,36¢ 30,701 467,53¢ 52,86«
3,137,58 — 3,137,58: 969,10¢ 376,87¢ 5,049,971 1,053,37
Other 14,21« 841 15,05t (8,829 10,67( 663,49¢ 29,30!
3,151,80: 841 3,152,64. 960,28! 387,54¢ 5,713,461 1,082,67:
Eliminations — (841) (841) — — — —
Total $3,151,800 $ — $3,151,80: $ 960,28! $ 387,54¢ $5,713,46! $ 1,082,67:
2011
Contract
Drilling
U.S.Land $2,100,50: $ — $2,100,50: $ 691,61' $ 264,12° $3,719,38 $ 694,24¢
Offshore 201,41 — 201,41° 45,29 14,68¢ 151,65¢ 7,092
Internatione
Land 226,84 — 226,84¢ 19,71 28,01¢ 333,14 20,63¢
2,528,77. —  2,528,77. 756,61 306,82¢ 4,204,18! 721,97¢
Other 15,12( 82¢ 15,94¢ (7,682 8,63¢ 792,17 8,36¢
2,543,89. 82C 2,544,72. 748,93! 315,46¢ 4,996,36: 730,34
Eliminations — (829) (829) — — — —
Total  $2,543,80- $§ — $2,543,80. $ 748,93! $ 315,46¢ $4,996,36. $ 730,34’
2010
Contract
Drilling
U.S.Land $1,41249 $ — $1,412,49' $ 404,27¢ $ 211,65 $3,257,38: $ 305,20t
Offshore 202,73¢ — 202,73¢ 53,06¢ 12,51¢ 132,34 9,98:
Internatione
Land 247,17¢ — 247,17¢ 48,27 29,93¢ 411,33¢ 23,86¢
1,862,40: — 1,862,40: 505,61t 254,10¢ 3,801,06. 339,05
Other 12,75¢ 814 13,56¢ (6,765 8,54¢ 454,03° 6,211
1,875,16. 814 1,875,971 498,85: 262,65¢ 4,255,10! 345,26
Eliminations — (8149) (8149) — — — —
Total $1,875,16. $ — $1,875,16: $ 498,85: $ 262,65¢ $4,255,100 $ 345,26«
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NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following table reconciles segment atiag income to income from continuing operatioefobe income taxes as reported on the
Consolidated Statements of Income:

Years Ended September 3(C

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Segment operating incon $ 960,28' $ 748,93 $ 498,85:
Income from asset sal 19,22 13,90: 4,99;
Corporate general and administrative cc
and corporate depreciatis (69,909 (60,327 (52,049
Operating incomi 909,59¢ 702,51: 451,79t
Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon 1,38( 1,951 1,811
Interest expens (8,659 (17,355 (17,159
Gain on sale of investment securit — 913 —
Other 254 (959%) 1,78
Total unallocated amoun (7,019 (15,449 (13,56()
Income from continuing operations befo
income taxe: $ 902,58( $ 687,060 $ 438,23¢

The following table presents revenues fexternal customers and long-lived assets by courasgd on the location of service provided:

Years Ended September 3C
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Revenue:
United State: $ 2,864,571 $ 2,276,111 $ 1,572,13
Colombia 82,24, 74,504 57,53
Argentina 54,31" 44,20¢ 55,85¢
Ecuadol 56,44¢ 42,59¢ 52,11!
Other Foreigr 94,22( 106,46 137,52
Total $ 3,151,80; $ 2,543,89. $ 1,875,16
Long-Lived Assets
United State: $ 4,039,771 $ 3,423,18 $ 2,973,71.
Argentina 81,88t 78,22: 91,32:
Colombia 84,38¢ 67,36¢ 59,79¢
Ecuadotr 38,26! 28,43¢ 27,77
Other Foreigr 107,26: 79,85¢ 122,41t
Total $ 435157 $ 3,677,007 $ 3,275,022

Long-lived assets are comprised of propgiignt and equipment.
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NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenues from one customer accounted fomoapnately 12.0 percent of total operating revendering the year ended September 30,
2012, and 12.5 percent for years ended Septemb@02Q and 2010. Revenues from another customeuatad for approximately
10.2 percent, 4.5 percent and 4.6 percent of tqafating revenues during the years ended Septe30b2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Collectively, the receivables from these customesee approximately $108.4 million and $70.5 millanSeptember 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

NOTE 16 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)

(in thousands, except per share amount:

2012 15t Quarter 2" Quarter 3" Quarter 4™ Quarter
Operating revenue $ 732,58{ $ 769,98. $ 819,78! $ 829,44
Operating incomi 230,53¢ 207,02! 232,65! 239,38
Income from continuing operatiol 144,29 129,76: 149,94: 149,60t
Net income 144,28t 129,71¢ 149,92! 157,11!
Basic earnings per common shg

Income from continuing operatiol 1.34 1.2C 1.4C 1.41

Net income 1.34 1.2C 1.4C 1.4¢
Diluted earnings per common she

Income from continuing operatiol 1.32 1.1¢ 1.3¢ 1.3¢

Net income 1.32 1.1¢ 1.3¢ 1.4¢
2011 15t Quarter 2" Quarter 3" Quarter 4™ Quarter
Operating revenue $ 594,64. $ 604,40t $ 644,09¢ $ 700,75:
Operating incom: 170,72t 164,26! 174,41¢ 193,10:
Income from continuing operatiol 104,36! 98,96! 109,82¢ 121,51«
Net income 104,15( 98,79( 109,82¢ 121,42(
Basic earnings per common shg

Income from continuing operatiol 0.9¢ 0.92 1.0z 1.1z

Net income 0.9¢ 0.92 1.02 1.13
Diluted earnings per common shg

Income from continuing operatiol 0.9¢ 0.91 1.01 1.11

Net income 0.9¢ 0.91 1.01 1.11

The sum of earnings per share for the fuarters may not equal the total earnings per dbatbe year due to changes in the average
number of common shares outstanding.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2012, netame includes an after-tax gain from the sale sé@sof $3.0 million, $0.03 per share on a diluted
basis.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, nebme includes an after-tax gain from the salesséts of $4.9 million, $0.05 per share on a
diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2012, netame includes an aftéax gain from the sale of assets of $1.3 millidh0% per share on a dilut
basis.
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NOTE 16 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D) (Continued)

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, netdme includes an after-tax gain from the saleseéts of $3.0 million, $0.03 per share on a

diluted basis.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2011, net@me includes an after-tax gain from the sale sé&sof $1.7 million, $0.02 per share on a diluted

basis.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2011, nebme includes an after-tax gain from the salesséts of $2.6 million, $0.02 per share on a

diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2011, netame includes an aftéax gain from the sale of assets of $2.2 millidh0® per share on a dilut
basis, and an after-tax gain from the sale of iteest securities of $0.6 million, $0.01 per shameadliluted basis.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, metome includes an after-tax gain from the saleseéts of $2.4 million, $0.02 per share on a

diluted basis.

56

Directors

Officers

Hans Helmerich

Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer

Tulsa, Oklahoma

William L. Armstrong**(***)
President

Colorado Christian University
Lakewood, Colorado

Randy A. Foutch*(***)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Laredo Petroleum, Inc.

Tulsa, Oklahoma

John W. Lindsay
President and Chief Operating Officer
Tulsa, Oklahoma

Paula Marshall**(***)

Chief Executive Officer
The Bama Companies, Inc.
Tulsa, Oklahoma

Thomas A. Petrie**(***)
Chairman

Petrie Partners, LLC
Denver, Colorado

Donald F. Robillard, Jr.*(***)
Chief Financial Officer

Hunt Consolidated, Inc.
Dallas, Texas

Hon. Francis Rooney*(***)

Chief Executive Officer, Rooney
Holdings, Inc.

Former U.S. Ambassador to the Holy
See, 2005 - 2008

Tulsa, Oklahoma

Edward B. Rust, Jr.*(***)
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

State Farm Mutual Automobile
Insurance Company
Bloomington, lllinois

John D. Zeglis**(***)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Retired

Hans Helmerich
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

John W. Lindsay
President and Chief Operating Officer

Steven R. Mackey
Executive Vice President, Secretary, General Cd#se
Chief Administrative Officer

Juan Pablo Tardio
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Gordon K. Helm
Vice President and Controller

John R. Bell
Vice President, Human Resources

Stockholders' Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders will be heldMarch 6, 2013. A formal notic
of the meeting, together with a proxy statementfanah of proxy will be mailed t
shareholders on or about January 24, 2013, angrtixg statement and form of
proxy will be made available via the Internet oatttate.

Stock Exchange Listing

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Common Stock is tradedrenNew York Stock
Exchange with the ticker symbol "HP." The newspagigreviation most
commonly used for financial reporting is "HelmP.pt@ns on the Company's
stock are also traded on the New York Stock Exchang

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar
As of November 15, 2012, there were 620 recorddrsldf Helmerich &
Payne, Inc. Common Stock as listed by the traregfent's records.

Our transfer agent is responsible for our sharedratecords, issuance of stock
certificates, and distribution of our dividends @hd IRS Form 1099. Your
requests, as shareholders, concerning these matéensost efficiently answered
by corresponding directly with the transfer agerthe following address:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Investor Services
P.O. Box 43078
Providence, RI 02940-3078
Telephone: (800) 884-4225

(781) 575-4706

Available Information

Annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports @nnfr 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, earnglgases, and financial
statements are made available free of charge oimikstor relations section of the
Company's website as soon as reasonably practiatiblehe Company
electronically files such materials with, or fulmés it to, the SEC. Also located on
the investor relations section of the Company'ssitelare certain corporate
governance documents, including the following: ¢harters of the committees of
the Board of Directors; the Company's CorporateeBoance Guidelines and Cc
of Business Conduct and Ethics; the Code of Etfieic®rincipal Executive Office
and Senior Financial Officers; the Related Pers@amdaction Policy; the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act Compliance Policy; certairdd@ommittee Practices and a
description of the means by which employees andrattterested persons may
communicate certain concerns to the Company's Bafabirectors, including the
communication of such concerns confidentially andrgmously via the
Company's ethics hotline at 1-800-205-4913. Annejpbrts, quarterly reports,
current reports, amendments to those reports,regmeleases, financial
statements and the various corporate governaneerdots are also available free
of charge upon written request.

Direct Inquiries To:
Investor Relations
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.



AT&T Wireless Services, Inc.
Basking Ridge, New Jersey

* Member, Audit Committee
*x Member, Human Resources Committee
ok Member, Nominating and Corporate Governance Coramitt

57

1437 South Boulder Avenue

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119

Telephone: (918) 742-5531

Internet Address: http://www.hpinc.cc




QuickLinks
Exhibit 13

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial ditan and Results of Operations
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimpn HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income HELMERICH & PAY,NIEC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquityMIERICH & PAYNE, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows HELMERICHAY'RE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements HELMBRECPAYNE, INC.



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

White Eagle Assurance Company (Incorporated in \éertn
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. (Ingarated in Delaware)

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne Internationalllibwg Co.

Helmerich & Payne (Africa) Drilling Co. (Incorpord in Cayman Islands, British West Indies)
Helmerich & Payne (Colombia) Drilling Co. (Incorded in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Gabon) Drilling Co. (Incorpordie Cayman Islands, British West Indies)
Helmerich & Payne (Argentina) Drilling Co. (Inconaded in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co. (Incorpted in Oklahoma)

Subsidiary of Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drillifigp.

Helmerich and Payne Mexico Drilling, S. De R.L.@4/. (Incorporated in Mexico)

Helmerich & Payne del Ecuador, Inc. (Incorporate@®klahoma)
Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A. (Incorporatedenezuela)
Helmerich & Payne Rasco, Inc. (Incorporated in G&laa)

H&P Finco (Incorporated in Cayman Islands, Britislest Indies)
H&P Invest Ltd. (Incorporated in Cayman IslandsitiBin West Indies)
TerraVici Drilling Solutions, Inc. (Incorporated Delaware)

The Space Center, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)
Helmerich & Payne Properties, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma)
Utica Resources Co. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)

Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma)

Subsidiaries of Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc.

Fishercorp, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)




QuickLinks
Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthis Annual Report on Form 10-K of HelmerichHP&yne, Inc. of our report dated
November 21, 2012, with respect to the consolidéitexhcial statements of Helmerich & Payne, Inacluded in the 2012 Annual Report
Shareholders of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. filed akiBit 13.

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-631240gpeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stogkentive Plan,

(2 Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-137144ppeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 LongrT Incentive Plan,
and

) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-116@Ertaining to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 201dhg-Term Incentive Plan;

of our reports dated November 21, 2012, with resfgethe consolidated financial statements of Helohe& Payne, Inc. incorporated by
reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K araldffectiveness of internal control over finanecggorting of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Helich & Payne, Inc. for the year ended Septembe2G02.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 21, 201
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Hans Helmerich, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKielmerich & Payne, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the registrant's internal control over finahceéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisattifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 21, 2012

/sl HANS HELMERICH

Hans Helmerich
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Juan Pablo Tardio, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKielmerich & Payne, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the registrant's internal control over finahceéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisattifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 21, 2012

/s/ JUAN PABLO TARDIO

Juan Pablo Tardio
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
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Exhibit 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of mekich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10eK the period ended September 30,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Ci@sion on the date hereof (the "Report"), Hans Heich, as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and Juan Pablo Tardio, as Vice Praséohel Chief Financial Officer of the Company, eheheby certifies, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Segfi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the békis knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejugrements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timamcial condition and result of
operations of the Company.

/sl HANS HELMERICH /s/ JUAN PABLO TARDIO
Hans Helmerich Juan Pablo Tardio
Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 21, 201 Date: November 21, 201
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